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INTRODUCTION

CHAIR’S
REPORT
Welcome to the Mount Hotham Alpine
Resort Management Board’s Annual
Report for 2013-14. On behalf of the
Board, I am pleased to provide you with
the Chair’s report for the year.
It has been wonderful to see so many
happy faces on the mountain over the
past 12 months. The Board enjoys
working closely with Management,
staff, stakeholders, businesses and
most importantly the Resort’s visitors.
Together, we ensure Mt Hotham is
continually evolving as a vibrant, year
round Resort.
Operations
Large snowfalls at the start of the
season brought plenty of excitement
to the mountain. These falls provided
a solid base and, when combined with
a series of top-up dustings, produced
a great snow season. This resulted in
a 25% increase in visitors and a 24%
increase in Visitor Days compared to
last season and produced a strong
financial result.
To safeguard all at Mt Hotham, an
extensive audit was conducted of every
building within the Resort to make
certain that snow shedding hazards
were properly identified, and laminated
“Danger – Snow Shedding” signs were
produced and distributed to all lodge
managers and businesses for display in
their premises.
The village car parking signage was
overhauled and simplified to eliminate
confusion regarding day and long term
parking and loading zones. This was a
major concern of our stakeholders and
visitors. A new “first and only warnings”
system was introduced to better support
the on-line “Alpine Easy Access” Resort
Entry payment system which is in its
fourth year of operation. Both initiatives
have received positive feedback from
our stakeholders and visitors.
Marketing and Business
Development
The Board has on-going programs to
increase the attractiveness of Hotham
as a year round venue. This year’s green
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season program included upgrading
the Resort’s tracks, trails and terrain
to attract bushwalkers, alpine trail
runners and mountain bikers; the
relaunch of the Beyond Hotham 4WD
event and Cool Summer Festival after
the devastating bush fires in 2013; and
providing support for the 7 Peaks Ride.
Over the next 12 months, we anticipate
growing these events and introducing
several new ones.
The ‘Hotham to Dinner Plain Trail’ was
completed and a new Alpine Crossing
trailhead shelter and a sculpture
piece erected in the Loch Car park
through combined funding from the
Department of Transport, Planning and
Local Infrastructure and the MHRMB
and in-kind support from Parks Vic.
Eight interpretive signs were placed in
the winter chain bays along the Great
Alpine Road to provide historical touring
information specific to each location.
Capital Works
Stage one of a $7.3m, three year
project to replace the Swindlers Valley
pipeline commenced this year and was
completed on time. This project is vital
for skier safety and the operation of the
ski fields as Swindlers Valley provides
the only connection to the Village Chair
for 75% of Mt Hotham’s ski area. The
Board was successful in obtaining
grant funding of $6.03 million from the
State Government and $950,000 from
the Department of Environment and
Primary Industries and has contributed
$600,000 from its own Capital Works
program. The majority of work will be
completed over the 2014/15 summer
season, so that it will not impact the
2015 snow season.
The Board also received a $25,000
‘Smarter Resource Smarter Business:
Recycling’ grant from Sustainability
Victoria to purchase two new waste
baling machines for baling cardboard,
aluminium cans, P.E.T and H.D.P.E.
plastics. These grants enable
businesses to improve waste separation
and boost recycling. The new balers
will allow the Resort to separate and
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compress recyclable materials, thereby
making the recycling process more
efficient.
Board Appointments and
Sub Committees
I extend a sincere farewell to outgoing
Board member, Helen Moran for her
professionalism, enthusiasm and
remarkable contributions during her
13 years with the Board. Helen’s term
concluded on 31st October 2014.
I would like to extend a warm welcome
to David Anstee and Stephen Clement
who were appointed to the Board on 7th
July 2014 and 28th October 2014.
Their backgrounds in business
development, investment banking,
property development and project
management will provide important
skills to the Board.
This year the Board also established a
Marketing Sub Committee to develop
and facilitate the branding of Hotham as
both a summer and winter destination.
Board Undertakings
The draft Mt Hotham Resort
Master Plan was released for public
consultation with one workshop held
in Melbourne and another held at Mt
Hotham. An invitation for submissions
was also extended to the general public,
with a fantastic response shown by our
stakeholders and community. We thank
you for your input and feedback.
Our Community
This year, the interaction between the
Hotham community and Board has
been outstanding. The introduction of
the Mt Hotham Consultative Forum
underpins an ongoing dialogue between
the Board and representatives from the
Alpine Shire, Mt Hotham Chamber of
Commerce, Hotham Ski Association,
Mt Hotham Skiing Company, and
Tourism North East. This group will
ensure we develop and provide mutually
marketable products for the mountain,
which are beneficial to Mt Hotham
Alpine Resort.

Our 13th Annual Stakeholders meeting was
held at Holmesglen Conference Centre in
Melbourne on 26th May 2014. The briefing
shared information about Management’s
undertakings for the prior year and future
plans for the Resort. The event also provides
the Board and Executive staff with an
opportunity to converse with stakeholders
and seek feedback. A similar meeting will be
scheduled in 2015.

energy everyone has taken to provide us with
your contributions and feedback. Mt Hotham
continues to grow and flourish as a result of
your efforts.
I acknowledge the contributions and services
of the Board Members over the past year. My
fellow Board Members are driven and focused
on getting the job done. Working with them is
always a great pleasure.

Acknowledgements

I would like to extend an enormous thank
you to our long serving CEO, Jim Atteridge,
his management team and the staff, and
commend them for their constant and
unwavering enthusiasm and commitment to
their roles throughout the whole year. Nothing
is ever too big an ask and they consistently
punch above their weight.

I would like to thank the Mt Hotham
community for its continued support over the
past year. The Board appreciates the time and

Mt Hotham has had the benefit of Jim’s strong
leadership for 16 years. His achievements
have been significant and far reaching and his

Board Members also attended the annual
Hotham Ski Association (HSA) opening
weekend function in June 2014 at the Mount
Hotham General Store. We thank them for
their hospitality.

dedication and passion towards the Resort,
Board, staff and community were exceptional.
It has been a demanding journey for which
the mountain will always be thankful. His
character will truly be missed and I hope
that we continue to see him on our slopes.
On behalf of the entire Hotham community
I would like to thank Jim for his time at Mt
Hotham and wish him good luck in his future
endeavours.

Deborah Spring
Chairperson
Mount Hotham Resort
Management Board

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REPORT
Over the past
12 months the
collaboration from
our Board, staff,
businesses and
stakeholders has
excelled with the
successful public
consultations of the
draft Mt Hotham
Resort Master Plan, the introduction of the
Mt Hotham Consultative Forum and the
annual Holmesglen Executive Briefing. I
have been fortunate enough to be blessed
with a positive snow season for my final
year with Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board. This report documents the
achievements in operations and financial
records for the 2013-14 financial year.
Following 16 years of service with Mt
Hotham Resort Management Board, I
am concluding my incredible journey at
the end of 2014. I have been privileged to
oversee the remarkable transformation
our mountain has undergone over this
period to as it stands today.
Arriving at Mt Hotham in March 1999 I
knew there would be a challenge in front
of me. Settling into the role I reviewed
the Auditor General’s 1997 report which
highlighted important matters that needed
to be considered. With over $35 million of

Capital Works being completed by the end
of this summer, the Board have continued
to encapsulate the key factors listed in
that report, including ‘Environmental
Management’, ‘Asset Management’ and
‘Revenue Collection’. The path we have
travelled has produced essential strategic
fundamentals for the Resort and its future
growth. The mountain has taught me many
lessons and its community has shown
me the incredible resilience they have,
especially in the difficult times of the 2003,
2006 and 2013 bushfires.
The dedication of my staff must be noted.
Their selfless work ethic to repeatedly
provide above and beyond their duties is
commendable. I feel honoured to have
worked with such an incredible team
whose friendships will stay embedded
in my heart. The mixture of trials and
tribulations we have faced together, as well
as the added pressure of natural disasters
encapsulate the continual dedication they
have for this Resort. I would like to extend
a wholehearted thank you to them all. You
have always given “the whole nine yards”
and for that I am grateful.
Highlights of 2013-2014 Include:
•	Successful $6.03m budget bid for
the Swindlers Valley Pipeline Project.

•	Mt Hotham Resort Master Plan draft
was distributed to stakeholders for
public consultation and feedback.
•	Sustainability Victoria grant of $25,000
for recycling initiatives.
•	Adoption of the ‘Bushfire Emergency
Management Plan’ by the Board and
CFA.
•	Breast Cancer Network Australia’s
Pink Lady Weekend Fundraiser.
•	Hotham’s second ‘Fancy Dress Charity
Fun Run’ raised over $4000 for Camp
Quality.
Staff Update
In 2014 we proudly promoted two
outstanding staff members.
I would like to congratulate Kevin
Raymond for his promotion into a Senior
Management role pre winter, as Manager
of Information Technology & Visitor
Services. With several inclement weather
days throughout this season, Kevin showed
his leadership skills by participating in our
road management strategy along with our
seasonal Road Management contractor
Glen ‘Fluffy’ Billman, Victoria Police and
Vic Roads contractors ‘Stadelmanns’.
Congratulations to Brenna Sharp who
has been promoted from a casual
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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position to fulltime, in the new role of
Marketing Officer. Brenna joined the team
in 2012 when she started as a seasonal
Administration Assistant. She has a
wonderful charisma which compliments
her new position.
Swindlers Valley Pipeline Project
Preliminary works of the Swindlers Valley
Pipeline replacement project was successfully
completed at a cost of $1.5 million. This work
was funded by a Department of Environment
& Primary Industries (DEPI) grant of $950,000
and a Board contribution of $600,000.
During the 2013/2014 summer period,
works included the upgrade of Davenport
Access track; installation of a temporary
stream diversion pipe; installation of Slalom
Gully pipeline diversion pit; relocation of
high voltage electricity cables; crushing and
stockpiling of Whitey’s car park materials;
a request for tender of supply plant and
construction expertise; as well as planning
and design.
Pipeline replacement work was started in
October 2014 and will continue throughout
summer 2014/2015. This will include project
management and preliminaries; outlet
structure; pipeline construction; removal
and installation of services; inlet structure;
reinstatement works; and administration
overheads.
Mt Hotham Resort Management Board was
granted $6.03 million of funding through a
successful application to State Government.
The grant ensures the major project is
financially viable for the duration of works.
The Green Season Spring/ Summer/ Autumn
Hotham is growing as a summer
destination, with annual upgrades to our
bushwalking tracks and trails; the Cool
Summer festival held in February; and
the Beyond Hotham 4WD event in March.
I would like to thank the operators who
continually produce high standard events
every year, in particular The General Store
at Hotham who is our anchor summer
tenant and constantly supports the
mountain year round.
In October 2014, MP Tim McCurdy launched
the new Alpine Crossing trail head shelter
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located at Loch Car Park. Funding from
the Department of Transport, Planning
& Local Infrastructure together with Mt
Hotham Resort Management Board, Tourism
North East (TNE) and Parks Victoria enabled
construction of the new trail head shelter. The
trail head is a section of the ‘Falls to Hotham
Alpine Crossing’ walk which was established
this year in conjunction with TNE, Parks
Victoria and Falls Creek Resort Management
Board. The structure and sculpture represent
the regions old gold mining history and
gives bushwalkers an opportunity to read
the Alps information combined with an
intentions book. I extend a big thank you to
our staff Andrew Swift and Derrick Follett
who accomplished a great job creating and
erecting the work.
Winter 2014
Winter season 2014 was a welcomed success
for the Resort and general public. With two
larger fronts bringing plenty of fresh snow
early in the season, it proved to be a healthier
start than Hotham had received in previous
years. Resulting in a significant uplifting
attitude and smiles gleaming from everyone
all season. Mt Hotham’s second ‘Fancy Dress
Charity Fun Run’ was once again a huge
highlight. The event rose well over last year’s
figure, with over $4000 for Camp Quality.
Thank you to all staff and businesses who
were involved.
The ‘Controlled Traffic Management Plan’
was exercised several times throughout the
winter season. On the inclement weather
days the MHRMB worked in conjunction
with VicRoads contractors “Stadelmann’s”
to progressively clear the Great Alpine Road
(GAR) of road accidents and snow drifts. This
successful process enabled the road to stay
open with only limited delays.

Ski Field Safety
The accident rate per thousand skier days
was 1.51 per thousand skier days, which is
well below the accepted international average
of 2.4 per thousand skier days.
The Board promotes the use of helmets
on the slopes which is evident with the
mandatory helmet use by all MHRMB staff.
They support any safety campaign that
moves the industry forward in the awareness
of helmet safety whilst engaging in Alpine
recreation activity. The Board remains
dedicated to our stakeholders and visitors
by committing to a safe and enjoyable
environment in our Resort.
Our Board
I would like to thank the Board for their
commitment to Mt Hotham. Their dedication
to the growth of our Resort is commendable.
Welcome to David Anstee who was appointed
for the first time as a Board Member at Mt
Hotham in July. His experience will continue
to boost the Boards stance. Farewell to Helen
Moran who has served as a Mt Hotham
Board Member for the past 13 years. Her
presence will be missed however you will still
see Helen around the Resort in her position
as Head of Victoria, Midway Attractions at
Merlin Entertainments Group. Welcome to
our newest Board Member Stephen Clement
whose experience and knowledge significantly
compliments the skill set of the Board.
It has been a great pleasure to call Mt Hotham
home for the past 16 years. The Resort will
forever be in my heart and I will miss the
dynamic team I have worked alongside.
Thank you for your unwavering support and
friendship.

Road Safety
Winter 2014 was the second season the chain
determination has been implemented. The
determination has proved to be a success
with another remarkable reduction in serious
traffic incidents on the GAR this year.
The main concern for traffic incidents were
visitors not driving to the weather conditions
and unsuitable tyres fitted to vehicles for the
winter Alpine environment.
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BOARD
MEMBERS
The Alpine Resorts (Management) Act
1997 (the Act) came into force on 30th
April 1998 when the responsibility for the
day-to-day management of the Mt Hotham
Alpine Resort was transferred to the Mt
Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board.
Our Board representatives come from a
diverse range of backgrounds and industry
experience.
Deborah Spring
(Chairperson)
Deb has had broad
experience as both
a Director and as
a senior executive
in the private,
public and semigovernment sectors
across a diverse
range of industries. These include energy,
manufacturing, recycling, rail, technology,
transport and logistics. Her board positions
include Alpine Resorts Co-ordinating
Council, Federation University Australia
and V/Line Corporation. Previously, Deb
was Chair of Banksia Environmental
Foundation and Deputy Chair of Special
Olympics – Victoria. Deb has a Master of
Science in Mechanical Engineering and a
Master in Business Administration from
Harvard Business School. Deb is a licensed
professional engineer and a Graduate
Member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. She has been skiing at
Hotham for over 25 years and has watched
her three daughters advance from Mighty
Mites to Mary’s Slide.
Ron Mason
(Deputy Chair)
Ron is an
experienced Urban
and Environmental
planner having
practiced for
nearly 40 years in
Government and
private organisations
in Victoria including the past 18 years
as a planning consultant. Ron was the
principal planner at Aurecon (Melbourne),

leading one of the largest planning teams
in Victoria until he retired in December 2009.
Since leaving Aurecon he has continued as
a planning consultant in his own planning
practice. As a planner, Ron has been involved
in major tourist, environmental and strategic
planning projects throughout Victoria and
Tasmania. Ron has also been a member of
several Government Boards and Committees
during his career in planning. He has been
skiing at Mt Hotham for the past 30 years
and is a Committee Member of Asgaard
Alpine Club. Ron is also Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee and Chairman
of the Mount Hotham Resort Master Plan
Working Group.
Nicole Feeney
Nicole has been a
member of the Board
since 2007 and was
Chairman from 2010
to 2013. Between
2010 and 2013 she
was also a member
of the Alpine Resorts
Co-ordinating Council.
Nicole is a commercial disputes and
construction lawyer at Lander & Rogers; is
the immediate past Chair of the Litigation
Lawyers Section of the Law Institute of
Victoria (LIV) and represents the LIV on
the Supreme Court Rules Committee and
the County Court Building Cases Users
Group. Her Board experience includes
having been a director of UFS Dispensaries
Ltd for 6 years, a not for profit company
which owns and operates a number of
pharmacies and associated businesses in
and around Ballarat in Western Victoria
and she is a Graduate Member of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.
In 2001 Nicole was introduced to skiing and
Mt Hotham. She loved the experience so
much she became a member of the lodge
Anton Huette in 2005 and later purchased
an apartment at Hotham.

Tim Piper
Tim is the Victorian
Director of the
Australian Industry
Group which is one of
the most influential
industry associations
in the country. He is
a lawyer and former
journalist and holds
a Master of Business Administration.
Tim is also Chairman of the Industry
Capability Network and the Manufacturing
Skills and Training Taskforce. He also
sits on a number of boards including the
Victorian Leadership Group, the Victorian
Manufacturing Council and the Industry
Skills Consultative Council.
Helen Moran
Helen has been
associated with
Mt Hotham since
1985 and currently
is the Head of
Victoria - Midway
Attractions at Merlin
Entertainments
Group. Helen has
been involved in General Management
of Resort operations and played a key
role in development projects undertaken
by Australian Alpine Enterprises Pty
Ltd at the Resort since 1995 providing
invaluable experience in the areas of
planning, administration and management.
She brings a high level of marketing,
organisational and communication skills
and experience in Resort Management and
development of business initiatives to the
Board. Helen’s Board term concluded on
31st October 2014.
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Peter Hagenauer
Peter is a partner
at Digital Frontier
Partners, a specialist
advice firm which
helps clients to
understand the
capabilities, resources
and organisational
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structure needed to deliver their products
and services in the digital economy. He
has over 25 years of experience in the
Banking and Finance Sector, including
more than ten years building and
managing digital distribution channels
supporting ANZ’s Global Markets
businesses. He has extensive experience
in strategy development, programme
management, project governance and
sales management. Peter is a member of
Asgaard Ski Club. He and his family have
been skiing at Hotham for the past 6 years.
David Anstee
David has been
skiing Hotham for
over 25 years, and
the first time his
children tasted snow
was on the skier’s
mountain. Currently
serving as the
Commercial Director
of GreenSync and as a lecturer in postgraduate entrepreneurial studies at
Swinburne University, David holds a
Master in Business Administration from
London Business School and a bachelor
of commerce from Melbourne. He has a
diverse career which includes investment
banking, assistant cameraman for National
Geographic in the Arctic, innovation
manager and entrepreneur. When not
skiing, David enjoys rock climbing, diving,
farming and flying. David was appointed on
7th July 2014.
Stephen Clement
Stephen has broad
experience in
property and is a
passionate skier. He is
currently the Project
General Manager
at the Queensland
Investment
Corporation for the
$575 million upgrade of the Eastland
Shopping Centre and Ringwood Town
Square. Prior to that he was Project
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Director for ING Real Estate for the mixed
use development at Docklands and was
President of the Docklands Chamber of
Commerce. Stephen has worked in the
property industry for 30 years and brings
strong development and planning skills to
the Board. He has a Graduate Diploma in
Project Management, Bachelor of Structural
Engineering and is a member of the Institute
of Engineers Australia. Stephen was
appointed on 28th October 2014.
Audit & Risk Sub Committee
The Audit & Risk Sub Committee has
responsibility of Internal and External
Audit, Finances, Risk Management and
monitoring the compliance with the
Financial Management Compliance
Framework. The Board representatives
on this committee are Ron Mason
(Chairperson), Helen Moran (retiring),
Peter Hagenauer and Steven Clement
(as of the 28th October 2104). All Audit
& Risk Sub Committee members are
deemed independent under the Financial
Management Act 1994.
Remuneration Sub Committee
The current Remuneration Sub Committee
Board Representatives are Tim Piper
(Chairperson), Nicole Feeney, and
Deb Spring.
Marketing Sub Committee
The Marketing Sub Committee was
established in September 2014 with its
inaugural meeting being held October
2014. Board Representatives are Peter
Hagenauer (Chairperson), Nicole Feeney,
and David Anstee. The committee was
established to develop and facilitate
the Board’s marketing strategies and
maximise Hotham’s branding as a
destination.
Consultative Forum
Mt Hotham Consultative Forum was
established in July 2014 to create a
continued dialogue between the Board and
key associations. The Chair of the Forum
is Peter Hagenauer with representatives
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from the Alpine Shire, Hotham Ski
Association (HSA), Mt Hotham Chamber of
Commerce, Mt Hotham Skiing Company
and Tourism North East (TNE).
Establishment of Boards
The Mount Hotham Alpine Resort
Management Board was established
by Section 34 of the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997. The inaugural
Board officially took over control of the
Resort on 30th April 1998. Prior to this, all
Alpine Resorts were managed collectively
under the jurisdiction of the Alpine Resorts
Commission. The management structure
comprises an independent seven member
skill-based Board responsible to the
Minister for Environment, Climate Change
and Water. The responsible Minister for the
1st November 2013 to 31st October 2014
reporting period was the Hon Ryan Smith
MP, Minister for Environment and Climate
Change.
Functions of The Board and Corporate
Governance
Section 38 (1) of the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997 specifies the
functions of the Board:
(aa)	To plan for the development,
promotion, management and use, of
each such alpine resort in accordance
with the object of this Act;
(ab)	To develop and promote or facilitate
the development or promotion by
others of the use of each such alpine
resort in accordance with the object of
the Act;

Management Plan for each such
resort;
(ah)	To expend or apply revenue of the
Board in accordance with a direction
of the Minister under section 36(1A);
(a)	To act as a committee of management
of any Crown land deemed to be
permanently reserved under the
Crown Land (Reserve) Act 1978 in
each such alpine resort;
(b)	To contribute, together with Tourism
Victoria, established under the
Tourism Victoria Act 1992, and the
Council, to the overall promotion of
alpine resorts;

(c)	To develop a tourism and marketing
strategy for and to promote each
such alpine resort and to collect and
expend voluntary contributions from
commercial undertakings in each
such alpine resort for this purpose;

(f)	To collect fees prescribed by the
regulations for the resort;

(d)	To provide services in the nature of:
garbage disposal, water supply, gas,
drainage, sewerage, electricity, roads,
fire protection, snowmaking, transport
for each such alpine resort and to
charge contributions for the provision
of those services;

(h)	To carry out any other function
conferred on the Board by this or
any other Act.

(g)	To attract investment for the
improvement of each such alpine
resort in respect of which the Board is
established; and

*** s.38 (1) (e) repealed by NO. 24/2004 s10 (1) (c)

***

Meeting Attendance:
BOARD

AUDIT & RISK

REMUNERATION

MARKETING
(Est. Oct 2014)

Total Meetings Held

10

6

8

1

Deborah Spring

10

-

8

1#

Ron Mason

10

6

-

-

Nicole Feeney

10

-

8

1

Tim Piper

9

-

8

-

Helen Moran

10

6

-

-

Peter Hagenauer

8

4

-

1

David Anstee

3*

-

-

1

Stephen Clement

2*#

-

-

1#

*On the Board or relevant committee for a limited time.
#
An observer only.

(ac)	To manage each such alpine resort in
accordance with the object of the Act;
(ad)	To contribute to the development of
the Alpine Resorts Strategic Plan and
other strategic planning for alpine
resorts as a whole;
(ae)	To undertake research into alpine
resort issues;
(af)	To contribute to and support the
operation of the Council;
ag)	To prepare and implement a Strategic
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ABOUTTHE RESORT

OUR
HISTORY
The Mt Hotham Alpine Resort is set in a
unique and extreme natural landscape,
an environment that has been largely
shaped by its European history, a history
that is unique to the region and the State.
The history of Mt Hotham has been
affected by influences from both sides
of the range. Mt Hotham (1861m) is
amongst the top ten highest points
in Victoria, atop the solid barrier that
forms the spine of the Great Dividing
Range. Both the Ovens Valley to the
north and Gippsland to the south have
played important influential roles in the
history of the Mt Hotham region.
It must be acknowledged that human
habitation of the area did not begin with
the arrival of the first Europeans, and
that an aboriginal presence in the high
country had existed in the Mt Hotham
region for many thousands of years
previously.
The principal language groups in
the Mt Hotham region included the
Gunaikurnai, Dhudoroa and the
Jaitmathang.
Gold
In 1851 the most influential event in the
history of the region (and the nation)
occurred with the official discovery
of gold. In that first year gold was
discovered at Omeo, where a few
small diggings were opened. The gold
discoveries on each side of the Divide
saw a significant movement of traffic
over the ranges between the new fields.
Diggers travelling over the ranges in the
vicinity of Mt Hotham were said to have
discovered small quantities of gold,
however these deposits were left in
preference for the richer pickings
and better climate offered by the
lower valleys.
The early 1860s saw significant gold
discoveries being made on the Upper
Dargo and Cobungra rivers. These new
fields saw the establishment of more
permanent populations in the shadow
of Hotham. Principal mining camps and
commercial centres on the Upper Dargo

9

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report

VISION
MISSION
included, Brocket (1866), Louisville
(1866), and the establishment of the
Cobungra Township in 1883. This saw
a population of some 400 to 500 people
in the immediate hills on the edge of
what is now today’s Resort. Significant
investments by lease holding companies
on the Cobungra Diggings had far
reaching influences. Keen to attract
business from the new gold mining
boom, both Bright and Omeo Shires
upgraded the alpine road between
Harrietville and Omeo from a 4ft wide
pack track to an 8ft wide coach road in
1883. The long-term repercussions of
this road upgrading, would influence
the region and Resort development to
present times.
The Resort
The Department of Crown Lands
and Survey assumed responsibility
for Mt Hotham in 1962, appointing
a committee of Management to coordinate Crown allotments, subdivisions
and provide basic services such as
drinking water. During its 21-year
tenure, the Committee encouraged
Resort development, such as lodge
construction, the Zoo Cart transport
system, the addition of tow ropes and
the first chairlift, the Playground
Chair installation.
In 1983 the Alpine Resorts Act saw
the formation of the Alpine Resorts
Commission (ARC) to manage all
Victorian Alpine Resorts permanently
reserved as Crown Land. The ARC
contributed to the development through
the provision of adequate sewerage
reticulation and treatment, reticulated
electricity and gas and later the
connection of the Resort to the State
grid. Other development in subsequent
years saw increased parking areas,
construction of the Hull Skier Bridge,
and completion of the sealing of the
Great Alpine Road between Omeo
and Harrietville in 1998.

2013 / 2014

The ARC developed a much stronger
commitment to the environment during
the mid 1990s, adopting the Resort’s
first Environmental Management
Plan in 1997. In the same year the
Alpine Resorts Planning Scheme was
also introduced. In 1998 separate
management Boards were created
for the individual Resorts and the Mt
Hotham Alpine Resort Management
Board assumed management of
Mt Hotham.
In 1995 BCR Management purchased
Ski Tows Ltd and further developed the
Resort including new ski terrain and the
Orchard, Keogh’s and Gotcha chairs in
1997 as well as a 53 chalet development
of Hotham Heights. The Mt Hotham
airport was opened in 1999.
In 2002 amendments were made to
the Alpine Planning Scheme, including
revising provisions for car parking
and introducing an Environmental
Significance Overlay for the Pygmy
Possum (Burramys parvus), and a
Heritage Overlay. In 2004 the 2020
Strategy was released to guide long
term planning and management of
Victoria’s Alpine Resorts.
In 2004 the lift company was acquired by
MFS limited. In 2009 the $8.4m project
for recycled waste water for snow
making was completed.
In 2011 the Merlin Entertainment Group
acquired the lift company.
Since the first travellers over the ranges
strapped timber planks onto their boots
at the Mt St Bernard Hospice during the
1880s, the Mt Hotham area has been a
skiing destination for tourists for over
130 years. The area today still has a
strong association with early heritage
in providing a unique recreational
destination for visitors all year round.

Our Vision
High on Hotham– Australia’s Premier Alpine Experience.
Our Mission
To deliver Australia’s premier Alpine Resort through the optimal
management of this unique Crown Asset.
Focusing on customer service and effective
communication, the Board will achieve this
mission through quality services to:
The Crown
By maintaining and managing the public
assets of the Resort, attracting investment
for the development and improvement of
the Resort, administering the Crown leases
and licenses within the Resort, and ensuring
legislative obligations are met;

Our Customers
By directly providing quality delivery to our
recreational customers of: transport, ski
patrol, Resort entry sales, visitor information,
traffic and parking control, snow clearing,
cross country trails and urban amenities;
Our Property
By providing contemporary urban services of
water supply, sewerage, drainage, gas supply
and solid waste management;

Our Environment

Our Stakeholders, Investors and Developers

By managing the rare and valuable
biodiversity of the Resort;

Delivering consistency, certainty and
confidence in Mt Hotham by undertaking

quality Resort planning and development,
reliable utility services, effective business and
product development, clear and unambiguous
land and lease management, and efficient
revenue collection;
Our Corporate Performance
By measuring through a set of corporate
performance indicators developed reported
against the Annual Report.
The Board is committed to achieve the
purpose of the Act, and the vision for the
Resort as outlined in the Alpine Resorts
Strategic Plan 2012 and reiterated in the
Board’s Strategic Management Plan
2013-2018.

OUR
STRATEGY
Delivering the vision will be through the
following seven program areas which are
the conduit between Mt Hotham’s
operations; the governing legislation and our
strategic documents.

and the associated private and public
investments, throughout the year.
Our Services

To be the best in every dimension of
customer service through motivated, highly
trained and competent staff.

We will provide our services at a low
sustainable cost, whilst ensuring a positive
customer experience. Our infrastructure will
support the Resort’s strategic direction of
an incremental build-out of accommodation
to a sustainable 7500 beds over the next ten
years.

Our Year Round Resort

Our Developer Services

To identify and realise opportunities and
experiences that attract visitors to Hotham,

We will have the shortest planning and
development cycle at lowest cost in the Alps.

Our Customer and
Community Focus

Our Environment on the Ridge
We will set the standard and be recognised
for our environmental excellence and unique
location.
Our Strategic Partnerships
We will enter strategic partnerships to
access cost effective services and grow the
Resort in a sustainable manner.
Our Corporate Governance
To ensure that strategic management,
planning, and Resort Management is
delivered through streamlined processes
while meeting all statutory obligations.

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report
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NATURE AND
SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES
Mt Hotham Alpine Resort is one of Victoria’s
premier alpine recreation destinations. It
holds the unique position of being the highest
ski field alpine village in Australia with a
summit elevation of 1861 metres.
The Resort is located toward the southern end
of the Great Dividing Range, approximately
365km north east of Melbourne and 520 km
south west of Canberra. The Resort currently
has 4,424 beds and 86 Lessees.
Access from Melbourne to the Resort
is generally by the Great Alpine Road,
either from the west via Wangaratta and
Harrietville or from the east via Bairnsdale
and Omeo. Hotham commercial airport at
Horsehair Plain, approximately 20 km south
east of Mt Hotham, provides an alternative
to road travel. The airport has greatly
increased the accessibility of the Resort to
Victorian, interstate and overseas visitors
and has the capacity to provide commuter
jet links with major Australian capital cities
during the ski season.
Mt Hotham is located at the headwaters of
four major rivers. Terrain in the Resort area
ranges in elevation from 1060 to 1861 metres.
The Resort covers an area of approximately
3450 hectares, the majority of which is Crown
Land and is bounded on all sides by the Alpine
National Park. As such it comprises in total
less than 0.6% area of the Alpine National
Park. The ski field comprises 245 hectares, or
7% of the total Resort area. The urban area of
the village covers approximately 15 hectares,
and is in area less than .003% of the adjoining
National Park.
The primary attraction of Mt Hotham is as a
tourist destination during winter months. The
Resort has developed historically as a Resort
for “serious” skiers with a total of 13 lifts
servicing 76 runs of which 6 are green; 34 are
blue; 25 are black and 11 are double black.
Summer tracks are growing in popularity,
including the completion of the ‘Falls to
Hotham Alpine Crossing’ that joins the
Australian Alps Walking Track. Our three
“hero” walking trails - the Hotham to Dinner
Plain Trail, Cobungra Ditch Trail, and the
Three Huts Walk when combined with the
iconic Razorback/Mt Feathertop Walk, offer
guests the full social spectrum of walks for
all abilities and levels of fitness. The Board
has designed and implemented an annual

11

four wheel drive event that encourages
attendees to drive sustainably within the
Alps. The event known as “Beyond Hotham”
has been run in conjunction with Parks
Victoria and the Victoria Police and provided
information sessions, tagalong tours, social
networking and rare access to the region.
The event is another excellent example of a
successful working relationship between our
partners and regional colleagues. The Board
intends for the Beyond Hotham brand to be
maintained primarily through a self-drive
experience with information about the trails
and recovery support available from the Board
where required.
Many of the winter access trails and cross
country tracks double as walking and
mountain bike tracks during the green
season. Proposed activities to increase usage
at the Wire Plain Activity Node include snow
shoeing, dog sledding, guided snowmobile
tours and winter mountain biking (fat bikes).
The green season usage of this node will
increase with the introduction to recreational
wilderness mountain biking, new short walks
and picnic areas.
The alpine fishing experience can be accessed
from the Resort and has been significantly
enhanced with completion of the Three Huts
Walk, providing easy access to an otherwise
difficult to get to Swindlers Creek. The
Hotham to Dinner Plain Trail is an excellent
example of the Board working closely with
the Alpine Shire and Parks Victoria to create
a quality non winter Alpine product.
Mine sites have been rediscovered within
the Hotham Resort that have the potential
to be developed into a fully integrated
tourism product including walks, tours and
interpretation. This development has the
potential to add to the suite of green season
products available at Hotham.
Ensuring the consistent and reliable delivery
of core services is necessary to maintain
the ongoing daily viability of the Resort and
to provide the foundation on which all other
businesses operating within the Resort rely.
The level of these services is determined
annually in the budget process.

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report

FINANCIAL
SUMMARY
The scope of activities the Board facilitates as
part of ‘Our Strategy’ is as follows:
Our Customer and Community Focus
Human resources, Resort Entry and visitors
information, Ski Patrol and visitor safety,
weather and snow reporting, snow play, cross
country trails, traffic management, transport
and snow clearing.
Our Year Round Resort
Visitor services, car parking, marketing,
cultural heritage and product development.
Our Services
Asset management, water, sewerage,
drainage, waste management, gas, land
stability, capital works, plant/vehicles
and workshop.

One off revenues and deferral of expenditure
on repairs and maintenance items has
contributed to the 2014 surplus result of
$1,032,892 (2013 $551,362). One off revenues
contributed $413,029 to the surplus, with gate
entry revenue increasing by 14% and interest

Net Assets has increased in 2014 recovering
from 3 years of decline in non-current assets

due to annual capital works being lower
than the current year’s depreciation. This
is attributable to the $7m of grant funding
received on the Swindlers Valley project.

Financial Summary

2010
($,000)

2011     
($,000)

2012
($,000)

2013
($,000)

2014
($,000)

Total Assets

90,796

79,305

79,891

80,178

88,443

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

3,796

3,309

3,576

3,311

3,562

87,000

75,996

76,315

76,867

84,881

59,468

41,815

41,815

41,815

41,815

3,167

2,288

4,009

4,424

10,559

Assets are compromised by date
Land
Financial

Our Developer Services

Other Non-Financial

28,161

35,202

34,067

33,940

36,069

Resort master planning, property and
leasing, property development, statutory
planning and health.

Total Assets

90,796

79,305

79,891

80,179

88,443

Five Year Revenue and Expenditure Overview
Revenue ($,000)

2010
($,000)

2011     
($,000)

2012
($,000)

2013
($,000)

2014
($,000)

Site Rental (and associated lease contributions)

1,752

1,644

1,733

1,512

1,421

Annual Service Charges

3,069

3,288

3,659

3,863

4,193

233

42

143

24

177

2,293

2,254

2,785

2,334

2,665

25

100

134

87

35

Other Sources

1,853

1,941

2,112

2,271

2,387

Total Revenue

9,225

9,268

10,566

10,091

10,878

2010
($,000)

2011     
($,000)

2012
($,000)

2013
($,000)

2014
($,000)

Operating Expenses

7,339

7,711

8,311

7,975

8,267

Depreciation

Our Environment on the Ridge
Sustainability, environmental programs
and Victorian Alps Nursery.
Our Strategic Partnerships

Capital Ingoings

Business development and stakeholder
communications.

Visitors

Our Corporate Governance
Information technology, emergency
management, risk management and
statutory reporting.

Grants

Expenditure ($,000)

1,021

991

1,355

1,240

1,233

Finance Expenses

98

114

120

115

110

Support Payments

233

252

181

210

234

8,691

9,068

9,967

9,540

9,845

534

200

599

551

1,033

Total Expenditure
Net Operating Result

2013 / 2014

revenue increasing by 29% on previous years
due to grant funding on the Swindlers Valley
Pipe Replacement project.
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY CONT

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

There were 57 consultants engaged in projects with MHRMB for 2013-14.
A total of 32 consultancies valued less than $10,000 was $137,827.
The following table lists the 25 consultants where total remuneration was $10,000 or above.

The Boards overall performance has continued to be strong.

2010/2011      2011/2012 2012/2013
Actual
Actual     
Actual

Consultancies

Project

On Tap Consulting Pty Ltd

Leasing and Property consultant

Paul Rooney Electrical Contractor

Electrical works on Potable water and Sewerage Treatment Plant

68,633

Total Visitor Days (Winter)

GoCreative

Website hosting

67,583

Market Share (Victorian majors visitor days)

Hansen

Master Plan consultant

65,000

Accident Rate/’000 visitor days (Hotham Historical average)

Mt Hotham Electrical Pty Ltd

Electrical contractor

45,622

Solutions H2O

Sewerage consultant

44,283

Operations

Minimax Contracting

Cleaning contract

44,185

Yabbie Pond Pty Ltd

Potable water compliance

39,640

Alpine Building Permits & Consultants

Building permits/survey and consulting

37,620

4 Site Australia Pty Ltd

Recycling & sewerage sludge removal contractor

33,358

MJS Omeo Earthworks

Landfill and cell maintenance contracted works

33,240

Fish & Nankivell

CEO recruitment

30,289

Mt Hotham Chain Service

Road traffic services

25,855

NJ & GL Martin Plumbing

Risk Management works - Lawlers Sewerage reticulation project

22,704

Georgina Boardman ATF White Family Trust

Environmental consultant

22,667

Ecowise (ASL Laboratory Group)

Potable water and sewerage testing and monitoring compliance

17,678

High Country Forge

Steel fabrication works

17,005

Financial

Beauparc Alpine

Earthmoving works contractor

16,345

Data Integration Solutions Pty Ltd

Vaporiser Plant Room, Wastewater Treatment Plant works.

Expenditure
120,625

2013/14

Customer Service
318,311

411,495

264,527

332,281

28.8%

32.4%

25.1%

28.5%

1.25

1.06

0.95

1.51

Property Revenue/FECA*

$58.59

$64.14

$63.81

$66.62

Infrastructure and Admin Costs/FECA

$70.01

$80.50

$79.10

$78.33

Village, Visitor and Marketing costs/Visitor Day

$ 9.18

$ 7.19

$10.07

$ 9.03

Resort Investment
Total Village Size (FECA*)

84,177

84,068

84,228

84,270

$2.39m

$0.62m

$1.02m

$3.34m

98.1%

96%

100%

100%

Compliant

75%

100%

62.5%

0.53

0.62

0.68

0.54

Outstanding Debtors as % of revenue

5.55%

9.35%

7.51%

8.29%

15,753

Closing cash (‘000)

$1,774

$3,021

$3,665

$9,657

1.50%

2.21%

2.17%

2.70%

1.84

2.49

3.16

5.78

Total CAPEX (‘000) (includes WIP)

Environmental Management
Potable Water Quality (Compliance with Australian Drinking Water Guidelines as reported to DHS)
Waste Water Quality (Compliance with Licence Limits as Reported to EPA)
Solid Waste - kgs (winter period) per visitor day

Parks Victoria

Fox control program

14,000

Operating Cash Flow/Total Assets

Rose & Barton

Modernising VARA

13,856

Current Assets/Current Liabilities

Landair Surveys

Lease renewal surveying

13,847

Tru Tree Care

Tree removalist

13,330

Reagent Employer Marketing Pty Ltd

CEO advertising.

12,271

M Zagorski CADD Services

Masterplan drafting services.

10,390

TOTAL

25

845,780

Total of Contractors / Consultants

57

983,607

*FECA - Fully enclosed covered area (m2)

Major Contracts
The Board did not enter into any contracts greater that $10 million during the reporting period.
Disclosure of Government Advertising Expenditure
Mt Hotham Management Board did not have any advertising campaigns with a media spend of $150,000 or greater.
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ECONOMIC KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Key Performance Indicators

Visitor Fulfilment -

2012/2013
Actual

2013/14

(81,401)

(3,414,660)

551,362

1,032,892

4.63

3.79

0.43

0.26

0.81

0.79

56.92

49.84

S6 Equitable access for Victorians
Enabling actions that facilitate culturally diverse patronage and access
for disabled, socially disadvantaged and economically disadvantaged
Victorians.

Locals’ ski pass, free guides for people with visual
disability, free gate entry to local school students,
Tertiary student subsidy, free snow mobile and other
transport for people with mobility issues/disability, free
inter-village bus service, two entries– servicing east and
west mountain, free Resort entry in summer, graphic
signage system throughout the resort, Omeo to Bright
Alpine Bus Link and development of summer products
continuing.

S7 Availability of a range of accommodation
Publicly bookable beds per accommodation type.

Broad range of accommodation types: 2-5 star.

E1. Net Cash Flow
Net Operating Cash flow plus Net Investing Cash Flow as reported in Cash Flow Statement

E2. Net Accrual Surplus
Net Profit before allocation to Reserves as reported in the Statement of Financial Performance

E3. Business Cycle Sustainability
Ratio of Total Financial Assets less Net Accounts payable less Total Accrued Employee Entitlements to Snow
Drought Reserve Target

E4. Asset Cycle Sustainability
Ratio of Total Financial Assets less Net Accounts payable less Total Accrued Employee Entitlements less
Snow Drought Fund to Total Accumulated Depreciation of all Assets

E5. All Season Resort
Ration of non winter visitors to winter visitors

ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR’S
2012/2013
Actual

E6. Average Visitor Spend
Ratio of total revenues to total visitors (winter and non winter)

SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Theme, Indicator & Measurements

2014 Actions

Valuing Culture and Heritage S1 Indigenous employment opportunities
Indigenous capacity building, engagement, training and/or employment
targets.

Close continued working relationship with Gunaikurnai.

N1. Compliance with Water Licence Conditions
a) Safe Water Drinking Act standards

100%

100%

b) EPA licence conditions

100%

62.5%

c) GMW licence conditions

100%

100%

a) Winter total potable water usage

47.3 ML

57.0 ML

b) Annual total potable water usage

79.9 ML

97.1 ML

0.18 kl/vd

0.17 kl/vd

0%

0%

1902.7 t

1770.7 t

a) Annual tonnage

221.5 t

232.6 t

b) Winter tonnage

179.8 t

181.2 t

0.68 kg/vd

0.54 kg/vd

100%

100%

N2. Potable Water Consumption

c) Winter total potable water usage/visitor

N3. Renewable Energy Consumption by Board

Cultural Heritage Management Initiatives S2 Respect for culture and heritage
Cultural heritage management initiatives.

Interpretive Indigenous signage on the tracks and trails
continued.

Renewable energy as a proportion of total energy consumption (Joules) by Board related activities
per annum Unit: % (Joules / Joules)

N4. Greenhouse Gas Emission
Greenhouse gas emissions from electricity, diesel and ULP consumption by MHRMB activities

Community Strength S3a Supporting community participation – events
Community participation in Resort sponsored events, programs and activities.

Volunteer Ski Patrol, 2nd annual Camp Quality fundraiser,
‘Breast Cancer Network Australia’ Pink Lady weekend
participation & sponsorship and donations.

S3b Supporting community participation – consultation
Opportunities provided to the community to contribute to decisions that
affect them.

Consultation for Resort Master Plan, ESTA Street
Numbering Project, Lodge managers’ annual workshop,
Head lessees briefing, annual Holmesglen stakeholder
meeting plus follow up/ debrief meeting, and Mount Hotham
Consultative Forum.

S4 Accessible on-mountain key community services
Summer and winter presence of key community services, Emergency Services,
Medical Services and Grocery Store.

2013/14

Medical Centre (Fully subsidised accommodation), subsidy
to Police Station and Emergency services. Purchased
Cardiograph machine.

N5. Solid Waste Disposed to Landfill
Solid waste disposed to landfill based on truck tonnage figures

c) Winter tonnage/visitor days

N6. Activities Implemented that Protect Threatened Species
Population and Communities
Activities implemented within threatened species action management plans to protect threatened
species populations and communities

Workplace Quality S5 On-mountain worker accommodation
Number of beds provided by major employers.
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Subsidy on worker housing, staff choice of housing,
flexible working hours, staff training for multi-skilling
and capacity building, worker transport (summer), staff
training program-needs basis, Alpine Ecology course
training and subsidised staff passes.
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OUR CUSTOMER & COMMUNITY FOCUS
17

OUR HUMAN RESOURCES &

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Managed by our Corporate
Services department, our objective
is to provide effective ongoing
management of organisational
development, OH&S, Workcover,
human resource management,
emergency management,
administrative systems and
processes. It is also essential that the
Board organise its human resources
in a way that will deliver the most
effective service to the community
and our visitors, whilst recognising
its obligations to our staff.

Occupational Health and Safety
(OH&S)

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Attestation

OH&S is a significant component
of our Risk Management policy and
the Board is totally committed to
establishing a healthy and safe work
environment for our staff, contractors
and visitors by:

Equal Employment Opportunity

•	Ensure compliance with
legislative requirements and
current industry standards.

I, Jim Atteridge of Mt Hotham Resort
Management Board certify that the
MHRMB has policies and procedures
in place that are consistent with
the minimum requirements and
accountabilities outlined in the
Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality Policy
Framework issued by the Public
Sector Standards Commissioner;
staff are informed about these gifts,
benefits and hospitality policies and
procedures; and the Audit & Risk
Committee reviews the operation of
the policies and procedures at least
once a year to ensure transparent
reporting of accepted gifts, benefits
and hospitality.

The Board is an equal opportunity
employer and all appointments and
promotions are merit based and
based on the principles of the Public
Administration Act 2004.
The Board has fulfilled its obligations
under section 7, public sector values,
of the Public Administration Act 2004,
upholding responsiveness, integrity,
impartiality, accountability, respect,
leadership and human rights.
Industrial Relations
There were no industrial disputes
during the reporting period.
The Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board’s Enterprise Agreement 2013
was ratified by Fair Work Australia on
the 4th September 2013.
MHRMB has negotiated with staff
and Australian Workers Union (AWU)
an agreement that is unique in the
ski fields environment and provides
for the greatest flexibility of labour,
at the lowest cost however without
disadvantaging the staff employed.
The Agreement is premised on
recognising Hotham as a remote,
hazardous and isolated work
environment. The need to attract
and retain the best, most competent,
flexible, willing staff is essential in
providing a seamless customer service
that enhances the visitor experience.

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report

•	Encouraging individuals to
practice work safety by providing
information, instruction and
training;
•	Provide safe plant and systems of
work; and

Occupational Health and Safety
Committee

Resort Management Team

•	First Aid Level II;

•	Fire Warden training.

The day to day running of the organisation
is undertaken by the Chief Executive
Officer and a small year round work force,
which is supplemented by seasonal staff
and volunteer ski patrollers. All staff are
employed under the Mt Hotham Resort
Management Enterprise Agreement 2013.

•

A number of these courses were either
held onsite, locally or via online training.
Other organisations either on mountain
businesses or other Victorian Alpine
Resorts were involved.

Annual CPR updates;

•	Hazardous area authority training for
bus & heavy vehicle drivers;
•	Safety Management Course for bus
operators;
•

Water Treatment modules;

•	Payroll, Superannuation and Taxation
update seminars;

Training and Development
Training and development at Mt Hotham
Resort Management encourages our staff
to keep up to date with their knowledge
and skills in a variety of work areas.
Training undertaken in 2013-2014 was
productive for staff through the following
courses:

•	Apprentice Mechanic TAFE course
training;
•

Return to work training;

•

Spotters course;

•	Annual Ski Patrol refresher units;
•	AgVet Chemical Users course; and

Full Time Workforce

2012-13

2013-14

Management/ Administration

8F/ 3M

9F/ 3M

Resort Operations

4F/ 7M

0F/ 9M

The Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
(LTISR) was 2.70. This comprised of
one core and one seasonal employee.
The OH&S Committee meets on a
regular basis and has been actively
engaged in:
•	Writing policy and procedures,
including management and
action plans;
•	Conducting workplace
inspections;
•	Facilitating training sessions;
•	Reviewing the OH&S
Management System.
The OH&S Committee held 8
meetings for the 2013/2014 reporting
period. There were no major OH&S
issues in this reporting period.
MHRMB undertook an audit of the
exterior of all Resort buildings to
ensure that falling snow hazards
were properly identified, as a result
of the unfortunate incident where a
young boy died at Mount Buller.
Laminated signs ‘Danger beware
of falling snow’ were produced and
distributed to all lodge managers to
ensure visitors safety.

2013 / 2014

Jim Atteridge
Chief Executive Officer
Mount Hotham Resort
Management Board

Organisational Structure
The Alpine Resorts Management Boards
act on behalf of the Crown (S35) in carrying

out its functions and powers. A Board may
employ any persons it considers necessary
for the purposes of the Act (S41).

As at October 2014 the Board has the
following structure:

31st October 2014
Worksafe Audit
BOARD

In September 2012 the Board
was audited on its Occupational
Health and Safety Management
Systems. The outcome of which
was the development of the Safety
Improvement Plan 2012 – 2015.
This plan is continually reviewed
throughout the year and audited by a
Worksafe Inspector.
The Board continues to meet
the actions arising in the Safety
Improvement Plan.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

GENERAL
MANAGER

CHIEF FINANCIAL
& ACCOUNTING
OFFICER

MANAGER
TECHNICAL &
ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES

MANAGER
INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY &
VISITOR SERVICES

FT STAFF 5
PT STAFF 1

FT STAFF 2
PT STAFF 1

FT STAFF 8
PT STAFF 1

FT STAFF 1
PT STAFF 1
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RESORT ENTRY –
ALPINE EASY ACCESS
‘Alpine Easy Access’ is the Resorts online
Resort Entry payment system, and is in
its fourth year of deployment. With the
customisation of the system being the focus
of the previous years, the focus for the 2014
winter season had been streamlining the
car parking management from the visitor’s
perspective.
Mt Hotham has 1500 parking spaces spread
over 3km of the Great Alpine Road.
The advantage of being able to gain close
access to accommodation and lodges has
long been an asset for visitors in comparison
to other Australian Resorts. The reduced
need for over snow transport combined with

the village bus service makes access to the
apartments and lodges relatively simple for
the visitor. Various parking zones within the
Resort have previously been considered a
drawback from the public perspective. The
Board recognise the need to differentiate and
communicate these zones to Mt Hotham’s
visitors to encourage a customer friendly
Resort. This created a review of Resort
signage to address the matter. MHRMB
undertook extensive legal research in order
to validate what was required of the Resort
signage. This process enabled MHRMB
to replace all the Resort parking signage
with a simplified structure of colour coded
parking for the various areas allowing

visitors to clearly understand the different
areas of Day Parking (Blue), Overnight
(Green) and Loading Zones (Yellow). The new
signage was designed and installed over the
summer with additional maps and brochures
assisting the visitors with information on
winter driving, the Great Alpine Road guide,
Resort Entry procedures and car parking
areas. The visitor and stakeholder feedback
has been very positive towards the change.

SKI PATROL &
SKIER SAFETY
Snow Falls and Lift Operations
The 2014 winter season received close to
the 10 year average of total accumulated
snowfall, however over 90 per cent of it
fell within a six week period. Fortunately
snowfalls came in time for June school
holidays and withstood prolonged warm
conditions during August and September
with the main lifts operating until the
official season close on September 28. The
total annual accumulated snowfall of 286
centimeters for 2014 was recorded just
below the 10 year average of 297. No snow
resulted in no lifts operating over the first
two weeks of the season. Substantial snow
arrived and 262 centimeters fell between
June 23 to August 2. From August 3 until
September 28 only a further 22 centimeters
was recorded. The biggest 24 hour snowfall
was 40 centimeters, and the highest
recorded depth was 152 centimeters.
The first lifts opened on Tuesday June 24
and by July 1 the Resort was 100 per cent
operational with all lifts and runs open;
the earliest full start since 2000. Late
June through to the end of July saw a
series of six cold storms, while August and

19

the day and participated in the sweep of the
mountain on closing. The program was a
great success and will be continued.
Training
With 6 new trainees there was a huge
focus on training again this year. The
newly overhauled training program proved
very effective and all trainees completed
the required components by season end.
The sled training program also had some
refinements made to it. Due to the whole
mountain being open for the majority of the
season, and the high number of trainees,
there was limited opportunity for ongoing
training for experienced patrollers.

School Talks

The Volunteer Patrol contributed a total of
489 shifts for the winter including trainee
and cross country shifts. The 347 qualified
patroller shifts account for approximately 18%
of all patrol shifts. Five people passed the
ski patrol induction this year and will begin
training next winter. Five members of the
volunteer Trail Crew program again proved
enormously helpful with on slope equipment
maintenance. The program is a great stepping
stone into the volunteer ski patrol.

Patrol continued the School Education
program with weekly presentations delivered
to visiting school groups. The focus is on snow
safety and accepted/expected slope use.
Keystone
The ski patrol exchange program with
Keystone had one US patroller come to
Hotham and one Hotham patroller given the
opportunity to go to Keystone. The exchange
program gives patrollers the chance to learn
and exchange ideas and is beneficial to all
participants.

2012/2013
Actual

2013/14
Actual

107

114

24

20

128

149

Winter
Days for Winter
Night Skiing Nights

September saw an endless run of fine days
and mild temperatures. Due to a dense
snowpack, minimal rain and freeze cycle
that occurred most nights, the snow base
sustained the warm weather. Good surface
conditions prevailed with dry snow during
June, July and early August. The remainder
was spring like melt/freeze conditions
with delayed openings at Keoghs, Orchard
and the Extreme Area due to ice hazards.
Blue Ribbon lift closed August 19, Keoghs,
Orchard and Gotcha lifts closed September
7, whilst Heavenly Valley, Village, Road
Runner, Summit and Big D all ran until
closing day.

Accidents

Search and Rescue

Ski Patrol

Avalanche Control

There were no beyond the boundary
searches this year, although four Hotham
patrollers joined the search and recovery
efforts for the two men who died in an
avalanche on Mt Bogong.

Paid Ski Patrol Staff

Junior Open Day

Volunteer Ski Patrol Trainees

This year saw the first Junior Open Days.
Three groups of 10 school children (aged
10-15) from the Dinner Plain School spent
4 hours learning about all things ski patrol.
They were shown several skills throughout

Ski Patrol Trainees Shifts

The consistent and large snowfalls in late
June to early August produced substantial
avalanche hazard. Avalanche control work
took place and significant hazard was
mitigated on several mornings in the Wall
of Death and Extreme areas. All control
work was carried out without the use of
explosives, and all areas were opened to the
public in a timely manner.
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The Patrol attended to 841 callouts, with 471
requiring further treatment at the medical
center. The accident rate per thousand skier
days was 1.51 per thousand skier days, which
is well below the accepted international
average of 2.4 per thousand skier days. Most
accidents were located on beginner areas
of Summit and Big D, followed by the high
traffic area of Slalom Gully. There were very
few accidents in the Extreme area and none
beyond the ski area boundary or at the Wire
Plain snow play area.

Maximum Natural Snow Depth (cm)
Total Accumulated Snowfall (cm)

299

286

Visitor Days

264,527

332,281

Skier Days (Approx)

193,212

246,684

Accident Rate per 1000 Visitor Days

0.95

1.18

Accident Rate per 1000 Skier Days

1.30

1.51

Incidents Attended by Ski Patrol

599

841

Incidents referred to Medical Centre by Ski Patrol

301

471

19

20

942

1167

Paid Ski Patrol Staff Shifts
Volunteer Ski Patrol Staff

33

33

Volunteer Ski Patrol Shifts

234

347

Cross Country Ski Patrol Shifts
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snow depth yrs 2000's

TRANSIT
OPERATIONS

Snow Depth Comparison
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We have a fleet of eight 70 passenger
Mercedes urban transit buses providing
customer transport throughout the Resort
including long term car parks and the cross
country areas. These buses have been
winterised to ensure that they are able to
function safely and efficiently in our alpine
environment. Due to the layout of the Resort

SNOW
PLAY
Our snow play and toboggan area located at
Wire Plain has proved to be a very popular
attraction for families of all ages. First
time visitors come from far and wide to
experience this fun alpine recreation. It is an
activity that anyone can enjoy and at a low
cost. The site at Wire Plain is protected from
extreme weather conditions and provides a
beautiful area for families and non-skiers

who are enjoying the snow for the first time
or regular guests to the mountain.

for transporting visitors are two of many
services the Board provides.

The Board supports a private operator
hiring toboggans, kid’s snowmobiles and
delivering a safe environment for other
related snow play activities. Grooming of
the toboggan area (weather permitting)
and providing an intra village bus system

The Board plans to expand facilities in the
snow play area included in Mt Hotham’s
Draft Resort Master Plan and are
committed to seeking ways to fund basic
infrastructure development including,
electricity and water supply, toilets, and a
day centre.

The Mount Hotham Resort Management
Board provides a free cross country trail
system. With this year’s healthy snow fall, the
cross country trails held up extremely well for
the season. Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board’s groomers utilised the excellent
conditions by snow farming and harvesting to
ensure the best coverage of the trails.
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The ‘Hotham to Dinner Plain’ race was held
with exceptional conditions to previous years.
It was a successful and enjoyable day for all
participants.
Mt Hotham had an international guest visit the
Resort and Biathlon range for the Victorian
Biathlon Championships. International
Biathlon Union (IBU) representative Coach
Ubaldo Prucker is one of the founding
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members, and was also former VicePresident of the IBU. Coach Prucker played a
major role with Biathlon in both 2010 Olympic
Winter Games and 2013 Winter University
Games in Italy. This was a very exciting time
for Australian Biathlon to introduce Coach
Prucker to Mt Hotham and showcase the
mountain’s Biathlon facilities.

No major accidents or major breakdowns
were reported this season reflecting the skill
of the drivers, management systems and the
high level of maintenance and interaction
provided by the work shop mechanics.

SNOW
CLEARING
Immediately after snowfalls, areas within
the resort including day and overnight
car parks, bus stops, loading zones and
some pedestrian and skier access areas
are initially cleared and further monitored
by MHRMB to assist guests, commercial
operators and staff.

CROSS COUNTRY
SKIING

Transit operations has a staff of 20, comprised
of experienced returning staff and new
recruits. Our staff come from a wide range
of backgrounds and experience and are aged
from 28 years to 63 years. Customer service
experience and good inter-personal skills
are highly regarded. This depth provides a
wealth of life experience and knowledge to
draw on. All staff are required to have as a
minimum: a Medium Rigid Licence, Victorian
Taxi Directorate Drivers Accreditation and

Overall, there were 2,850 hours of snow
clearing operations within the 2014 winter
season; similar to the 2,680 hours for 2013.
The construction of car parking for the 1750
apartments accessible from Higgi Drive saw
snow clearing operations in this area for the
first time in 2014.

4000
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

2850

50

All Transit Operations staff are multi skilled
and operate as bus drivers or car parkers as
required. Three Vehicle Accountability Officers
monitor the day and overnight parking areas
to ensure compliance with the Resorts
parking regulations. Overall compliance
continues to improve, assisting the safe and
efficient functioning of the Resort.

2680

100 100

Hazardous Area Driving Authority. Eight
new drivers successfully completed the 2.5
day Hazardous Area Bus Driving course
conducted by National Industrial Skills
Training (Wodonga T.A.F.E.) in June. All
participants completed the course attaining a
high level of competence.

3459

2014

2014

and the extreme weather conditions the
transport service operates 19 hours per day
to ensure the safety and comfort of Resort
visitors. Our bus operating hours are longer
than any other Ski Resort in Australia. With
all buses in operation, the Village Transport
has the capacity to transport in excess of
11,200 patrons per day. We estimate that over
the entire season we have over 1.1 million
individual passenger trips. The extreme
conditions that we operate in demand a high
level of driving skill, adaptability and safe
operating practices.

2012

2013

2014

1995

2004

150 150

Transit Operations consists of the internal
Village Bus Transport System and Car
Parking Services for day and overnight
visitors. The transport system operates
between 6.30am and 2.00am (3.00am on
Fridays for late arrivals) seven days a week
during the designated snow season. Parking
services and direction is provided to day
and overnight visitors between 7.00am and
2.00am (3.00am on Fridays) with additional
staff and buses rostered for busy arrival
nights. The transport system interfaces
with Parking Services to provide guests with
a seamless service throughout the Resort
whether they are arriving for the day or an
overnight visit.
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Key services provided by the Board
include a reliable supply of potable
water that conforms to Australian

Drinking Water Guidelines,
the collection and processing
of wastewater to comply with
Environment Protection Authority
(EPA) license limits and the
Department of Human Services Risk
Management Plan, the disposal of
putrescible waste at the Cobungra
landfill in accordance with the EPA
best practise guidelines for landfills

exempt from licencing (LEFL) and the
storage and supply of LPG throughout
the Resort in compliance with the Gas
Safety Act 1997. In addition, services
are maintained by Geotechnical
and Capital Works programs, Asset
Management Systems and Fleet
Maintenance.

ASSET
MANAGEMENT
The provision of compliant and
well maintained infrastructure and
equipment is a critical success
factor for the Resort, particularly
given the Resorts geographic and
climatic profile. Key objectives of
our capital works programs have
been to augment infrastructure to
meet development demand, provide
enhancement to village aesthetics,
guest services and operational capacity
through improvement to long term
infrastructure and development. As
much infrastructure is underground,
the Board has also been conscious
of providing a sense of progress
for stakeholders through balanced

provision of visible community facility
or aesthetic improvement in the Resort.
Significantly, the Board is responsible
for key utility services and infrastructure
including potable water, sewerage, LPG
and stormwater systems. These utility
systems have been installed over the
past 35 years to various standards. In
the previous ten years much work has
be undertaken on locating, identifying,
undertaking inspections and logging
these key infrastructure elements.
Extensive work on upgrading, extending
and replacing components of these
systems has been completed to date.
Independent engineering consultants

have historically provided detailed
reports to inform the decision making
process to determine the priorities for
upgrade and repair of assets.
The majority of the Boards underground
assets were mapped in 2003-04. During
the current reporting period work to
survey and map of all valves and the
overall reticulation system for potable
water supply was completed and stored
within the Boards GIS system asset
management system.

To ensure the supply of safe, high
quality drinking water to consumers
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There have been several changes and
upgrades at the Mt Hotham Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP) during 2014
which have led to an overall improvement
in plant performance.
The flow splitter pit just past the inlet works
was upgraded with installation of two new
penstock flow gates which can direct flow
either to tank one or to tank four. This enables
tanks to be easily taken offline for cleaning
and maintenance during the summer. They
can also be used to split the flows between
the two flow paths in the event of the sludge
storage areas being full. This allows tank 3
to be taken offline to become a temporary
digester for sludge storage.
During the annual maintenance program last
summer all the aeration tanks, the digester
and the gravity thickener were cleaned
and inspected. The diffusers in tank 3 were
replaced with new ones, improving overall
aeration in the system. This summer we will
replace the diffusers in tanks four and five,
bringing them in line with tanks one and two,
again, improving overall aeration efficiency.
We are also installing a second dosing point
for alum and caustic to improve flocculation

POTABLE
WATER
The source of the Resort’s water supply
is the upper reaches of Swindlers
Creek. A catchment area of 177
hectares with a number of small spring
fed tributaries flowing into Swindlers
Weir. Water flows, under gravity from
the weir to the raw water pump house.
It is then pumped up the rising main
to storage tanks on the summit of Mt
Higginbotham. The stored raw water
flows to one of two ultra violet (UV)
facilities for disinfection immediately
prior to distribution for customer use.

WASTE
WATER
and settling in the clarifier. This will improve
the feedwater quality for the ultrafiltration
plant and lead to longer run time and less
down time.
The biosolids dewatering program (waste
sludge from the treatment process) at
the Cobungra evaporation pan continued
last summer with a complete drying of all
biosolids from season 2012. Biosolids from
season 2013 are currently in the evaporation
pan and underway. Dewatering involves
treating the biosolids to a stage where they
are greater than 65% solids and sterilised
through application of lime and UV radiation.
This dry product will then be mixed with soil
and utilised for landfill cell capping.
The key objectives of Mt Hotham WWTP
are to continually work towards improving
overall operational efficiency, effluent quality
and biosolids reuse in compliance with our
EPA license. An operational error in March
2014 resulted in two indicators within the
EPA licence “discharge to water” table
being exceeded. Non-compliance against
the licence was reported to the EPA. During
sludge removal works in March 2014, large
quantities of supernatant were returned to

the system that was experiencing low inflows,
biological processes were disrupted resulting
in the maximum levels for suspended solids
and biological oxygen demand (5days) being
exceeded for a short period. Sludge removal
to the evaporation pans at Cobungra began
in 2012. Standard operating procedures have
been and will continue to be reviewed as
issues arise.
Our main challenge for the coming year
will be to increase the amount of reclaimed
water sent up to Loch dam and therefore
decrease the discharge to the environment
as much as possible. During the reporting
period the sewerage treatment plant
received over 72 megalitres of inflows from
the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort. During
January and February the inlet works were
diverted for maintenance with no data being
recorded. The largest inflows, approximately
76 percent, are received during the winter
months June to September, as seen in
the figure below. The ultrafiltration facility
operated between May to October and
treated 11 megalitres of sewerage to Class
A standards to be pumped to Loch Dam for
snowmaking within the resort.

Comparison of flows at the sewerage treatment plant
25000

and to meet regulatory compliance,
weekly drinking water samples are
collected and tested for E. coli and
turbidity. Samples are taken at two
points; immediately after UV treatment
and at two of several designated
consumer tap points throughout the
Resort. Monthly sampling is also taken
from the raw water weir prior to UV
treatment. No E. coli was detected in
any of the 53 samples from the drinking
water reticulation system during the
reporting period achieving 100 per cent
compliance with the drinking water
quality standards. A copy of the 20132014 Drinking Water Annual Report can

2013 / 2014

be found on the website at
www.mthotham.com.au
The Board holds an annual diversion
licence with Goulburn Murray Water for
the extraction of water from Swindlers
Creek. The Resort consumed an annual
total of 97.1 megalitres of water for the
reporting period, 57.0 megalitres during
the period 1st June to 30th September
2014. This equates to 0.17 kL per visitor
day. In comparison, during 2012-13 the
Resort consumed an annual total of
79.9 megalitres, 47.3 megalitres during
winter at a rate of 0.18 kL per visitor day.

20000

KL

OUR SERVICES

Under the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997 the Board
is responsible for the provision of a
range of key infrastructure services
that support the safe and reliable
operation of the Resort.

15000
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The Board has assessed the operations
at Cobungra landfill with regard to the
published guidelines. A full environmental
risk assessment of the site was conducted
by ERM with two groundwater monitoring
bores and landfill gas bores installed in
2012. The Board recognises the greatest
risk to the site comes from potential
groundwater contamination as the site
is located on land with a Segment A
groundwater table. The Board has initiated
training for staff to conduct regular
groundwater sampling to further assess
management of the site.
During the reporting period the Board
participated in a “Future Landfill Option
Study” for the North East Victoria region
with John Nolan and the North East
Regional Waste Management Group. As
an extension of this broad project the
Board is working to assess in greater
detail the future options of waste disposal
for the Mount Hotham Resort. Options
for collaborative partnerships with East
Gippsland Shire are also being explored.
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Litter Reduction Program
The Board conducts a regular roadside
litter collection program which is carried
out every winter and an intensive program
upon snow melt. Large collections of litter
each year reflect the impact this has on the
environment. The annual “Clean up Hotham
Day” was held on the 23rd October. It is a
community effort with MHRMB staff, MHSC
staff and lease holders all getting involved.
The Board maintains 22 public place bins
including waste, recycling and cigarette
“butt” bins throughout the Resort that have
been audited for the previous four years.
Two audits of contents were conducted
during the winter season; results were
consistent with previous years and
recycling quantities are increasing.
Next winter the Board will collaborate with
Terracycle, a company who collect difficult
recycling items such as cigarette butts.
Collected cigarette butts from bins will be
recycled into assorted plastic mixes for
materials to be used in manufacturing of
products such as outdoor furniture and
kerbing. The process is at no cost to the
Board as registration and postage are free.
Each kilo of material sent to the company
earns points for a charity of your choice;
the Board will nominate Camp Quality.
Solid Waste
MHRMB is responsible for the collection
and disposal of household putrescible
waste generated within the Resort
boundaries, from Wangaratta Ski Club
(near Dargo Road) through to and including
the Mother J’s snow clearing station.
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The diversion of organics, reducing the
amount of solid waste going to landfill and the
focusing on recycling all assist the MHRMB
to continually strive to improve its waste
management to protect our sensitive and
unique environment. Our recycling/transfer
station shed was tripled in size in summer
2013/14 to help streamline our operations.
MHRMB were successful in obtaining a
grant from Sustainability Victoria under the
‘Smarter Resources Smarter Business:
Recycling Project’, which enabled the
purchase of two balers and associated
equipment for baling cardboard, aluminum
cans, P.E.T plastics and H.D.P.E plastics. A
total of 64.8 tonnes of comingled recyclables,
1.8 tonnes of baled plastic and aluminium,
32.9 tonnes of baled cardboard were collected
for the year. MHRMB correspondingly
matched the recycling project grant funding
from Sustainability Victoria, as well as
contributed another $5000 towards
increasing efficiencies and reducing waste
to the existing recycling facilities.
Collection of organic material is continuing
to increase since its inception in 2010
with a total of 29.6 tonnes of food waste
taken to Shepparton for recycling into soil
conditioner. This immense effort shows
mountain guests and staff are committed to
this program with more lodges, commercial
and private properties taking up the extra
task of separating food waste from the main
waste stream, thus reducing waste to our
landfill. Also collected was approximately
4800 litres of used cooking oil, which is
converted by a local into bio-diesel.
Two open days were held over the
winter season at our new shed, with an
impressive turn out from the general
public. The solid waste staff demonstrated
the recycling procedures MHRMB carry out
on the mountain and explained where the
final product is sent to finish the recycling
process. MHRMB thanks everyone for
their presence on the day; and their
commitment to recycling and investing in
our future.

LPG propane is a clean, efficient and
cost effective energy source. The Board
operates and maintains the LPG storage
facility at Mt Hotham. Energy Safe Victoria
conducts an annual audit of the facility and
regular maintenance checks of the cathodic
protection, LPG leak survey and tank
regulator. The Gas Safety Act requires gas
companies to develop and implement a safety
case as the central mechanism in acquitting
their safety obligations.
An emergency management exercise was
held in September 2014 to test the MHRMB
Emergency Management Plan and associated
Gas Safety Case. The responding agencies
were CFA, Vic Police, Ambulance Victoria and
MHRMB. The drill assessed the full range of
response procedures to a gas emergency and
ascertained compliance with MHRMB’s gas
audit requirements.
Origin Energy is the supplier of LPG to the
Board. The Board and Origin work together
to ensure improvements are made and
maintenance schedules of the system
are conducted.

LPG purchased by the
Mount Hotham Resort
Litres
1,500,00

1,000,000

1,290,527

In April 2014 the EPA released the
Landfills exempt from licensing Guideline.
This guideline can be used by operators
of a landfill site exempt from licensing in
order to demonstrate compliance with the
Victorian Waste Management Policy.
It also provides guidance for works
approval applicants for landfill sites
exempt from licensing as well as
establishment and siting of new landfills;
design, operations management and
rehabilitation and aftercare.

To extend the lifespan of the site the Board
have engaged in a community education
program to inform stakeholders of the
waste management issues facing the
Resort community including limited space
availability, transport and increasing
landfill levy costs if the site is required to
close. By increasing our recycling levels
and growing the organics program the
Board can mitigate many of these issues.

1,265,963

Cobungra landfill is situated approximately
30 kilometres from the Resort along the
Great Alpine Road surrounded by native
vegetation. It is approximately 2 hectares
in size and was commissioned in the early
1980’s. The site receives putrescibles and
inert waste generated from general Resort
operations including some commercial
operations. Hazardous materials are not
received at the landfill. An area of the
landfill site is used for receiving bio-solids
from the operations at the sewerage
treatment plant. The site is a LEFL and is
closed to the public.

1,465,167

Landfill

GAS
OPERATIONS

1,490,185

SOLID WASTE
MANAGEMENT

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

Annual

1,490,185

1,465,167

1,265,963

1,290,527

Winter

1,161,368

1,071,642

972,799

995,265

500,000

0

GEOTECH
WORKS
Land Stability Program
Since 1998 the MHRMB has been
working cooperatively with Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning
(DELWP) to manage land stability risks
across the Resort. The land stability program
has identified and mitigated a range of risks
identified through the land stability survey
conducted by Snowy Mountains Engineering
Corporation in 1997.

deteriorated presenting a very high risk to
the Board. It is critical to the operation of
the Resort, 75% of Mt Hotham’s ski area
would be affected if closed and existing
infrastructure is likely to be impacted in the
event of the pipe failure or blockage during
storm events. The total project budget is
$7.6 million, of which $6.03 million is
funded through a successful application
to State Government.

The Board has implemented a three phase
low risk approach to the replacement of
the Swindlers Valley storm water pipeline.
Swindler’s Valley and its associated Heavenly
Valley ski terrain were developed in the
mid 1980’s and the original pipeline has

During the reporting period, the Board
completed preliminary design concepts,
sought planning approvals and completed
preliminary construction work including
the relocation of the high voltage electrical
cable, upgrade of Davenport Access track

for heavy vehicle use, installation of a
temporary stream diversion pipe, installation
of Slalom Gully pipeline diversion pit and
manufacturing of engineered fill from
Whiteys Car Park. Preliminary works
were successfully completed on time.
Future works include the main pipeline
replacement works, construction of an inlet
control structure, and disconnection and
reinstatement of existing services within the
valley floor.
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CAPITAL
WORKS
Each year the Board adopts a capital
works program which is prioritized from
a comprehensive 10 year program. Works
are funded from the Boards surplus so
investment in capital works varies from
year to year. From time to time the Board
secures third party funds for specific
projects. Projects are selected to meet
the highest priorities based on seven key
drivers:
• Asset Replacement;
• Infrastructure Maintenance
and Development;
• Opportunistic;
• Regulatory;

Budgeting and Total Expenditure for Year Ended 31st October 2014

• Village Aesthetics;
• Geotech/Land Stability; and
• Risk Management.
A rolling three year fleet asset replacement
program commenced during the reporting
period. A new backhoe was purchased to
replace the older machine. The Board’s
master key system was replaced. Other
equipment purchases included a baler for the
recycling shed (jointly funded by Sustainability
Victoria), a lathe for manufacturing
replacement parts at the workshop, a new
blower at the sewerage treatment plant, a
tractor mower for Resort maintenance, a
cartography machine for the medical centre
and signage and website upgrades.

Two key infrastructure maintenance
and development projects in the CAPEX
program for the reporting period included
construction of a new standalone two bay
extension to the existing Slateys Shed and
the replacement upgrade of the Lawlers
sewer line. The final works to the Hotham
and Dinner Plain trail were completed and a
new Alpine Crossing trail head shelter and
scultural piece were installed at the Loch
Car Park. Signage for the Alps short walks
was also installed. A breakdown of budgeting
and expenditure for the reporting period is
given in the table on the following page.

Consumption by direct Board activities
Electricity
(kWh)                  
2013/14

958,341

Diesel fuel            
(litres)                    

Unleaded fuel        
(litres)            

Greenhouse gas
emissions (tonnes)

165,268

21,174

1770.7

2012/13

941,477

143,448

16,791

1902.7

2011/12

950,224

133,525

17,036

1740.0

2010/11

1,006,838

127,810

21,737

1906.8

ASSET REPLACEMENTS
Fleet Replacement - Backhoe & Flail Mower
Workshop Equipment - Drilling Machine & Lathe

Capex Allocation
at 1 Nov 2013

External
Funding Received

Expenditure
Year to Date

$220,000

$0.00

$177,553

$10,000

$0.00

$12,431

$0.00

$0.00

Snow Clearing - Variable V Blade
Sewerage Treatment - New Blower

$17,000

$0.00

$19,600

Website Upgrade

$28,000

($6,591)

$13,182

Building Security - Master Key System

$33,000

$0.00

$33,230

Install 4 New Fire Hydrants

$30,000

$0.00

$2,973

Fire Fighting Equipment for Mack Truck

$30,000

$0.00

$0.00

Dolomite Pegasus Fire Break

$25,000

$0.00

$0.00

Resort Signs & Access

$75,000

$0.00

$84,011

Mt Hotham Waste Diversion Project

$50,000

($20,000)

$54,822

Diagnostic Scan Tool

$0.00

$0.00

$6,750

Other - Unbudgeted Items

$0.00

$0.00

$15,912

Garbage Hutch - Alpine Haven

$0.00

$0.00

$3,575

Garbage cage to Fit Kassbroher

$0.00

$0.00

$7,780

Grit Bin with Auger

$0.00

$0.00

$5,477

Cardiograph machine medical centre
Asset replacements sub-total

$0.00

$0.00

$5,796

$518,000

($26,591)

$443,093

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
Slatey Vic Roads Shed

$180,000

$0.00

$151,700

Loch Car Park Trail Head Shelter & Signs

$15,000

($10,000)

$12,432

Hotham DP Trail Final Construction

$40,000

$0.00

$37,363

Lawler’s Car Park - Sewer Replacement Program

$80,000

($65,000)

$85,584

Bus Stop 8 - Seal, Drain & Shelter

$45,000

$0.00

$0.00

$360,000

($75,000)

$287,079

$50,000

($50,000)

$0.00

Infrastructure sub-total
GEO-TECHNICAL
GAR Batter Works Fountains
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Swindlers Valley Pipe Replacement

$7,526,544

($7,154,544)

$2,613,281

Total Geo-Technical Expenditure

$7,576,544

($7,204,544)

$2,604,172

Total Capital Expenditure

$8,454,544

($7,306,135)

$3,343,453
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Mount Hotham Resort Management’s
workshop mechanics maintain a large fleet
of vehicles, plant and equipment in full
readiness for a variety of tasks throughout
the year. Core services include transport,
garbage collection, oversnow plant and
equipment such as snowmobiles, oversnow
Kassborers for garbage collection and cross
country grooming, and larger plant for snow
clearing. Smaller plant such as firefighting
slip on units, generators and chainsaws have
maintenance requirements that ensure the
best possible condition for all of our assets.
The MK4 0305 Mercedes Benz buses
that were commissioned for winter 2013
performed well this season. Weekly safety
checks and preventative maintenance on
buses and other fleet vehicles continue to
be successful in reducing breakdowns and
increased the overall reliability of the fleet.
Periodic maintenance was carried out on
heavy plant and light fleet vehicles to prevent
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unscheduled breakdowns and ensure
reliability throughout the winter season.
The 2013/14 Capital Works program
purchased a Mack Truck to be used for the
Pipeline Project which is being utilized in
transporting large pipe sections down into
Swindlers Valley. Other upgrades included
a Cat Backhoe to replace an older machine.
MHRMB have started a fleet upgrade
program which will continue over the next
3 years. Replacing these items on a regular
schedule reduces maintenance costs,
unplanned breakdowns and ensures better
trade in prices before it depreciates past its
optimum replacement value.
The workshop oversnow bays constructed
last summer were used for Kassborer and
other oversnow maintenance. Additional
items for the workshop included a ‘lathe’
for manufacturing replacement parts and
items for specialist projects, which would
otherwise involve costly imports.
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Future renovations to the workshop will
include the relocation of the amenities
and tearoom facilities, a drying room and
new shelving.
Annually an external audit is conducted on
the buses, where tests include a dynamic
test, break rolling resistant and visual
inspections. This determines most defects
and faults. This year all buses received no
visual faults and were issued with clean
Roadworthy Certificates before the winter
season commenced. The bus inspectors
were suitably impressed with the results
and congratulated the workshop staff on
the sound condition of the buses. This is a
testament to the effective summer works
program that the workshop carries out
every year.

OUR DEVELOPER SERVICES

FLEET
MAINTENANCE

One of the key legislative objectives
of the Board is the development of
Mount Hotham in a manner that is
sustainable and compatible with
the environment. Mt Hotham has
significant recreational attributes
afforded by its unique location and
environment; it also has substantial
future development opportunities,
including available land for ski
area expansion, opportunity for
enhanced and augmented snowmaking capabilities and potential to
further develop winter and summer
amenities.
The Board’s approach to sustainable
growth and development of the
Resort is founded in the vision of
“High on Hotham – Australia’s
Premier Alpine Experience” and a
strategy that will:

•	Maintain and build upon its
functional role as a preeminent
winter tourist destination
through the provision of a
diversity of winter activities and
experiences.
•	Focus on expanding
opportunities for summer/
non-winter season activities and
experiences in a sustainable way.
•	Encourage new commercial
development opportunities which
builds upon substantial asset
investment.
•	Facilitate a new ‘village heart’
at Mt Hotham Village to
accommodate new commercial,
leisure and recreational hub of
the Resort.

•	Ensure Davenport Village, Wire
Plain and Whiskey Flat precincts
perform supporting roles, based
on expectations of Resort users
and visitors.
•	Ensure visitors are seamlessly
directed to their intended
destination to reduce travel
time, thereby increasing their
recreational enjoyment of the
Resort.
During this reporting period the
development focus has been on the
preparation of a Resort Master Plan
for the Resort and the resolution of
the planning impediments associated
with Bushfire Management Overlay
and native vegetation offset
provisions.

MASTER
PLAN
Hansen Partnership was engaged
to develop the Resort Master
Plan for Mt Hotham in January.
The aim of the plan is to ensure
future development of Mt Hotham
proceeds within the context of a
clearly documented and strategically
supported policy framework. Once
finalised the Mount Hotham Resort
Master Plan will provide certainty
for stakeholders and investors and
confidence for Government that Mt
Hotham’s functional role and future
opportunities are appropriately
managed and coordinated.
The Resort Master Plan for Mt
Hotham will guide and facilitate future
development and the ongoing evolution
of Mt Hotham as one of Victoria’s
premier Alpine Resorts. This includes
a continued winter season focus and
expanded, as well as economically
sustainable, year round activity.

The work completed so far has
resulted in the development of:
•	An analysis of the existing
conditions of Mt Hotham and the
designation of 5 activity node
‘precincts’ being:
Hotham Central - ‘Alpine Action’
Over Snow Link - ‘Alpine Connection’
Davenport - ‘Alpine Retreat’
Wireplain - ‘Alpine Introduction’
Whiskey Flat - ‘Alpine Training’
•	An overall Mt Hotham Resort
Framework Plan to guide the
functional roles of designated
precincts within the Resort.
•	Specific vision statements and
Framework Plans for each of the
5 designated precincts.
In the drafting and development of
the Mt Hotham Resort Master Plan,
public comment and feedback was
sought through a series of workshops
held in August at Melbourne and on
the mountain. These sessions were
well attended and strong support
for the draft plan obtained. Specific
agency consultation sessions were also

conducted in September. The outcome
of these consultation sessions were
synthesized and have been incorporated
into the plan development.
This work now forms the basis of,
and is contained within the draft
Precinct Development Plan which
was submitted for Ministerial review
in October. Once finalised the Resort
Master Plan will identify the medium
to long term vision for Mt Hotham to
coordinate the direction for future
development. The final Resort Master
Plan will not seek to nominate fixed or
mandatory outcomes, rather provide
a flexible ‘road map’ to guide future
development initiatives.
As prescribed by the Alpine Resorts
Strategic Plan 2012, other elements
of the Resort Master Plan will contain
further information dealing with:
•

Infrastructure

•

Native Vegetation Provisions

•	Fire and Emergency Management
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NATIVE
VEGETATION
In 2013 the Government released
reforms to regulations for the permitted
clearing of native vegetation to deliver
better environmental outcomes and
reduce confusion and costly red tape
for landholders and farmers. In July,
2013 the Minister outlined details for the
development of a Strategic Offset Approach
for the Alpine Resorts to be led by the
Department of Environment and Primary
Industries with the following key principles:
i.	Developers of alpine Resorts will
follow standard approval process
under the Planning and Environment
Act 1987 for activities that impact on
native vegetation.
ii.	Developers of alpine Resorts will
set out their long-term offset
requirements associated with alpine
Resort Master plans.
iii.	Offsets on Crown land will be set aside
specifically for developments on alpine
Resorts.
iv.	Developers of alpine Resorts will have
the option of purchasing the required
offsets from the state government with
minimum transaction costs.
v.	Offsets for developments of alpine
Resorts will meet equivalent
regulatory standards as elsewhere
across Victoria.

In December, 2013 amendment VC105 was
incorporated into all Planning Schemes in
Victoria to implement the Government’s
reforms by:
•	Amending Clause 12.01 (Biodiversity)
to reflect the new ‘no net loss’
approach rather than the previous ‘net
gain’ approach.
•	Amending Clause 52.16 (Native
vegetation precinct plan) to reflect
the intent of the native vegetation and
biodiversity reform package; and
•	Amending Clause 52.17 (Native
vegetation) to rationalise information
requirements, implement the new
risk-based assessment pathways,
include a simplified approach
for applications under a low-risk
based pathway and streamline the
determination of offset requirements.
•	Amending Clause 66.02-2 (Native
Vegetation - Referral and Notice
Provisions) to require the class of
application in the high risk pathway as
defined in the document ‘Permitted
clearing of native vegetation –
Biodiversity assessment guidelines’
(Department of Environment and
Primary Industries, September 2013)
be referred to the Secretary to the
Department of Environment and
Primary Industries as a recommending
referral authority.

•	Amending Clause 81.01 (Table of
incorporated documents in this
scheme) to replace ‘Victoria’s Native
Vegetation – Framework for Action’
with a new incorporated document
‘Permitted clearing of native vegetation
– Biodiversity assessment guidelines’
(Department of Environment and
Primary Industries, September 2013)
In September, 2014 all Resorts
participated in a meeting with the
Department of Environment and Primary
Industries to review progress on the
Strategic Offset Approach principles for
Alpine Resorts. There is still further work
to be done to develop the regime for the
option of purchasing offsets outside of
the Resorts and offsets on Crown land
set aside specifically for developments
on alpine Resorts. For offsets within the
Resorts, there now appear to be difficulties
in meeting the security requirements of
the new guidelines; this issue is being
reviewed.
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Industries and the Resort Management
Boards have been working collaboratively
to develop a schedule to the BMO which
would establish an alternative approach to
prioritising the protection of human life at
the alpine Resorts.

Over the last 18 months the Country Fire
Authority, the Department of Transport,
Planning and Local Infrastructure, the
Department of Environment and Primary

In March, 2014 amendment C22 was
adopted and approved by the Minister for
Planning. This amendment introduced a
Schedule to the BMO to modify most of
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implemented satisfactory emergency
management arrangements aimed at
prioritising the protection of human life.
The modified requirements then provide
that construction of works must be one of
the following:

This now means that the modified
standards apply where an application to
construct a building or carry out works
is accompanied by a letter from the CFA
stating that, in its view, the Board has

2.	Determined by a fire safety engineer
that the building will be capable of
withstanding an equivalent level of
predicted bushfire attack and levels
of exposure. (The definition of fire

1.	BAL-40 construction in accordance
with AS3959.

safety engineer under the Building
Regulations means a registered
building practitioner in the category of
engineer, class of fire safety engineer.)
3.	Determined using an alternative
methodology to the satisfaction of the
relevant fire authority.
Buildings must also be provided with
defendable space to the satisfaction
of the CFA.

LEASING
The Alpine Resorts Leasing Policy,
including the standardised lease
documentation, provides the framework
for the leasing of Crown Land in alpine
Resorts. The policy approved in 2002
takes into account probity, conflict of
interest, public interest and competition

requirements and is based on the
principles of demonstrated public and
economic benefit, transparent lease
allocation and process, appropriate lease
terms and conditions, consistent lease
documentation and approval processes.

Since the adoption of the Alpine Resorts
Leasing Policy, 35 new leases have been
issued in the Alpine Standard Lease form
with an average lease term of 26 years.
This represents 40% of the leased or
occupied sites within the Resort.

The inspection program continued the focus
on ensuring existing buildings achieve
a satisfactory level of fire and life safety.
Providing guidance on the administrative
obligations for owners and managers
to maintain nominated essential safety
measures within their building, has also
been a priority. During the inspection
process the Fully Enclosed Covered Area
of all buildings was measured for rating
purposes.

A total of twenty one (21) buildings were
inspected with the majority of issues
identified relating to minor deficiencies
in exit signage, door furniture and smoke
alarm/detector coverage.

BUILDING
SERVICES

BUSHFIRE
MANAGEMENT
The Bushfire Management Overlay (BMO)
of the planning scheme is a planning
control that aims to implement the State
planning policy for bushfire, the objective
of which, is to strengthen community
resilience to bushfire.

At the same time the Board was preparing
the necessary emergency management
arrangements in the form of the Mt
Hotham Community Bushfire Emergency
Management Plan which was endorsed by the
CFA on 28th May, 2014. The endorsement of
this plan gave practical effect to the modified
standards of the Schedule to the BMO.

the standards in Clause 52.47 Bushfire
Protection: Planning Requirements subject
to the implementation of emergency
management arrangements to prioritise
the protection of human life at each Alpine
Resort. The Schedule also included a
number of exemptions from the permit
requirements of the BMO for minor
buildings and works.

The Board has a legislative obligation
under s212 of the Building Act 1994 to
administer the provisions of the Act,
the Building Regulations 2006 and the
Building Code of Australia within its
area of jurisdiction. During the last
reporting period the Board continued the
engagement of the services of Mr. Phillip
Davern to fulfil the role of Municipal
Building Surveyor in order to carry out its
responsibilities under the legislation.

Building Permits were issued for six
premises and enforcement action was
instituted in two other cases.
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PROPERTY
SALES
Real estate sales turnover has declined
since the peak in 2004 which produced
an annual sales volume of $16.4M. In the
nine years since to 2013 sales volume has
ranged from $5.7M to $10.2M per calendar

STATUTORY
PLANNING
year. The year to date (October 2014) total
of $3.2M compares to $4.2M for the same
period last year.

Turnover in real estate sales for the last 17
years is shown graphically below.

The Alpine Resorts Planning Scheme
sets out the policies and requirements
for the use, development and protection
of land at Mt Hotham. The Minister for
Planning is both the planning authority
and responsible authority for the scheme,

which is administered on his behalf by the
Department of Planning and Community
Development (DPCD). The Board has
referral authority powers in relation to
servicing and land stability and it can also
provide comments on planning applications

more generally as the land manager.
There were 14 amendments to the Alpine
Resorts Planning Scheme last year as
follows:

Hotham Sales Volume 1998 - 2014
$18,000,000
$16,000,000

Amendment  
Number

Date

Brief Description

$14,000,000
$12,000,000

VC99

10-Dec-13

Applies to all planning schemes and modifies standards dealing with walls, setbacks
and windows near site boundaries.

$10,000,000

VC105

20-Dec-13

Implements reforms to Victoria’s native vegetation and biodiversity provisions.

$8,000,000

VC115

4-Apr-14

Applies to all planning schemes to ensure where there is no public land manager, all
use and development requires a planning permit, and has the consent of DELWP to
ensure that the Crown’s interests are taken into consideration.

C22

10-Apr-14

Introduces a Schedule to the BMO to modify most of the standards for bushfire
protection subject to the implementation of emergency management arrangements to
prioritise the protection of human life at each Alpine Resort.

VC108

16-Apr-14

Amends time frames for bushfire recovery and replacement buildings.

VC111

16-Apr-14

Amends urban growth zone to align with changes introduced under VC103.

VC106

30-May-14

Amends all planning schemes to recognise Plan Melbourne and Victoria’s regional
growth plans.

VC116

1-Jul-14

Implements the General Residential Zone into Victorian planning schemes where the
reformed residential zones have not been applied by 1 July, 2014.

VC109

31-Jul-14

Changes all planning schemes by amending provisions relating to bushfire bunkers,
native vegetation clearing by private landowners on Crown land, planning for bushfire,
bushfire protection and referral and notice provisions.

VC113

31-Jul-14

Changes all planning schemes to enable minor amendments to be made to a Wind
energy facility planning permit issued before 15 March, 2011.

VC117

22-Aug-14

Amends all planning schemes in Victoria by introducing a new Clause 11.14 – Planning
for distinctive areas and including the Mornington Peninsula Localised Planning
Statement (Victorian Government, 2014) as a policy guideline.

VC118

22-Aug-14

Amends all planning schemes to address a number of minor technical errors.

VC120

4-Sep-14

Changes all planning schemes by introducing a new Clause 52.43 Live music and
entertainment noise.

VC114

19-Sep-14

Changes all planning schemes by introducing the new VicSmart planning assessment
provisions.

$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$0

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
The median price for property transactions
for the previous ten years from 2003 to
2013 has been in the $210,000 to $397,000
price bracket and the year to date median

price of 2014 sales is $317,000 which
represents an average unit price per
square metre of $3,568.

The number of sales for 2014 are down
compared to previous years.
Details are shown graphically below.
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Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board contract Indigo Shire Council’s
Environmental Health team to carry out
regulatory duties under the Food Act 1984
and the Public Health and Wellbeing Act
2008. This service ensures full compliance
and a high standard of public health within
the Resort. Their report is outlined below.
Food Premises
During the 2014 season 19 food premises
were registered with Council falling either
into a Class 1, Class 2 or Class 3 risk
category. One business closed this year.
Mount Hotham Food Premises
Category 1

1

Category 2

17

Category 3

1

Total		

19

Routine inspections
All 19 registered food premises were
inspected and 2 follow up inspections
were conducted for the premises that did
not comply. Throughout the season the
majority of food premises inspected were
found to be satisfactory and we are of the
opinion that the standard of food safety
has improved during the last 12 months.
The issue of food catering for school
groups was streamlined this year and all
lodges and caterers complied with all food
safety (program) requirements. Council
identified one premise which requires
extensive structural improvements.
Council understands that renovations are
already planned for this premise during
the coming summer season.
Council did not receive a food related
complaint during this season.
With the State Government’s release of a
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new version Food Safety Program template
in June, some leeway has been given
to proprietors to make the transition to
this new version. The intention behind
this new release is in keeping with the
government’s push to “reduce red tape”
for Victorian small businesses. The
Version 3 Food Safety Program for Class 2
businesses reduces the burden of recordkeeping requirement. Information and
encouragement to adopt the new FSP was
commenced mid-season and will continue
with the registration renewal period as
Fact Sheets will be provided.
Tobacco Act Compliance
Tobacco education visits were provided
to tobacco retailers, licensed premises
and eating establishments. Two retailers
were educated on sales to minors, signage
and visibility of tobacco products. There
are 2 tobacco retailers and both retailers
have addressed the non-compliance
issues identified last year with regards to
either visibility or supervision of vending
machines.

It is also anticipated that the Department
of Health will make some changes or
clarify the definitions of the various types
of prescribed accommodation. This may
affect the number and type of premises
to be registered during the future ski
seasons. Council will keep all operators
and the Resort Management Board
informed about these changes under the
Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008.
Inspections
In total 55 accommodation facilities were
inspected for overcrowding, maintenance
and cleanliness of facilities, number of
fixtures available and refuse collection and
disposal.
Throughout the season the majority of
accommodation facilities inspected were
found to be satisfactory.
No complaints were received during this
season.
Gastro Outbreaks
No outbreaks were reported this year.

Prescribed Accommodation Registration

Health Premises

Accommodation facilities are required
to be registered under the Public Health
and Wellbeing Act 2008 as prescribed
accommodation if payment is made for a
person or persons to be accommodated.
For the 2014 season there were a total of
54 accommodation facilities registered.
The issues with regards to the 2 noncompliant premises from last year have
been addressed during the off-season.
The inconsistencies with regards to selfcontained accommodation in the Resort
have been addressed this year. There are
still some inconsistencies with regards to
the registration of members only lodges.

The Public Health and Wellbeing
Regulations 2009 control potential
infectious diseases that may occur in the
above premises. These regulations set
out the requirements that proprietors
of premises registered under the Public
Health & Wellbeing Act 2008 must observe.
All premises are required to be maintained
in a clean hygienic manner.
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Two premises were registered in 2014.
Both premises were visited and were found
to comply. One of these premises opened
this year.
No complaints were received during
this season.

OUR YEAR ROUND RESORT

ENVIRONMENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES

VISITOR
SERVICES
The Great Alpine Road
The MHRMB Guest Services Team
played an active role in the assistance
of managing the GAR during the
winter season. In the past drivers
have encountered problems during
the winter season by failing to

carry or fitting wheel chains where
directed. This matter has been a
major cause of temporary road
closures on the Harrietville approach.
Guest Services were stationed
in chain fitting bays during peak
traffic times to welcome guests and
ensure their vehicles were in a state

of readiness to safely begin their
journey up the mountain.
This proactive approach ensures
visitors are prepared and well
informed for both entering and
exiting the Resort whilst successfully
preventing road closures along the
GAR and reducing accident

INNER RESORT
CAR PARKING
Highlighted by stakeholders as a
major concern around the Resort was
the complex and confusing parking
for guests and staff at Hotham. The
availability of car parks close to
accommodation, lifts and services is

one of Hotham’s greatest advantages
however as the Resort is extensive,
this lead to confusion regarding
day parking, long term parking
and loading zones. In an effort to
improve Visitor Services around

the Resort, MHRMB re-categorized
and colour coded the 73 different
existing parking zones in conjunction
with displaying 240 new signs. This
operation was a great success with
positive feedback from stakeholders.

MARKETING
Prior to the 2014 winter a position of
‘Marketing Officer’ was established.
The role has been created to support
the day to day communications of the
MHRMB’s digital platform. The Board
recognises the community’s requests

to be kept up-to-date on mountain
events and information, and social
media is one avenue in which the
MHRMB has increased awareness.
The Marketing Officer produced a
number of publications in-house

including the ‘Coming to Hotham Great Alpine Road and Car Parking
Guide’; and has been liaising with
stakeholders on digital advertising
packages to suit their individual
needs.

design; which enables pages to be
displayed in different layouts depending
on device type and screen size.

2014 Statistics for
www.mthotham.com.au

WEBSITE
During the 2013 bushfire, website
visitation numbers increased
dramatically, generating unusually high
website visits for the 2013 summer
season. Consequently a decrease of
-18% in annual visitor traffic to the
Resort website has appeared in 2014.
The website has undertaken further
development incorporating responsive

Approximately 30% of viewers use
mobile devices to view the website;
therefore the architecture of
mthotham.com.au has been upgraded
to accommodate these devices.

Annual Visits
1,087,132
Highest Day
36,488 - 24th June 2014
Highest Week
134,151 - 22nd to 28th June 2014
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WALKING
TRAILS
The iconic tracks & trail brand has been
continually used on all print material
including MHRMB vehicles and on flag
poles throughout the village. Its winter
time presence is essential for boosting Mt
Hotham’s summer profile.
Track notes and trail guides have been
updated with new content, to keep the
information fresh and current. In the lead
up to and during the Bushwalking season
a number of articles promoting Hotham’s
Iconic Tracks & Trails were also published:
•	Historic Tracks around Mt Hotham –
The Bushwalker Magazine, Vol. 38,
Issue 3, Winter 2013;
•	After the Fires, Mt Hotham’s Historic
Walking Tracks – Bushwalking News
Victoria, September 2013;
•	150th Discovery of the Upper Dargo
Goldfield – Bairnsdale Advertiser,
October 14th 2013; and
•	Busy Tracks & Trails – Alpine
Observer, 7th May 2014.
MHRMB was approached by family
descendants of a worker on the Cobungra
Ditch, William Laurie, who perished whilst
trying to cross Mt Hotham in May 1884.
Buried somewhere near Whiskey Flat, the
location of the grave remained a mystery.
Background research into William Laurie
and his death was undertaken. Local
historians and historical societies were
contacted along with family members, in

the hope that the grave may have been
re-located. All attempts proved fruitless,
though it was confirmed by several sources
that it was in vicinity of the biathlon range
at Whiskey Flat. Unfortunately over the
decades the area has been significantly
disturbed by works associated with a CRB
work camp and an old tip site. Articles
were published in local papers and
radio interviews given on Gippsland and
Goulburn Murray local ABC radio stations.
A commemorative marker is planned to
be placed at Whiskey Flat to those known
and unknown who perished during the
goldfield’s era of the Hotham region.
For the third year in a row free guided
tours have been given over long weekends,
offering attendees further historical insight
into Mt Hotham’s Tracks & Trails. 129
people attended the 10 tours, all enjoyed
the experience and expressed a desire
to return and walk the tracks again. The
Bushwalking program was themed ‘Gold,
Graves and Perilous Journeys’.
This summer saw the placement of 8
interpretive signs along the Great Alpine
Road in connection with the winter chain
bays as well as in the village. In addition
to the historical content and images a QR
code has been added to each sight. Still in
development stage, each of the QR codes
can be scanned and linked to a new mobile
web site which will provide additional
historical touring information specific to
each geographical location.

The completion of the ‘Hotham to Dinner
Plain Trail’ was accomplished with the
final surface graveled. An Aboriginal
Signage Plan was undertaken by
consultants ‘People in Nature’, liaising
with the Traditional Owners and Registered
Aboriginal parties to provide content and
design for Indigenous interpretive signage
along the trail. Negotiations are also
underway for a Traditional Aboriginal name
to be given to the trail.
Funding from the Department of Transport,
Planning & Local Infrastructure, combined
with funding from MHRMB and an in-kind
contribution from Parks Vic has seen
the construction of the Alpine Crossing
trail head shelter and a sculptural piece
for the Loch Car Park. The shelter is
representative of a gold mining stamp
battery building which stands opposite a
stylized stamp battery. This theme was
chosen for Machinery Spur and the Red
Robin mine as well as mining activity in the
locality generally. The sculpture is topped
with a flame robin, both representative of
the migratory nature of many species in
the Alps and of Bill Spargo’s quartz reef
mine the ‘Red Robin’. Trail information for
the ‘Falls to Hotham Alpine Crossing’, ‘The
Australian Alps Walking Track’ and the ‘3
Huts Walk’ have been placed in the shelter.
The shelter also contains provision for
an intentions book for walkers, providing
valuable information for bushwalker safety.

Mt Hotham Resort Management
In Beyond Hotham’s seventh year it was
the biggest program to date. With over 50
registrations and close to 100 participants,
the event was held from the 13th to 23rd
March 2014. It was great to see a strong
comeback to the program after the
unfortunate cancellation of the event in

The Board would like to sincerely thank
Gavin Moody for his dedication to the
2014 event. Every year Gavin provides

an enormous effort in conducting and
promoting the event. Likewise a big thank
you to the MHRMB staff, volunteers and
sponsors for their continued support of the
program, as well as the Mt Hotham lodges
and commercial operators who were open
for the event.
Cool Summer Festival 2014
Cool Summer Festival made its
long awaited return after last year’s
cancellation due to local bushfires. The
General Store at Mt Hotham entertained
the crowds far and wide with an event that

encapsulates the mountain’s atmosphere.
The program was three days of indulgence
over two stages showcasing the best in
Aussie music, both local and interstate.
The sun shone the entire weekend to
the comfort of close to 600 patrons
and campers. There was involvement
from many of the local accommodation
providers as well as a camping ground
located at Whiskey Flat Car Park. The
Board congratulates The General and
looks forward to seeing the festival held
again in 2015 with even more music,
dancing and family fun.

REGIONAL MARKETING
In association with the other Victorian Alpine Resorts, the Board has contributed to promotion of the alpine region and the snow industry
through ARCC, Snow Victoria and Tourism North East.

VISITOR
COMMUNICATION
• Website - an important communication tool, the website has continued to improve over the year to help better inform visitors.
• Ski Patrol Talks - provided throughout the winter season to schools and organised groups.
• Environmental Talks - provided throughout the year to schools and organised groups.
• Andrew Swift’s Historical Talks - with Andrew’s wealth of knowledge he recites tales of the gold rush era.

PUBLICATIONS
PRODUCED
• Mt Hotham Village Guide;

EVENTS
Beyond Hotham 2014

The event reunited past participants and
welcomed new friends. Beyond Hotham’s
program has a strong educational and
safety component, with topics including
getting to know your vehicle, radio, GPS
and mapping skills, flora and fauna, bush
tucker, hut history, early gold discoveries,
and responsible four wheel driving; in
conjunction with lots of social opportunities
where participants could share their
knowledge, skills and experiences.

• Mt Hotham Cross Country Guide;
• Coming to Hotham - Great Alpine Rd & Car Parking Guide;
• Mt Hotham/Dinner Plain Walks Brochure;
2013 due to devastating bushfires. More
destinations were included - broadening
the already vast track base, giving
everyone the opportunity of a hands-on
driving experience to discover the hidden
gems of the cultural and historical past
within the picturesque Victorian High
Country.

The bushfires in 2013 affected well over
15,000 hectares around Mt Hotham and
in the surrounding area. New tracks
were created and old ones smoothed out,
brushed up and re-shaped with works
carried out by Parks Vic, DEPI and other
organizations. Furthermore the safe
removal of fire affected trees within the
region took place.

• Walking Track Notes - Cobungra Ditch Walking Track and The Huts Walk.
• Free guided bushwalking A4 brochures.

STRATEGIC PARTNERS
Many organisations with an association to Mt Hotham have contributed to the Resort, these include Mt Hotham Skiing Company (MHSC),
Hotham Ski Association (HSA), Mt Hotham Chamber of Commerce, Tourism North East (TNE) and Alpine Shire. The Gunaikurnai and Mt
Hotham Stakeholders are also recognised for their contributions.
The Board appreciates the support of commercial partners Renault, Smith Optics, K2 and Patagonia.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT ON THE RIDGE
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SUSTAINABILITY
The Board remains committed
to investigating opportunities to
reduce the impact of activities and
operations on the sensitive alpine
environment. Emphasis is placed
on waste water discharge, water
consumption, waste minimization and
greenhouse gas emissions.

works to improve waste recycling
rates for cardboard, co-mingled
and organic material each year to
minimize the waste sent to landfill
at Cobungra. More information on
these programs can be found within
the relevant Utilities section of this
report.

Waste water discharge is monitored
for quality and quantity with the
Board seeking to improve Class A
water reclamation each year. Water
consumption is constantly monitored
within the SCADA system. The Board

During the 2013-14 reporting
period the Board collaborated
with CarbonLab at the University
of Queensland to complete a
greenhouse gas emission inventory
and management strategy in line with

ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS
the National Greenhouse and Energy
Reporting (NGER) Act, ISO14064
and the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting Standard. Based on data
collated for the 2012-13 reporting
period, the inventory included
emissions generated from waste to
landfill and waste water treatment
operations previously excluded from
reported GHG calculations. The next
stage is to identify options for the
Board to achieve carbon neutrality
by 2020 as identified in our Strategic
Management Plan 2013-18.

THREATENED SPECIES AND
BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION
The Victorian Alps is of special
ecological value. Alpine ecosystems
have a significant number of
threatened and endemic species.
Protected by the Flora and
Fauna Guarantee Act 1988 and
Commonwealth Environment
Protection and Biodiversity
Conservation Act 1999, the Resort
and village contain known habitat
for a number of listed endangered
species including the Mountain
Pygmy Possum, Alpine Tree Frog and
Alpine She-Oak Skink. The Board
works to preserve threatened species
and biodiversity within the Resort
through environmental programs
particularly ongoing invasive weed
and predator control programs.
Summer 2013-14 saw habitat
improvement works for the Mountain
Pygmy-Possum (Burramys parvus)
undertaken. Two basalt rock
corridors were placed under the
Davenport Access Track within the
Blue Ribbon boulder field area to
reconnect fragmentation by the
vehicle track. The track also received
drainage upgrades comprising
installation of three input storm-
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water pits, culverts and re-surfacing
of the formation while ensuring
no removal of native vegetation.
This will reduce the amount of
sedimentation runoff from the track
into boulder field habitat areas.
The Board planted 350 Podocarpus
lawrencei or Mountain Plum Pine
Trees, an important food source
around the northern face of Mount
Higgibotham. This area is subject
to ongoing restoration to improve
habitat links between the east and
western sites by providing cover
corridors. The Boards environmental
staff assisted the Alpine School on
their community service program
collecting Pimelea ligustina seed to
be sent to Healesville Sanctuary for
the Mountain Pygmy Possum animals
involved in the captive breeding
program. Pimelea seed is an
important fat source for the animals.

the Resort; Mt Little Higgibotham
and the east of Mt Higgibotham, both
above and below the Great Alpine
Road. The west Mt Higgibotham
site in the adjacent Alpine National
Park is also monitored. In 2010, the
east Mt Higgibotham site recorded
the lowest population numbers
in nearly 30 years of monitoring.
While numbers have improved, the
population estimates in November
2013 were still below the 29 year
average. Monitoring results at
Mt Little Higgibotham revealed
population estimates for sites above
and below the road to be on average.
16 adult females and 11 adult male
B. parvus were trapped in November
2013 at east Mt Higgibotham and
25 adult females and 14 adult male
B. parvus were trapped at Mt Little
Higginbotham in December 2013.

Ongoing programs to improve the condition
of the alpine environment within the
Resort include revegetation works of key
identified areas, weed control within the
village, targeting invasive species across
the Resort and monitoring and control of
predator species.
In early 2014, a willow removal program
in conjunction with Mount Hotham Skiing
Company (MHSC) was initiated. Based
on data collected in May 2012, identified
priority areas including the Upper
Swindlers potable water catchment and
skifield area were treated. Two Board staff
teamed with two MHSC staff over a two
week period. All gullies within the Upper
Swindlers catchment to One Tree Hill on
the west facing slopes and Blue Ribbon
on the east were walked. Willows, apples
and English Broom were treated and GPS
point locations taken; over 200 points were

recorded over an area of approximately
250 hectares. Future works will focus on
further downstream areas of the Swindlers
Creek catchment and revisiting key areas.
Environmental staff undertook weed
control and revegetation works at
Cobungra where spoil was removed
last year from a Vic Roads dump site.
Over 100 indigenous plants were sown
and an outbreak of Gorse controlled.
Other weed control across the village
targeted exotic Juncus species, daffodils,
blackberry, mint and Vipers bugloss. A
total of 2,987 trees, shrubs and grasses
were planted in various sites around the
Resort as part of ongoing revegetation
works. Environmental staff completed
soil stabilization work in Swindlers Valley
immediately prior to winter 2014. A
protective cover of seed free straw and
jute net was laid on the Swindlers Trail

between the Village Chair and Heavenly
Valley area.
The Board continues to support the 1080
baiting program in collaboration with
Parks Victoria both within the Resort and
the surrounding Alpine National Park.
In addition the Board utilises 10 remote
sensing cameras across tracks within the
Resort to monitor movements of deer,
foxes, cats and wild dogs. Information from
the cameras is used to assess the need
for additional shooting works to target the
number of active rabbits, foxes and cats.
During the reporting period 11 cats and
one fox were removed from the Resort
using traps and shooting techniques. Gut
analysis conducted on stomach contents
of eight animals revealed a diet of native
animals including Broad-tooth Rat, Dusky
Antechinus, Bush rats, Common ringtail
possum and Eastern Pygmy-possum.

VICTORIAN ALPS
NURSERY
The Victorian Alps Nursery propagates
a large variety of alpine and sub-alpine
species for rehabilitation and restoration
projects at all major Victorian Ski Resorts,
Mt Buffalo, the Victorian Alpine National
Parks, Kosciuszko National Park and NSW
National Parks and ski areas. Specialising
in the production and propagation of
alpine flora makes the nursery unique in
Australia. Staff at the nursery can provide
assistance to clients to obtain information
on available species and advice on
rehabilitation projects.
Highlights for the year included supplying
plants to the National Rhododendron

Gardens at Olinda, Mt Dandenong.
Managed by Parks Victoria, the established
indigenous alpine garden resembles the
flora at Mt Buller. The rehabilitation work
on Dinner Plain wetlands for Benambra,
Dinner Plain, Omeo Landcare Group was
completed with great results. Students
from the Dinner Plain School leadership
program had the opportunity to participate
with planting and weed control.
In addition to alpine areas, the nursery has
continued to supply the Alpine Shire for
rehabilitation works, following the removal
of willow along the Ovens River from Bright
to Porepunkah. Furthermore the nursery

supplied plants and the planting contract
to revegetate Happy Valley Creek and
Jubilee Park in Myrtleford; and providing
Hancocks Victorian Plantation with plants
to revegetate an old pine plantation
located on the steep hillside on the back
Porepunkah Road near Bright.
The nursery continued to supply 5000
plants to rehabilitate rock spoils of the
Snowy Hydro scheme. This year they are
focusing on supporting an existing colony of
Burramys habitat near Cabramurra NSW.

The Board continues to support
ongoing scientific research to
monitor the Mountain Pygmy-possum
population. As part of an annual
trapping program conducted by
wildlife biologist Dean Heinze three
sites are regularly monitored within
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INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY
Communications System

• Electronic data storage and backup;

System Downtime

Information systems provide a
vital service for all functions of the
Board in operating a modern and
efficient Resort. Included in the
responsibilities of the Information
Technology function are:

• I nformation system software,
hardware maintenance and
renewal;

All systems operated with sufficient
back-ups, maintenance and service
routines to enable a 100% operating
capability throughout the year.

• Communication systems including
voice, data and internet;

• General system controls and data;
• Security; and
• Mobile systems management.

EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT
Emergency Management
The Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board’s (MHRMB) Emergency
Management Plan, as required under
the Emergency Management Act
1986, continues to meet the needs
of the Mt Hotham community. The
Resort Emergency Management
Committee (MEMC) conducts formal
meetings twice a year and assists
with the planning and coordination
of emergency services for both
response and recovery within the
Resort. The Committee comprises
Board staff, Victoria Police, Victorian
State Emergency Service, Country
Fire Authority, Department of Human
Services, Resort stakeholders
and other agencies as required.
In conjunction with the Alpine
Shire (Dinner Plain EMP) and the
Committee of the Mt Hotham Airport
EMP, the Mt Hotham Resort EMP
Committee have a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) for the sharing
of resources for both response and
recovery during an emergency.
Municipal Fire Management Plan
Victoria has a long history of
community, government and
organisations working cooperatively
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to combat the threat of bushfire.
However, recent challenges such
as the decade of dry conditions,
an increase in people living in high
risk areas and the occurrence of a
number of major fires, prompted
the need for increased coordination
and cooperation to secure fire safety
across the state.
In response to these challenges the
Victorian Government established an
Integrated Fire Management Project
(IFMP) Framework for Victoria
in 2008. IFMP aims to achieve a
consistent and effective means for
fire management planning within
Victoria through a commitment to
cooperation, including information
sharing and the building of collective
knowledge.
Mt Hotham Municipal Fire
Management Planning Committee
(MFMPC) was formally established
in 2011. The Committee is a
subcommittee of the Emergency
Management Planning Committee
and the terms of reference endorsed
were based on those in Part 6A of
the Emergency Management Manual
of Victoria. Membership of the Mt
Hotham MFMPC consists of MHRMB,
CFA, DELWP and Parks Victoria.

2013 / 2014

To ensure life is prioritised to the extent
necessary to enable development to
proceed under the Bushfire Management
Overlay, consideration of measures over
and above those historically implemented
by the Resort must also be taken into
account. This includes restricting access to
the Resort when there is significant risk to
life safety from bushfire and evacuating all
but essential personnel.

For the purposes of the Mt Hotham
Planning Scheme, the Bushfire
Management Overlay and CFA
endorsement of the Schedule to the
Bushfire Management Overlay, the
Community Bushfire Emergency
Management Plan was signed off by the
MHRMB and the CFA regional director
Hume region on the 28th May 2014.

COMMUNITY
AREAS
Access and Diversity Indigenous Affairs

The Resort’s Municipal Fire
Management Plan (MFMP) was
developed through the risk based
planning process described by
ISO 3100: 2009 Risk Management
– Principles and Guidelines. As a
subset of the MFMP, this Community
Bushfire Emergency Management
Plan (BEMP) draws on the risk
assessment and risk analysis process
already undertaken through the
broader fire management planning
process. The MFMP was adopted by
the Board on 12th April 2013.

With these factors in mind the Community
BEMP was developed, and was
circulated to stakeholders for review and
endorsement. The document was then
endorsed by the Municipal Emergency
Management Planning Committee,
Municipal Fire Management Planning
Committee and the Mt Hotham Resort
Management Board.

The Board is committed to working closely
with the local Indigenous community
in developing partnerships to achieve
Aboriginal aspirations for land, culture,
heritage, family and community. The
Board liaises with various leaders and
councils in both capital works and planning
projects within the Resort. There is also
an opportunity to explore the development
of Indigenous cultural tourism through
interpretation of walks and sites. We look
forward to working closely with the Mt
Hotham Indigenous community on our
future projects.
Cultural Diversity
The Board has maintained the signage
systems which use graphic symbols
to advise Resort users of important
features about Resort use. This has been

particularly appropriate in alerting nonEnglish speaking visitors to the existence
of safety hazards and to any limitations
on the use of particular areas within the
Resort and is in line with the Government’s
Multicultural Policy.
Women
The Board has appointed two female
senior managers and a number of full and
part time female employees. The Board is
committed to providing equal opportunity
advancement for all employees and has
adopted a recruitment structure based on
a merit based selection process. The Board
is also committed and will continue to
facilitate balance where possible between
work and family responsibilities for all
employees. This is consistent with the
Government’s Office of Women’s Policy.

Youth
The Board employ youth for work
experience as the opportunity arises and
actively encourages participation by the
Alpine Leadership School. The Board
also provides regular environmental and
safety student talks throughout the winter
season. The Board proactively seeks trade
based apprentices and is in line with the
Government’s vision for young people.
Records Management
MHRMB is committed to cataloging and
filing records according to the Public
Records Act 1973. Ongoing training with
the Public Records Office of Victoria was
undertaken in the 2013-14 financial year.

Community Bushfire Emergency
Management Plan
Mount Hotham experienced
bushfires in 2003, 2006 and 2013.
During these fires various practices
were implemented regarding the
management of residents, staff and
visitors. While these practices are
understood by Resort Management,
there is a need to ensure they
are formally documented. The
Community BEMP fulfils the need
to document these procedures
including describing appropriate
triggers for when the actions are to
be implemented.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective is to provide operational
services of the workshop, fleet
management and maintenance,
transport, car parking and traffic
control, snow clearing, cross country
and ski field safety, public amenities,
visitor safety, Resort Entry, snow
play, insurance (public liability) and
plant/vehicle workshop to ensure
visitors and staff of the Resort have
a safe and enjoyable experience.
Risk Management
A full review of the Risk Management
Framework has been initiated by
the Audit & Risk Sub Committee
during the year and as a result
management are taking actions to
ensure that the Mt Hotham Resort
Management Board has practices of
risk identification and management
that are consistent with Australian/
New Zealand Standard ISO 310002009. The review consists of a full
analysis of risks associated with the
operations of the Resort by staff,
management and the Board.

I, Deborah Spring certify that the
Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board has risk management
processes in place consistent with
the Australian/New Zealand Risk
Management Standard AS/NZS ISO
31000-2009 and an internal control
system is in place that enables the
executive to understand, manage and
satisfactorily control risk exposures.
The Audit & Risk Sub Committee
verifies this assurance and that the
risk profile of the Mt Hotham Resort
Management Board has been critically
reviewed within the last 12 months.

Deborah Spring
Chairperson
Mount Hotham Resort
Management Board
31st October 2014

Outcomes of the risk review
highlighted the safety of visitors in
the hazardous alpine environment
is critical along with other risk
areas in regard to water supply,
treatment of waste products, bush
fires and management information
systems. In addition to the inherent
risks, an assessment is being made
of existing relevant controls to
provide a priority of areas seeking
attention and resources to minimise
the risks of adverse events at the
Resort. The risk management plan
is also being incorporated into the
annual financial reporting process
to ensure adequate resources are
allocated and prioritised to maintain
the controls necessary for the
secure management of the Resort.
These processes are to ensure that
there is effective control of risk
areas and processes within the risk
management framework to ensure
the level of risk is satisfactory to the
Board. Resulting from this progress
the Audit & Risk Sub Committee
has endorsed the risk management
program for the Chair’s attestation in
this annual report of operations.

I, Jim Atteridge certify that the
Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board has complied with Ministerial
Direction 4.5.5.1—Insurance.

STATUTORY
REPORTING
Corporate Plan

Jim Atteridge
Chief Executive Officer
Mount Hotham Resort
Management Board
31st October 2014

(d)	may acquire hold and dispose of real
and personal property; and

(g)	to attract investment for the
improvement of each such alpine
resort in respect of which the Board is
established; and

The Corporate Plan must include:

(e)	may do and suffer all acts and things
that a body corporate may by law do or
suffer.

(h)	to carry out any other function
conferred on the Board by or under
this or any other Act.

i.	A statement of corporate intent in
accordance with Section 54 of the Act;

s.35 of the Alpine Resorts (Management)
Act 1997:

*** s.38 (1) (e) repealed by NO. 24/2004 s10 (1) (c)

ii.	A Business Plan containing the
information required by the Minister;

In carrying out its functions and powers,
each Board acts on behalf of the Crown.

iii.	Estimates of the receipts and
expenditure of the Board for the period
of the plan.

s.38 (1) of the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997 lists some of the
key functions of the Boards:

The Business Plan is also developed on
an annual basis to specify the annual
objectives of the Board and to measure
the performance of the organisation
against the objectives identified within the
Corporate Plan. The Board has identified
and has structured its Corporate Plan on a
set of core responsibilities. These are:

(a)

Section 53 of the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997 requires the Board
to prepare an annual Corporate Plan. The
Corporate Plan must be approved by the
Minister each year.

•	Our Customer & Community Focus;
•

Our Year Round Resort;

•

Our Services;

•

Our Developer Services;

•

Our Environment of the Ridge;

•	Our Strategic Partnerships; and
•

Our Corporate Governance.

(c)	to develop a tourism and marketing
strategy for and to promote each
such alpine Resort and to collect and
expend voluntary contributions from
commercial undertakings in each such
alpine resort for this purpose;
(d)	to provide services in the nature of :
garbage collection;

•

water supply;

As a Committee of Management under
the Crown Lands (Reserves) Act 1978, the
Board has obligations to manage the land in
accordance with the purpose for which the
land has been reserved and may exercise
the powers conferred to Committees of
Management under that Act.

•

gas;

•

drainage;

•

sewerage;

•

electricity;

•

roads;

•

fire protection;

•

snowmaking; and

•

transport

The Board’s obligations under the Alpine
Resorts (Management) Act 1997 are to
discharge its functions effectively
and efficiently.
Additionally; - section 34(7) imparts to
the Board the following attributes and
authorities:
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(b)	to contribute, together with Tourism
Victoria, established under the
Tourism Victoria Act 1992, and the
Council, to the overall promotion of
alpine resorts;

•

(b) has a common seal; and
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t o act as a committee of management
of any Crown land deemed to be
permanently reserved under the
Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978;

Obligations of the Board

(a)	is a body corporate with perpetual
succession; and

43

(c)	may sue and be sued in its corporate
name; and

	for each such alpine resort and to
charge contributions for the provision
of those services;
***
(f)	to collect fees prescribed by the
regulations for each such alpine
resort;

s. 38 (2) of the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997:
A Board must perform it’s function in an
environmentally sound way.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring
the effective compliance with relevant
federal, state Acts and legislation applying
to the Resort.
Fair Trading Act
From 1st June 2004 new regulations under
the Fair Trading Act 1999 came into effect.

The Fair Trading (Recreational Services)
Regulations 2004 make it possible for
suppliers of recreational services to obtain
consent from customers to waive their
rights under the Act, including their right to
take legal action against the supplier if they
die or are injured while using the services.
In compliance with the Fair Trading
(Recreational Services) Regulations 2004
Mt Hotham Alpine Resort Management
has installed warning signs at both Resort
entry gates to alert visitors to the fact that
they are being asked to agree to waive their
rights under the Fair Trading Act 1999.
Privacy Act 1988 (Commonwealth)
The Federal Government introduced the
Privacy (Private Sector) Amendment Act
2000 which amends the Privacy Act 1988
(Commonwealth). The main aim of this
legislation, which came into effect on 21st
December 2001, is to give more control
over the way private organisations collect,
use, disclose and store information.
Mt Hotham Resort Management Board
prides itself in handling personal
information with extreme care and
diligence. In order to comply with the
Privacy (Private Sector) Amendment Act,
Mt Hotham Resort Management has
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STATUTORY
REPORTING CONT
adopted the MHRMB Privacy Policy that is
complied with at all times.
National Competition Policy
Competitive neutrality seeks to enable
fair competition between Government and
private sector businesses. Any advantages
or disadvantages that Government
businesses may experience, simply
as a result of Government ownership,
should be neutralised. Mt Hotham
Resort Management Board continues to
implement and apply this principle in its
business undertakings.
The Board is one of five independent
Alpine Resort Management Boards within
Victoria. It has established its own pricing
regime within the ceiling prescribed by the
Alpine Resort (Management) Regulations
2009. The Board, as the independent
manager of the Resort’s assets,
purchases services and goods in line with
Government Board Purchasing guidelines.
Mt Hotham Resort Management Board
complies with the Government’s policies
for National Competition Policy.
Victorian Industry Participation Policy
(VIPP)
The Victorian Industry Participation
Policy (VIPP) was established in 2001
to actively encourage greater local
industry participation in major Victorian
Government procurement contracts,
projects and infrastructure, investment
attraction and community facilities grants.

The Victorian Industry Participation Policy
Act 2003 (VIPP Act) was introduced in
October 2003. Under the Act, Mt Hotham
Resort Management Board implements
policies to tenders over $1 million as
required for Regional Victoria. The
Minister for Manufacturing Exports and
Trade is responsible for introducing the
strengthened VIPP which took effect from
1st July 2009. There was one contract
that commenced in 2013/14 that met the
regional threshold of over $1 million. A VIPP
Plan was not required due to nil to limited
contestability. The local content is 90%.
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Protected Disclosure Contacts

Freedom of Information
Mt Hotham Resort Management Board is
considered to be a ‘Government Agency’
under the terms of the Freedom of
Information Act 1982. Accordingly, it is
required to comply with the procedures
that have been prescribed under which
members of the public may gain access to
information held by agencies.

•	General statement on industrial
relations and details of time lost
through industrial accidents and
disputes; and

A decision to release information is
made by either the Principal Officer or an
Authorised Officer. An application fee of
$26.50 applies at the time of publication.
The Board has determined that the
Authorised Officer for the Resort is the
General Manager.

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (and the
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001)

The Freedom Of Information Officer:
Ms Jenny Molloy
PO Box 188, Bright 3741
Ph: 03 5759 3550
Fax: 03 5759 3693
Email: jennymolloy@mthotham.com.au
In 2013 - 14 there were no FOI requests
for the reporting period.
Relevant Information
The following is retained by the
accountable officer and is available to the
relevant Minister, Members of Parliament
and the public on request:
FRD 22D Statement of Availability of other
information:
•	Statement declaring pecuniary
interests completed by all relevant
officers;
• 	Details of publications produced and
where available;
•	Details of changes in prices, fees,
charges, rates and levies;
•	Details of any major external reviews;
•	Details of major research and
development activities;
•

Details of overseas visits;

•	Details of major promotional, public
relations and marketing activities;
•	Details of assessments and measures
undertaken to improve occupational
health and safety of employees;
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•	Major committees sponsored,
purposes of committees and
achievements.

Mt Hotham Resort Management Board
(MHRMB) is subject to the Protected
Disclosure Act which enables people to
make disclosures about improper conduct
within the public sector without fear of
reprisal. It aims to ensure openness and
accountability by encouraging people to
make disclosures and protecting them
when they do.

Mt Hotham Resort Management (MHRMB)
Jenny Molloy - General Manager
PO Box 188, Bright 3741
Ph: 03 5759 3550 Fax: 03 5759 3693
Email: jennymolloy@mthotham.com.au
Independent Broad-Based Anti-Corruption
Commission (IBAC) Victoria
Level 1, North Tower, 459 Collins Street,
Melbourne Victoria 3001
GPO Box 24234, Melbourne Victoria 3000
www.ibac.vic.gov.au
Ph: 1300 735 135
Email: see the website above for the
secure email disclosure process, which
also provides for anonymous disclosures.

Disclosures under the Protected
Disclosure Act 2012
In 2013-14 there were no disclosures
received.
DataVic Access Policy
In August 2012 the Victorian Government
released the DataVic Access Policy, which
enables the sharing of Government data at
no, or minimal, cost to users. Government
data from all agencies will be progressively
supplied in a machine-readable format
that will minimise access costs and
maximise use and reuse.

The PD Act was part of a package of
integrity reforms introduced by the
Victorian Government, which also
established the Independent Broad-based
Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC).
MHRMB has established procedures for
the protection of persons from detrimental
action in reprisal for making a protected
disclosure about MHRMB or its employees.
You can access MHRMB’s procedures on
our website at www.mthotham.com.au
How to make a ‘Protected Disclosure’
MHRMB is committed to the aims
and objectives of the PD Act and
values integrity and accountability in
its administrative and management
practices. It fully supports the processes
of disclosure that reveal corrupt conduct,
mismanagement of public resources
or conduct involving a substantial risk
to public health and safety, or the
environment.
You can make a protected disclosure about
MHRMB, its Board Members, Officers
or employees by contacting the MHRMB
Protected Disclosure Coordinator, DELWP
or IBAC on the contact details provided
below.
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FINANCIALS

MOUNT HOTHAM
ALPINE RESORT MANAGEMENT BOARD
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014

Note
Continuing operations
Income from transactions
Government Contributions
Rendering of Services
Interest
Sale of rights to lease and develop Crown Land
Other Revenue

2

Total income from transactions

MOUNT HOTHAM
ALPINE RESORT MANAGEMENT BOARD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014

2014
$

2013
$

35,020
9,773,257
163,051
869,989
10,841,317

87,166
9,170,907
126,856
60,000
646,637
10,091,566

Expenses from transactions
Infrastructure services
Village operations
Visitor services
Administration
Marketing
Board costs
Interest Expense

3

Total expenses from transactions

Net result from transactions (net operating balance)

3,304,826
1,765,783
908,055
3,296,206
327,443
132,317
110,127

3,200,362
1,708,946
718,873
3,462,270
237,195
97,738
114,820
9,540,204

996,560

551,362

36,332

-

1,032,892

551,362

-

-

1,032,892

551,362

9,844,757

Net result from continuing operations
Other economic flows - other comprehensive income
Comprehensive result

Contributions by
Owner

32,866,328

76,316,009

6,664,487

MOUNT HOTHAM
ALPINE RESORT MANAGEMENT BOARD
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2014
Note
ASSETS
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Non Financial Assets
Inventories
Prepayments (Current)
Property, Plant & Equipment
Total Non Financial Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
TOTAL LIABILITIES

2013
$

4,19
5,19
6,19

6,356,883
902,181
3,300,000
10,559,064

2,865,499
758,469
800,000
4,423,968

7

155,074
245,821
77,483,040
77,883,935
88,442,999

139,850
236,006
75,378,888
75,754,744
80,178,712

1,057,917
1,629,551
874,270
3,561,738

872,394
1,701,643
737,304
3,311,341

84,881,261

76,867,371

8,248,739
36,785,194
39,847,328
84,881,261

7,215,849
36,785,194
32,866,328
76,867,371

8

9,19
10,19
11

NET ASSETS
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus
Contributions by Owner
Commitments for expenditure
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

2014
$

Total

Net result for the year
Balance at 31 October 2013

36,785,194

551,362
7,215,849

32,866,328

551,362
76,867,371

Contributions or Transfers by Owners
Net result for the year
Balance at 31 October 2014

36,785,194

1,032,892
8,248,739

6,981,000
39,847,328

6,981,000
1,032,892
84,881,261

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

MOUNT HOTHAM
ALPINE RESORT MANAGEMENT BOARD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014
2014
$

2013
$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Government
Receipts from customers and other entities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net GST received/(payable)
Interest received
Interest paid
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

35,020
10,499,534
(8,111,269)
(81,092)
161,356
(111,088)
2,392,460

199,411
9,972,590
(8,491,883)
90,940
83,852
(113,535)
1,741,375

(2,500,000)
(3,343,452)
36,332
(5,807,120)

(800,000)
(1,022,776)
(1,822,776)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital contributions
Repayment of Borrowings from Treasury Corporation Victoria
Net Cash (used in)/provided by Financing Activities

6,981,000
(74,956)
6,906,044

(74,312)
(74,312)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held

3,491,384

(155,713)

12

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash invested in Term Deposits
Payments for non-financial assets
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

The above Comprehensive Operating Statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

NET WORTH

36,785,194

Balance at 1 November 2012

Accumulated Surplus

Note

Other economic flows included in net result
Net gain/(loss) on non financial assets

EQUITY

Physical Asset
Revaluation
Surplus

Cash at the beginning of the Financial Year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Financial Year

4

2,865,499

3,021,213

6,356,883

2,865,499

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

13
14

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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•

The value of infringement revenues in particular the amounts likely to be collected in
future periods and the amounts to be provided for under the bad debt provision (Refer
Note 1(h)).

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and prepared in
accordance with the historical cost convention except for:
Non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a
revalued amount being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from
their fair value.
b) Basis of accounting
preparation and measurement cont.
•

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2014
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board (RMB) is constituted under the Alpine Resorts
(Management) Act 1997 and has its principal place of business located at Mount Hotham, Victoria,
Australia.
These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for the
Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board for the year ending 31 October 2014. The purpose
of the report is to provide users with information about the RMB’s stewardship of resources entrusted
to it.
The reporting period covered in the financial statements is 1 November 2013 to 31 October 2014.
a) Statement of compliance
These general financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994 (FMA) and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) which
include Interpretations, issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). In
particular, they are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of the AASB 1049
Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting.
Where applicable, those AAS paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit entities have been
applied.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.
These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Chairman of the Mount
Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board 17th December 2014.
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is financial or non-financial, consideration
is given to the extent of the asset’s ability to be converted into liquid (cash) funds.
b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial
statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the
reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying value of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived
from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and also in future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and
assumptions made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on
the financial statements and estimates relate to:
•
The fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (Refer Note 1(i))
•
Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing
staff, patterns
of leave claims,
future salary movements and future discount rates (Refer
b) Basis of accounting
preparation
and measurement
Note 1(j)); and
•
The value of infringement revenues in particular the amounts likely to be collected in
future periods and the amounts to be provided for under the bad debt provision (Refer
Note 1(h)).
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and prepared in
accordance with the historical cost convention except for:
•

Non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a
revalued amount being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from
their fair value.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 October 2014 and the comparative information presented for the year
ended 31 October 2013.
Under the AASs, there are requirements that apply specifically to not-for-profit entities that are
not consistent with IFRS requirements.
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AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
ConsistentAnnual
with AASB
13 Fair Value
the RMB determines the policies and
Mount Hotham Resort Management
Report
2013Measurement,
/ 2014
procedures for both recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment
and financial instruments and for non-recurring fair value measurements such as nonfinancial physical assets classified as held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of
AASB 13 and the relevant Financial Reporting Directions.

The
set outrevenues
below have
been applied
in preparing
the
statements
• accounting
The value ofpolicies
infringement
in particular
the amounts
likely
tofinancial
be collected
in
for the
yearperiods
ended 31
2014 and
comparative
information
presented
for the
year
future
andOctober
the amounts
to bethe
provided
for under
the bad debt
provision
(Refer
ended
31 1(h)).
October 2013.
Note
These the
financial
are presentedthat
in Australian
dollars and
prepared in entities that are
there are requirements
apply specifically
to not-for-profit
Under
AASs,statements
accordance
with
the
historical
cost convention except for:
not
consistent
with
IFRS
requirements.
•
Non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a
AASBrevalued
13 Fair Value
Measurement
amount being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
Consistent
with AASB
13 Fair Value
Measurement,
the RMBlosses.
determines
the policies
and
accumulated
depreciation
and subsequent
impairment
Revaluations
are made
procedures
for bothregularity
recurringtofair
valuethat
measurements
as property,
plant anddiffer
equipment
with sufficient
ensure
the carrying such
amounts
do not materially
from
and financial
and for non-recurring fair value measurements such as nontheir fair instruments
value.
financial physical assets classified as held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of
AASB
13 and the
relevant
Reporting
Directions.
The accounting
policies
setFinancial
out below
have been
applied in preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 October 2014 and the comparative information presented for the year
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
ended
31 October
2013.
statements
are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

lowest the
level
input there
that isare
significant
to the that
fair value
as a whole: entities that are
requirements
apply measurement
specifically to not-for-profit
Under
AASs,
not
consistent
with
IFRS
requirements.
Level
1
—
Quoted
(unadjusted)
market
prices
in
active
markets
for identical assets or
•
liabilities
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, the RMB determines the policies and
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
procedures for both recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment
Valuation techniques
for which thefair
lowest
input that issuch
significant
to the fair
3 —instruments
financial
and for non-recurring
valuelevel
measurements
as non•andLevel
value physical
measurement
unobservable.
financial
assetsisclassified
as held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of
AASB 13 and the relevant Financial Reporting Directions.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the RMB has determined classes of assets and
liabilities
theliabilities
basis offor
thewhich
nature,
and risks
of the asset
or financial
liability and the
in the
faircharacteristics
value is measured
or disclosed
All
assetson
and
level
of the fair
hierarchy
as explained
above.
statements
are value
categorised
within
the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
In addition, the RMB determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
categorisation
lowest
levelfor
input
that isassets
significant
hierarchy
—re-assessing
Quoted (unadjusted)
market(based
priceson
in the
active
markets
identical
or to
• Level 1by
theliabilities
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Valuer-General
Victoria
(VGV) is
RMB’s
valuation
agency.
2 — Valuation
techniques
forthe
which
the independent
lowest level input
that is
significant to the fair
•TheLevel
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
The RMB, in conjunction with VGV, monitors changes in the fair value of each asset through
totechniques
determine whether
required.
Valuation
for whichrevaluation
the lowest is
level
input that is significant to the fair
Level data
3 — sources
•relevant
value
measurement
A fair
value
assessmentisisunobservable.
conducted annually to ensure that property, plant and equipment
reflects
the fair value
the end
of the year.
assessment
considers
all fair
value and
For
the purpose
of fairatvalue
disclosures,
theThe
RMB
has determined
classes
of assets
indicators,
andnature,
building
indices, the highest
and
use indicators
liabilities
onincluding
the basisland
of the
characteristics
and risks
ofbest
the asset
or liabilityand
andother
the
relevant
indicators.
level
of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition,
the eventthe
thatRMB
the assessment
triggers a
change have
in value,
adjustments
are
made
determines whether
transfers
occurred
between
levels
in to
thereflect
the fair value
of the asset. categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
hierarchy
by re-assessing
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
c) Reporting entity
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is the RMB’s independent valuation agency.
The
statements cover
the Mount
Hotham
Alpine
Resort
Management
Boardthrough
(RMB)
The financial
RMB, in conjunction
with VGV,
monitors
changes
in the
fair value
of each asset
c) Reporting
cont.
as
an entity
individual
reporting
entity.
relevant
data sources
to determine
whether revaluation is required.
The
an entity established
under
the Alpine
Resorts
(Management)
Act
1997.
equipment
A
fairRMB
valueis assessment
is conducted
annually
to ensure
that
property, plant
and
reflects the fair value at the end of the year. The assessment considers all fair value
Its
principalincluding
address land
is: and building indices, the highest and best use indicators and other
indicators,
relevant indicators.
Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board
In the Alpine
event that
the assessment triggers a change in value, adjustments are made to reflect
Great
Road
the fairHotham
value ofVIC
the 3741
asset.
Mount

c) Reporting
entity
The RMB
is a public body acting on behalf of the Crown, and reporting to the Department of

Environment and Primary Industries.
The financial statements cover the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board (RMB)
asand
an individual
reporting
entity. statements
d) Scope
presentation
of financial
Comprehensive operating statement
The comprehensive operating statement comprises of three components, being ‘net result from
transactions’ (or termed as ‘net operating balance’), ‘other economic flows included in net
result’, as well as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the
former two, together with the net result from discontinued operations, represents the net
result.
This classification is consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed
under AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.
Balance sheet

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report

Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial
assets and non-financial assets.
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principal
address of
is:financial statements
d) ScopeItsand
presentation
Mount Hotham Alpine
Resort
Management Board
Comprehensive
operating
statement
Great Alpine Road
Mount
Hotham VIC operating
3741
The
comprehensive
statement comprises of three components, being ‘net result from
transactions’ (or termed as ‘net operating balance’), ‘other economic flows included in net
The RMB is a public body acting on behalf of the Crown, and reporting to the Department of
result’, as well as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the
Environment and Primary Industries.
former two, together with the net result from discontinued operations, represents the net
result.
d) Scope
and presentation of financial statements cont.
Comprehensive
statement
This
classificationoperating
is consistent
with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed
under AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
The comprehensive operating statement comprises of three components, being ‘net result from
The
net result (or
is equivalent
profit
or lossbalance’),
derived in‘other
accordance
withflows
AASs.
transactions’
termed as to
‘net
operating
economic
included in net
result’, as well as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the
Balance sheet
former two, together with the net result from discontinued operations, represents the net
result. and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial
Assets
assets and non-financial assets.
This classification is consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed
under AASB
101 Presentation
Financial
Statements.
Current
and non-current
assets of
and
liabilities
(non-current being those assets or liabilities
expected to be recovered or settled more than 12 months) are disclosed in the notes, where
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.
relevant.
Balance
Cash
flowsheet
statement
Assets
andare
liabilities
are according
presented to
in whether
liquidity order
aggregated
intoinvesting,
financial or
operating,
Cash
flows
classified
or notwith
theyassets
arise from
assets and
non-financial
assets.
financing
activities.
This classification
is consistent with requirements under AASB 107
Statement of cash flows.
Current and non-current assets and liabilities (non-current being those assets or liabilities
expected to
recovered
or settled more than 12 months) are disclosed in the notes, where
Statement
of be
changes
in equity
relevant.
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of non-owner and owner changes
flow
statement
inCash
equity
from
opening balances at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance
at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts
operating,
Cash flowsinare
according
to whether
or not they
arise
related
to from
‘transaction
withinvesting,
owners inor
recognised
theclassified
‘comprehensive
result’
and amounts
financing
activities.
This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107
the
capacity
as owners’.
Statement of cash flows.
Rounding of amounts
Statement of changes in equity
Amounts in the financial statements (including the notes) have been rounded to the nearest
The statement
of changes
in equity
presents
of non-owner
owner
dollar,
unless otherwise
stated.
Figures
in the reconciliations
financial statements
may notand
equate
duechanges
to
in equity from opening balances at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance
rounding.
at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts
recognised
in the ‘comprehensive
result’ and amounts related to ‘transaction with owners in
e) Changes
in accounting
policies
the capacity as owners’.
Subsequent to the 2012-13 reporting period, the following new and revised Standards have
Rounding
of amounts
been
adopted
in the policies
current period
e) Changes
in
accounting
cont. with their financial impact detailed as below.
Amounts in the financial statements (including the notes) have been rounded to the nearest
AASB
Fair Value
Measurement
dollar,13
unless
otherwise
stated. Figures in the financial statements may not equate due to
AASB
13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. AASB 13
rounding.
does not change when a Board is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
e) Changes
in measure
accounting
how to
fair policies
value under Australian Accounting Standards when fair value is required
or permitted. The RMB has considered the specific requirements relating to highest and best
Subsequent
the 2012-13
reporting (or
period,
following newmarket.
and revised
Standards have
mostthe
advantageous)
The methods,
use,
valuationtopremise,
and principal
been adoptedprocesses
in the current
with their
financial impact
detailed
as revisited.
below. No
assumptions,
andperiod
procedures
for determining
fair value
were
adjustment has resulted from the review. In light of AASB 13, the Board has reviewed the fair
value principles as well as its current valuation methodologies in assessing the fair value, and
the assessment has not materially changed the fair values recognised.

However, AASB 13 has predominantly impacted the disclosures of the RMB. It requires
specific disclosures about fair value measurements and disclosures of fair values, some of
which replace existing disclosure requirements in other standards, including AASB 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures.
The disclosure requirements of AASB 13 apply prospectively and need not be applied in
comparative information before first application. Consequently, the 2012-13 comparatives of
these disclosures have not been provided, except for financial instruments, of which the fair
value disclosures are required under AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
AASB 119 Employee Benefits
The revised AASB 119 changes the accounting for the definition of short-term employee
benefits. Short-term employee benefits are defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service.
Short-term employee benefits are now defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. As a result, accrued annual leave balances which were previously classified
by the board as short-term employee benefits no longer meet this definition and are now
classified as long-term employee benefits.
f) Income from transactions
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Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue. Income is recognised as
revenue to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and
the income can be reliably measured at fair value.
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Income from grants (other than contribution by owners) is recognised when the Department
obtains control over the contribution. The board is deemed to have assumed control when the

related service.
Short-term employee benefits are now defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. As a result, accrued annual leave balances which were previously classified
by the board as short-term employee benefits no longer meet this definition and are now
classified as long-term employee benefits.
f) Income from transactions
Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue. Income is recognised as
revenue to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and
the income can be reliably measured at fair value.
Grants
Income from grants (other than contribution by owners) is recognised when the Department
obtains control over the contribution. The board is deemed to have assumed control when the
grant is receivable or received.
Contributions
Contributions for capital works from all sources are recognised as operating revenue in
accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions. Any grants and contributions received from the
Victorian State Government that are deemed as being in the nature of owner’s contributions
are accounted for as Equity - Contributed Capital in accordance with FRD119A Transfers
Through Contributed Capital.
Rendering of Services
Site rental is recognised under the terms and conditions of each lease and in accordance with
the Board’s role as a Committee of Management of any Crown Land deemed to be
permanently reserved under the Crown Lands Reserve Act 1978.
f) Income from transactions cont.
Service Charge revenue is brought to account when a rate/tariff is levied or determined for
service charges leviable under Section 13 of the Alpine Resorts (Management) Act 1997.
Gate entry revenue (including from the sale of season passes) is recognised when received
and when the entitlement is in the current financial year. Season pass receipts received for
an entitlement to resort entry in current and/or subsequent financial years are proportioned to
the year of entitlement.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method which allocates the interest
over the relevant period.
Revenue from the sale of rights to lease and develop Crown Land is recognised upon
granting the right to commence works from the Board, or on the execution of a contract of
sale, following approval by the Minister of Environment and Climate Change, whichever
occurs first.
Infringement notices are recognised as revenue when the penalty has been imposed.
g) Expenses from transactions
Expenses from transactions are recognised as they are incurred, and reported in the financial
year to which they relate.
Employee Expenses
Refer to Note 1(j) regarding employee benefits.
These expenses include all costs related to employment (other than superannuation which is
accounted for separately) including wages and salaries, fringe benefits tax, leave
entitlements, redundancy payments and WorkCover premiums.
Superannuation
The amount recognised in the comprehensive operating statement is the employer
contributions for members of both defined benefit and defined contribution superannuation
plans that are paid or payable during the reporting period.
The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) in their Annual Financial Statements disclose
on behalf of the State as the sponsoring employer, the net defined benefit cost related to the
members of defined benefit plans as an administered liability. Refer to DTF’s Annual Financial
Statements for more detailed disclosures in relation to these plans.
Depreciation
All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical
assets (excluding assets held for sale and land) that have finite useful lives are depreciated.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost or revalued amount of
each non-current asset item (excluding land and assets held for resale) over its expected
useful life to the Board recognising the residual value at the end of the expected life apparent
in the valuation.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each annual reporting period, and adjustments made where appropriate.
Hotham
Management
Report
Additions to non-current assets in theMount
financial
year Resort
are depreciated
fromAnnual
their respective
dates of acquisition.

Estimates of remaining useful lives of all non-current asset items are made on a regular basis
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Superannuation

loans to third parties and accrued investment income.

The amount recognised in the comprehensive operating statement is the employer
contributions for members of both defined benefit and defined contribution superannuation
plans that are paid or payable during the reporting period.
The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) in their Annual Financial Statements disclose
on behalf of the State as the sponsoring employer, the net defined benefit cost related to the
members of defined benefit plans as an administered liability. Refer to DTF’s Annual Financial
g) Expenses
from transactions
cont.
Statements
for more detailed
disclosures in relation to these plans.

Depreciation rates currently applied to each class of asset are as follows:
Depreciation
Buildingsassets, buildings, plant and equipment and
1.67%
2.5%
All infrastructure
other- non-financial
physical
assets (excluding assets held for sale and land) that have finite useful lives are depreciated.
Community & Village Infrastructure
1.25% - 10%
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost or revalued amount of
for -resale)
each non-current
asset
item (excluding land and assets held
Roads & Car
Parks
1.25%
10% over its expected
useful life to the Board recognising the residual value at the end of the expected life apparent
in the valuation.
Water
1.25% - 14.28%
The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method
Sewerage
1.25%
- 5%are reviewed at the end
of each annual reporting period, and adjustments made where appropriate.
Gas
2.5% - 6.67%
Additions to non-current assets in the financial year are depreciated from their respective
dates of Plant
acquisition.
& Equipment
5% - 50%
useful lives
of all non-current
items are made
a regular
basis
Estimates
remaining
The aboveofrates
for Buildings,
Community
and Villageasset
Infrastructure,
Roadson
and
Car Parks,
with
an
annual
review
of all
major& non-current
assets.have remained unchanged from the
g) Expenses
from
transactions
cont.
Water,
Sewerage,
Gas and
Plant
Equipment assets
previous year, however rates been updated to reflect the additional classification of assets.
Depreciation rates currently applied to each class of asset are as follows:
Interest Expense
Buildings
1.67% - 2.5%
Interest expenses are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Community & Village Infrastructure
1.25% - 10%
h) Financial assets
Roads & Car Parks
1.25% - 10%
Cash Assets
Water
1.25% - 14.28%
Cash Assets, including cash equivalents, comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits
Sewerage
1.25%
- 5%months or less, which
at call and
highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three
are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment
Gas
2.5% -of6.67%
purposes,
and which are readily convertible to known amounts
cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Plant & Equipment
5% - 50%
Receivables
The above rates for Buildings, Community and Village Infrastructure, Roads and Car Parks,
Water,
Sewerage,
Gasof;and Plant & Equipment assets have remained unchanged from the
Receivables
consist
previous year, however rates been updated to reflect the additional classification of assets.
•
Statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian
Interest
Expense and GST input tax credits recoverable; and
Government
•
Contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services,
Interest expenses are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
loans to third parties and accrued investment income.

h) Financial assets
Debtors are carried at amounts due. Where necessary, interest is charged on overdue debts
in accordance with the Penalty Interest Rates Act or in accordance with relevant legislation
Cash Assets
and/or lease terms.
Cash Assets, including cash equivalents, comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits
The
Board’s
stated
terms
in respect with
of amounts
receivable
in fullorwithin
days.
at
call
and highly
liquid
investments
an original
maturityare
of payment
three months
less, 30
which
are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment
Bad and Doubtful Debts
purposes, and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to
insignificant
changes
in value. testing as described below.
Receivables risk
are of
subject
to impairment
Receivables
A provision for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that the debts may
not be collected
and of;
bad debts written off when identified.
Receivables
consist
A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when collection in full for Infringement penalties is
•
Statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian
no longer
probable.
Government
and GST input tax credits recoverable; and

•

Contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services,
loans to third parties and accrued investment income.

Debtors are carried at amounts due. Where necessary, interest is charged on overdue debts
in accordance with the Penalty Interest Rates Act or in accordance with relevant legislation
and/or lease terms.
The Board’s stated terms in respect of amounts receivable are payment in full within 30 days.
Bad and Doubtful Debts

Debtors are carried at amounts due. Where necessary, interest is charged on overdue debts
in accordance with the Penalty Interest Rates Act or in accordance with relevant legislation
and/or lease terms.
The Board’s stated terms in respect of amounts receivable are payment in full within 30 days.
Bad and Doubtful Debts
Receivables
are subject to impairment testing as described below.
h) Financial
assets cont.
may
A
doubtful
debts
is made
whenbased
there on
is objective
that the debts
A provision
provision for
is made
for any
doubtful
debts,
a review evidence
of all outstanding
receivables
notbalance
be collected
debts
at
date. and
Badbad
debts
arewritten
writtenoff
offwhen
in theidentified.
period in which they are identified. The
Board considered that a $72,398 provision was necessary for bad or doubtful debts as at 31
A provision
for(2013doubtful
debts is recognised when collection in full for Infringement penalties is
October
2014
$39,086).
no longer
probable.
h) Financial
assets
i) Non-financial assets
A provision is made for any doubtful debts, based on a review of all outstanding receivables
Inventories
at
balance date. Bad debts are written off in the period in which they are identified. The
Board considered that a $72,398 provision was necessary for bad or doubtful debts as at 31
Inventories
comprise
goods for resale and goods for use. All inventories are valued at the
October
2014
(2013- $39,086).
lower of cost and net realisable value.
i) Non-financial assets
Goods for resale - comprise goods procured or developed for resale and include LPG gas
and horticultural products.
Inventories
Goods for use
- comprise
goods
procured
stored
useAllininventories
operations are
andvalued
includeatdiesel
Inventories
comprise
goods
for resale
and or
goods
forfor
use.
the
and unleaded
fuel.net realisable value.
lower
of cost and
Property,
Equipment
Goods
for Plant
resaleand
- comprise
goods procured or developed for resale and include LPG gas
and horticultural products.
Acquisition
Goods for use - comprise goods procured or stored for use in operations and include diesel
Property,
plantfuel.
and equipment includes land, buildings, roads and car parks, community and
and
unleaded
village infrastructure, water, sewerage, gas, plant, equipment, furniture and motor vehicles.
Items withPlant
a cost
or Equipment
value in excess of $1,000 and a useful life to the Board of more than one
Property,
and
year are capitalised. All other assets acquired are expensed.
Acquisition
All non-financial physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at
fair value plant
less accumulated
depreciation
and impairment.
Where
asset
is acquired
for and
no
Property,
and equipment
includes land,
buildings, roads
andancar
parks,
community
or nominal
cost, the cost
is itssewerage,
fair value gas,
at theplant,
date equipment,
of acquisition.
village
infrastructure,
water,
furniture and motor vehicles.
Items with a cost or value in excess of $1,000 and a useful life to the Board of more than one
Valuation
of Property,All
Plant
and
equipment
year
are capitalised.
other
assets
acquired are expensed.
Non-financial
physical
assets
areare
measured
at fair
value
a cyclical
basis, in accordance
All
non-financial
physical
assets
measured
initially
at on
cost
and subsequently
revalued at
withvalue
the Financial
Reportingdepreciation
Directions (FRDs)
issued by the
Minister
for Finance.
A full
fair
less accumulated
and impairment.
Where
an asset
is acquired
for no
revaluation
normally
occurs
every
five
years,
based
upon
the
asset’s
government
purpose
or nominal cost, the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition.
classification but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material
changes inofvalues.
Independent
valuers are generally used to conduct these scheduled
Valuation
Property,
Plant and equipment
revaluations. Certain infrastructure assets are revalued using specialised advisors. Any
interim revaluations
areassets
determined
in accordance
with the
of the
FRDs.
Non-financial
physical
are measured
at fair value
onrequirements
a cyclical basis,
in accordance
Revaluation
increases
or decreases
arise
from issued
differences
between
carrying
with
the Financial
Reporting
Directions
(FRDs)
by the
Ministeranforasset’s
Finance.
A full value
and fair value.
revaluation
normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset’s government purpose
classification but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material
The mostinrecent
valuation
was undertaken
at 31 October
Thethese
fair value
of buildings,
changes
values.
Independent
valuers areas
generally
used to2011.
conduct
scheduled
roads and infrastructure
has been determined
by reference
to specialised
the assets depreciated
revaluations.
Certain infrastructure
assets are revalued
using
advisors. Any
replacement
cost recognising
the residual
value apparent
the valuation.of the FRDs.
interim
revaluations
are determined
in accordance
with theinrequirements
Revaluation increases or decreases arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value
Net fair
revaluation
and
value. decrease is recognised in ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive
income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of
The
most recent
undertaken
as at 31
October 2011.
fair value
of buildings,
the same
class ofvaluation
property,was
plant
and equipment.
Otherwise,
the netThe
revaluation
decreases
roads
and infrastructure
has as
been
determined
reference
to the
assets
are recognised
immediately
other
economicby
flows
in the net
result.
Thedepreciated
net revaluation
replacement
cost recognising
residualflows
value
apparent
in the valuation.
decrease recognised
in ‘other the
economic
– other
comprehensive
income’ reduces the
amount
accumulated
in
equity
under
the
asset
revaluation
surplus.
Net revaluation decrease is recognised in ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive

income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of
Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets in a class of property, plant
the
class of
property,
plant and
Otherwise,
theare
netnot
revaluation
decreases
andsame
equipment,
are
offset against
oneequipment.
another in that
class but
offset in respect
of
are
recognised
immediately
as other
flows
in the
The net
revaluation
assets
in different
classes. The
asseteconomic
revaluation
surplus
is net
not result.
transferred
to accumulated
funds on derecognition
the relevant
asset.
decrease
recognised in of
‘other
economic
flows – other comprehensive income’ reduces the
amount accumulated in equity under the asset revaluation surplus.

Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets in a class of property, plant
and equipment, are offset against one another in that class but are not offset in respect of
assets in different classes. The asset revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated
funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.

Receivables are subject to impairment testing as described below.
A provision for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that the debts may
not be collected and bad debts written off when identified.
A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when collection in full for Infringement penalties is
no longer probable.
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Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to
contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the
category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the RMB has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of
j) Liabilities cont.economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

i) Non-financial assets cont.
Valuation of Land

This non-current
LSL liability
is measured
at present
value.
The amount
recognised
as a provision
is the
best estimate of the consideration required to

The Board undertook a revaluation of its land assets for 31 October 2011 using the 'fair value'
methodology. The revaluation was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria. Under fair
value the Board's interest in the Crown's leasehold land is measured based on a direct
market comparison approach, whereby the subject properties are compared to recent land
sales. Broad area land values have been applied to the other values areas of the Board's
controlled area based on comparable sales evidence methodology. The addition of these
represents the fair value of the land assets under the Board's control. The figures do not
include any improvement values.
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal
and is the difference between the proceeds and the carrying value of the asset at the time.
Impairment of assets
Assets are assessed in the normal course of operations for indicators of impairment, except
for:
- Financial Assets

- Non-current assets held for sale
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their
carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount. Where an asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount, the difference is written off by a charge to the comprehensive
operating statement except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset
revaluation reserve amount applicable to that class of asset.
The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held
primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present value of future
cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell. It is
deemed that, in the event of a loss of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the
use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made.
An impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited directly to equity under the heading
Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the
same class of asset was previously recognised in the comprehensive operating statement, a
reversal of that impairment loss is also recognised in the comprehensive operating statement.
In the Board's view, asset values do not exceed their recoverable amount from their
continued use and their subsequent disposal and as such, no adjustment to these values was
made in the reporting period.

j) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:

-

Contractual payables, such as accounts payable and unearned income including deferred
income from concession arrangements. Accounts payable represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Board prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid,
and arise when the RMB becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the
purchase of those goods and services; and
Statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to
contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the
category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the RMB has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of
economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows,
using discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.
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(iii) Termination benefits
Employee Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal
(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and time in lieu leave
retirement date, or when an employee accepts redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The BoardLiabilities
recognises
benefits when
it is non-monetary
demonstrably committed
to either
for termination
wages and salaries,
including
benefits, annual
leave and
terminating
the employment
of lieu
current
employees
to a
detailed
formal
plan without
accumulating
time in
leave
expected according
to be wholly
settled
within
12 months
of the reporting
possibilityda
oftewithdrawal
or providing
termination
as benefits
a result of
an offer of
made
to
services up
are recognised
in the provision
forbenefits
employee
in respect
employee
encouragetoredundancy.
Benefits
falling
due more
than 12
months
after at
balance
sheet date
reporting date,
classified
as current
liabilities
and
measured
their nominal
values.
are discounted to present value.
Those liabilities that are not expected to be settled within 12 months are recognised in the
(iv) Employee
benefits
on-costs benefits as current liabilities, measured at present value of the
provision
for employee
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate
Employeeexpected
benefits on-costs
(payroll
tax,ofworkers
compensation, superannuation, annual
to apply at
the time
settlement.
leave and LSL accrued while on LSL taken in service) are recognised separately from
provision (ii)
for Long
employee
benefits.
service
leave
BorrowingsLiability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

- Inventories

-

settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows,
bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as an other economic flow.
using discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.

2013 / 2014

Employee Benefits
(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and time in lieu leave

Borrowings
are initially
measured
at fair value,
being the cost5 of
borrowings,
net of
- unconditional
LSL (representing
or the
more
years of continuous
service for
Current
Liability
transaction
costs.
VPS
staff) is disclosed as a current liability even where the Board does not expect to settle
the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the
Subsequent
to initial of
recognition,
borrowings
at amortised
cost12
with
any
settlement
the entitlement
shouldare
an measured
employee take
leave within
months.
difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised
in net result
over
the periodofofthis
thecurrent
borrowing
theare
effective
interest
measured
at: method.
The
components
LSLusing
liability
• undiscounted value- if the Department expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and
k) Financial instruments
• present
the Department
does notthat
expect
wholly
settle within
12of
months.
Financial instruments
arisevalue-if
out of contractual
agreements
giveto
rise
to a financial
asset
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of
the RMB’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather
Non-current liability - conditional LSL (representing less than 5 years of continuous service for
than contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of
VPS staff) is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the
financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments; Presentation.
settlement
j) Liabilities
cont. of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

l) Goods and Services Tax
This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
Any gain
or the
lossamount
following
of the present
value
non-current
LSL liability is
(GST), except
where
of revaluation
GST is not recoverable
from
theof
Australian
Taxation
recognised
as
a
transaction,
except
to
the
extent
that
a
gain
or
loss
arises
due to changes in
Office (ATO).
bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as an other economic flow.
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
Termination
benefits
as part of (iii)
an item
of expense.
Termination
benefits
payable
when
employment
is terminated before the normal
Receivables
and payables
are are
stated
with the
amount
of GST included.
retirement date, or when an employee accepts redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Board
recognises
termination
it is
demonstrably
The net amount
of GST
recoverable
from, orbenefits
payablewhen
to, the
ATO
is included committed
as a currentto either
terminating
theinemployment
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
asset or current
liability
the Balance of
Sheet.
possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage
redundancy.
Benefits falling
due more
thancash
12 months
after balance
Cash flows
arising from
operating activities
are disclosed
in the
flow statement
on a sheet date
are- i.e.
discounted
value.
gross basis
inclusivetoofpresent
GST. The
GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which is recoverable or payable to the taxation authority is classified
(iv) cash
Employee
as operating
flows.benefits on-costs
Employee benefits on-costs (payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation, annual
leave and LSL accrued while on LSL taken in service) are recognised separately from
provision for employee benefits.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the borrowings, net of
transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any
difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised
in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
k) Financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of
the RMB’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather
than contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of
financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments; Presentation.
l) Goods and Services Tax

Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual Report

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST), except where the amount of GST is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation
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Borrowings
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the borrowings, net of
transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any
difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised
in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
k) Financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of
the RMB’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather
than contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of
financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments; Presentation.
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l) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST), except where the amount of GST is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO).
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of an item of expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current
asset or current liability in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows arising from operating activities are disclosed in the cash flow statement on a
gross basis - i.e. inclusive of GST. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which is recoverable or payable to the taxation authority is classified
as operating cash flows.
m) Contributed Capital
m) Contributed Capital
Contributions to the Board are recognised as contributed capital with the approval of the
Contributions
to the and
Board
are the
recognised
contributed
capital with
the approval
the as
Minister
for Finance
when
transfer as
satisfies
the definition
of contribution
by of
owners
Minister
for Finance
and when the
transfer satisfies
definition of
contribution
by owners
per
FRD119A
TransfersThrough
Contributed
Capital.the
Contributed
capital
is disclosed
in the as
per FRD119A
TransfersThrough
Statement
of changes
in Equity. Contributed Capital. Contributed capital is disclosed in the
Statement of changes in Equity.
n) Leases
n) Leases
There are no finance leases.
There are no finance leases.
Operating leases are charged to the comprehensive operating statement in the period in
in thethe
period
in
Operating
are charged
the comprehensive
statement
as thistorepresents
the patternoperating
of benefits
derived from
leased
which
they leases
are incurred,
which they are incurred, as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased
assets.
assets.
o) Commitments
o) Commitments
Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value and inclusive of the goods and services tax
Commitments
disclosedwhere
at their
nominal
valueappropriate
and inclusive
ofprovides
the goods
and services tax
(GST)
payable.are
In addition,
it is
considered
and
additional
(GST) payable.
In addition,
it ispresent
considered
appropriate
andindividual
provides projects
additional
relevant
information
to users,where
the net
values
of significant
are
relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are
stated.
stated.
p) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
p) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are
the balance
but are
Contingent
contingent
liabilities areare
notmeasured
recognised
disclosed
byassets
way ofand
a note
and, if quantifiable,
atinnominal
value.sheet,
Contingent
disclosed
way of a
note
and, if quantifiable,
are measured
Contingent
assets
andby
liabilities
are
presented
inclusive of GST
receivableatornominal
payablevalue.
respectively.
assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
q) Comparatives
q) Comparatives
During the 2013 financial year, Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board did not
During thethe
2013
financialofyear,
Hotham
Resort
did not
recognise
disclosure
termMount
deposits
with aAlpine
maturity
dateManagement
greater than 3Board
months
recognise2014
the disclosure
term
deposits
withof
a Cost
maturity
date greater
than
3 monthsheld for
inventories
$800,000
(Nil 2013),ofand
the
separation
of Goods
Sold for
inventories
held
for
$800,000
(Nil 2013),
and2013),
the separation
of Cost
of $28,524
Goods Sold
resale,
gas2014
$66,407
2014 (Nil
and nursery
plants
2014for(Nil
2013). The
impact
resale,
$66,407
2014
(Nil 2013),
and nursery
plants
2014 which
(Nil 2013).
The
of
thesegas
changes
is not
considered
material
in regards
to $28,524
the decisions
would
be impact
drawn
of these
is not considered material in regards to the decisions which would be drawn
from
this changes
information.
from this information.
r) AASs issued that are not yet effective
r) AASs issued that are not yet effective
Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 31 October 2014
Certain new
AASs
have
been
published
are not
mandatory
for the 31and
October
2014
advises
of their
reporting
period.
The
Board
assesses
thethat
impact
of these
new standards
reporting period.
The Board
assesses
the impact of these new standards and advises of their
applicability
and early
adoption
where applicable.
applicability and early adoption where applicable.
As at 31 October 2014, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were
As at
31 October
the following
standards
and interpretations
had been
issued
not
mandatory
for 2014,
the financial
year ending
31 October
2014. The Board
has not
earlybut were
not mandatory
for the financial year ending 31 October 2014. The Board has not early
adopted
these standards.
adopted these standards.
Applicable
Impact on public sector entity
Applicable
Impact
on public
sector entity
for
annual
financial
statements
for
annual
financial statements
reporting
reporting
periods
periodson
beginning
beginning on
AASB 9 Financial
This standard simplifies
1 Jan 2017 While the preliminary assessment
AASB 9 Financial
This standardfor
simplifies
1 Jan 2017 has
While
preliminary
assessment
Instruments
requirements
the classification
notthe
identified
any material
Instruments
requirements
for the
has notarising
identified
material
and
measurement
of classification
financial
impact
fromany
AASB
9, it will
and measurement
of Phase
financial
impact arising
from AASBand
9, it will
assets
resulting from
1 of the
continue
to be monitored
Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual
Report from Phase
2013 / of
2014
assets project
resulting
the
continue to be monitored and
IASB’s
to replace IAS139
assessed.
IASB’s project
to replace
IAS 39
assessed.
Financial
Instruments:
Recognition
Financial
Instruments:
Recognition
and
Measurement
(AASB
139
and Measurement
(AASB
139
Financial
Instruments:
Recognition
Financial Instruments: Recognition
Standard/Interpretation
Standard/Interpretation
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Summary
Summary
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During the 2013 financial year, Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board did not
published
that aredate
not mandatory
the 31 October 2014
Certain
AASsof
have
recognise
the new
disclosure
termbeen
deposits
with a maturity
greater thanfor
3 months
reporting
period.
The
Board
assesses
the
impact
of
these
new
standards
and for
advises of their
$800,000 2014 (Nil 2013), and the separation of Cost of Goods Sold for inventories held
applicability
and
early
where
applicable.
resale,
gas $66,407
2014
(Niladoption
2013), and
nursery
plants $28,524 2014 (Nil 2013). The impact
of these changes is not considered material in regards to the decisions which would be drawn
31 October 2014, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were
from As
thisat
information.

not mandatory for the financial year ending 31 October 2014. The Board has not early

r) AASs issued
that are
not standards.
yet effective cont.
adopted
these

Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 31 October 2014

Summary
Applicable
Impact on public sector entity
Standard/Interpretation
reporting period. The Board assesses the impact of these new standards and advises of their
financial statements
for annual
applicability and early adoption where applicable.
reporting
periods
As at 31 October 2014, the following standards and interpretations had
been issued but were
not mandatory for the financial year ending 31 October 2014. Thebeginning
Board hason
not early

adopted
these standards.This standard simplifies
AASB
9 Financial
1 Jan 2017 While the preliminary assessment
Instruments
requirements for the classification
has not identified any material
Summary
Impact on
publicarising
sector from
entityAASB 9, it will
Standard/Interpretation
and measurement
of financialApplicable
impact
for annual
financial statements
assets resulting from Phase 1 of the
continue to be monitored and
reporting Applicable
Standard/Interpretation IASB’s projectSummary
Impact on public sector entity
to replace IAS 39
periods for annual assessed.
financial statements
Financial Instruments: Recognition
beginning on
reporting
and Measurement (AASB 139
AASB 9 Financial
This standard simplifies
1 Jan 2017 periods
While the preliminary assessment
Financial Instruments: Recognition
Instruments
requirements for the classification
has noton
identified any material
beginning
and Measurement).
and measurement of financial

Standard
forms1the
basis for
AASB 10 Consolidated
assets This
resulting
from Phase
of the
whichIAS
entities
project to replace
39 should
Financial StatementsIASB’sdetermining
be Instruments:
consolidatedRecognition
into an entity’s
Financial
financial statements.
and Measurement
(AASB 139AASB 10
Financial
Instruments:
defines
‘control’Recognition
as requiring
and Measurement).
exposure or rights to variable
returns and the ability to affect
those returns through power over
an investee, which may broaden
the concept of control for public
sector entities.
The AASB has issued an Australian
Implementation Guidance for Notfor-Profit Entities – Control and
Structured Entities that explains
and illustrates how the principles in
the Standard apply from the
perspective of not-for-profit entities
in the private and public sectors.
AASB 11 Joint
This Standard deals with the
Arrangements
concept of joint control, and sets
out a new principles-based
approach for determining the type
of joint arrangement that exists and
the corresponding accounting
treatment. The new categories of
joint arrangements under AASB 11
are more aligned to the actual rights
and obligations of the parties to the
arrangement.
AASB 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other
Entities

AASB 127 Separate
Financial Statements
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impact arising from AASB 9, it will

1 Jan
2014 toFor
the publicand
sector, AASB 10
continue
be monitored
(not-for-profit
assessed. builds on the control guidance that
existed in AASB 127 and
entities)
Interpretation 112 and is not
expected to change which entities
need to be consolidated.

1 Jan 2014 It is anticipated that there would
(not-for-profit be no material impact.
entities)
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AASB 128 Investments
Standard/Interpretation
in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Current assessment indicates that
there is limited impact on Victorian
Public Sector entities. Ongoing
work is being done to monitor and
assess the impact of this
standard.

Summary

Applicable
for annual
reporting
periods
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity
financial statements

This revised Standard sets out the 1 Jan 2014 Current assessment indicates that
Summary
Applicable
Impact on public sector entity
requirements for the application of (not-for-profit there is limited impact on Victorian
for annual
financial statements
the equity method when accounting entities)
Public Sector entities.
reporting
for investments in associates and
periods
joint ventures.
beginning on

AASB 128 Investments This revised Standard sets out the 1 Jan 2014 Current assessment indicates that
AASB 1055
Budgetary
AASB 1055
the scope
1 July 2014
Standard
is not
in Associates
and
Joint requirements
forextends
the application
of of(not-for-profit
thereThis
is limited
impact
onapplicable
Victorian as
Reporting
budgetary
reporting
is currently
no Sector
budgetentities.
disclosure is required.
Ventures
the equity
method
when that
accounting
entities)
Public
applicable for
whole ofand
for investments
in the
associates
jointgovernment
ventures. and general
government sector (GGS) to NFP
entities within the GGS, provided
AASB 1055 Budgetary
AASB
1055
extends
scopeseparate
of
1 July 2014 This Standard is not applicable as
that
these
entitiesthe
present
Reporting
budgetary
that is currently
no budget disclosure is required.
budgetreporting
to the parliament.
applicable for the whole of
AASB 1056
AASB 1056
1 July 2016 The standard was issued in June
government
and replaces
general AAS 25
Superannuation Entities
Financialsector
Reporting
byto NFP
2014. While preliminary
government
(GGS)
Superannuation
Plans.
The
assessment has not identified any
entities
within the GGS,
provided
was developed
in light of
material impact arising from AASB
that standard
these entities
present separate
changes
recent years,
1056,.
budget
to the in
parliament.
developments in the
AASB 1056
AASB
1056 replacesindustry
AAS 25and
1 July 2016 The standard was issued in June
superannuation
Superannuation Entities Financial
Reporting
by of IFRS.
2014. While preliminary
Australia’s
adoption
Superannuation Plans. The
assessment has not identified any
standard
was developed
light of
impact
arisingthat
from AASB
In addition to the new
standards
above, theinAASB
has issued a list ofmaterial
amending
standards
changes
in recent
years,period (as listed below). In 1056,.
are not effective for
the 2013-14
reporting
general, these amending
in the
standards include developments
editorial and references
changes that are expected to have insignificant
andInterpretation in the list below is also not effective
impacts on public superannuation
sector reporting.industry
The AASB
Australia’s
adoption
IFRS.
for the 2013-14 reporting
period
and isofconsidered
to have insignificant impacts on public sector
reporting.
In addition to the new standards above, the AASB has issued a list of amending standards that
• AASB 2010-7
to Australian
Accounting
Standards
arisingthese
fromamending
AASB 9
are not effective
for theAmendments
2013-14 reporting
period (as
listed below).
In general,
(December
2010). and references changes that are expected to have insignificant
standards
include editorial
• AASB
2011-7
Amendments
to Australian
AccountinginStandards
arising
fromnot
theeffective
impacts
on public
sector
reporting. The
AASB Interpretation
the list below
is also
Consolidation
andperiod
Joint Arrangements
Standards.
for the 2013-14
reporting
and is considered
to have insignificant impacts on public sector
reporting.
• 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1049 – Relocation of Budgetary Reporting Requirements.

•

This Standard requires disclosure
1 Jan 2014 It is anticipated that there would
of information that enables users of (not-for-profit be no material impact.
financial statements to evaluate the entities)
nature of, and risks associated with,
interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the
financial statements. This Standard
replaces the disclosure
requirements in AASB 127
Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 131 Interests in Joint
Ventures.
This revised Standard prescribes
1 Jan 2014
the accounting and disclosure
(not-for-profit
requirements for investments in
entities)
subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates when an entity prepares
separate financial statements.

Standard/Interpretation

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

AASB
2010-7
Amendments
Australian
Accounting Standards
arising fromfor
AASB
9
• 2013-3
Amendments
to to
AASB
136 – Recoverable
Amount Disclosures
Non-Financial
(December
2010).
Assets.
AASB
2011-7
Amendments
Australian
Accounting
Standards
arising from
the
• 2013-4
Amendments
to to
Australian
Accounting
Standards
– Novation
of Derivatives
and
Consolidation
andofJoint
Arrangements
Continuation
Hedge
Accounting.Standards.

2013-1
Amendments
to AASB
1049 – Relocation
Budgetary– Reporting
Requirements.
• 2013-5
Amendments
to Australian
AccountingofStandards
Investment
Entities
2013-3
Amendments
to
AASB
136
–
Recoverable
Amount
Disclosures
for
Non-Financial
• 2013-6 Amendments to AASB 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements
Assets.
• 2013-7 Amendments to AASB 1038 arising from AASB 10 in relation to consolidation and
2013-4
Amendments
Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and
interests
of policyto
holders
Continuation of Hedge Accounting.
• 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
2013-5
Amendments
to Australian
Accounting Standards – Investment Entities
Materiality
and Financial
Instruments
2013-6
Amendments
to
AASB
136
• AASB Interpretation 21 Levies. arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements

2013-7 Amendments to AASB 1038 arising from AASB 10 in relation to consolidation and
interests of policy holders

•

2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments

•

AASB Interpretation 21 Levies.
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NOTE 2 Income from transactions

Revenue
Revenue
Government grants
Government grants
Department of Environment and Primary Industries
Department of Environment and Primary Industries
Sustainability Victoria
Sustainability Victoria
Alpine Shire Council contribution to Hotham Dinner Plain Trail
Alpine Shire Council contribution to Hotham Dinner Plain Trail
Department of Transport, Planning & Local Infrastructure Department of Transport, Planning & Local Infrastructure
Rendering of Services
Site rental
Service charges
Transport Contribution
*Gas trading operations - refer to Note 3 for COGS
Gate entry
*Horticultural supplies - refer to Note 3 for COGS

Rendering of Services
Site rental
Service charges
Transport Contribution
*Gas trading operations - refer to Note 3 for COGS
Gate entry
*Horticultural supplies - refer to Note 3 for COGS

Interest

Interest

Sale of rights to lease and develop Crown Land

Sale of rights to lease and develop Crown Land

Other Revenue
Infringement Revenue
Service Charges - Infrastructure fee
Other Income

Other Revenue
Infringement Revenue
Service Charges - Infrastructure fee
Other Income

Total income from transactions

Total income from transactions

NOTE 3 Expenses
Included in Expenses are :

Included in Expenses are :

Depreciation charge for the period :

Depreciation charge for the period :

Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles

Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles

Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, wages and other on costs
Superannuation

Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, wages and other on costs
Superannuation

2014
$

2013
2014
2013
NOTE 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
NOTE 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
$
$
$
Current

20,000
15,020
35,020

65,000
NOTE 5 Receivables
12,166
10,000
Current
87,166

1,291,432
4,193,066
130,002
1,386,981
2,665,100
106,675
9,773,257

1,396,596
3,862,576
115,308
1,368,417
2,334,250
93,760
9,170,907

163,051

126,856

-

Current

Cash at bank

Cash at bank

65,000
20,000
NOTE 5 Receivables
15,020
12,166
10,000
Current
Trade debtors
35,020
87,166

Trade debtors
Infringement debtors
Infringement debtors
Less provision for doubtful debtsLess provision for doubtful debts
Other receivables
Other receivables

1,291,432
1,396,596
4,193,066
3,862,576
130,002
115,308
Where necessary
interest is charged
Where
onnecessary
overdue debts
interest
in accordance
is charged on
with
overdue
the Penalty
debtsInterest
in accordance
Rates Act
with1983
the Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983
1,386,981
1,368,417
or in accordance
with relevant legislation
or in accordance
and/or lease
with relevant
terms, which
legislation
at 31 and/or
Octoberlease
2014terms,
was 10.5%
which (2013
at 31 October
- 10.5%).2014 was 10.5% (2013 - 10.5%).
2,665,100
2,334,250
value.
The carrying value of debtors approximates
The carryingfair
value
of debtors approximates fair value.
106,675
93,760
9,773,257
9,170,907
In 2013 the Mt Hotham Resort Management
In 2013 the Mt
Board
Hotham
changed
Resort
its Management
accounting policy
Board
forchanged
the
its accounting policy for the

334,100
23,992
288,545
646,637

10,841,317

10,091,566

2014
$

19

6,356,883
6,356,883

2,865,499
192,865,499

6,356,883
6,356,883

19

718,648
211,232
(72,398)
44,699
902,181

637,259
117,292
(39,086)
43,004
19 758,469

718,648
211,232
(72,398)
44,699
902,181

(39,086)
(34,216)
904
(72,398)

(432)
(39,097)
443
(39,086)

(39,086)
(34,216)
904
(72,398)

2
2

whenrevenue,
the penalty
imposed.
when the penalty has been imposed.
recognition criteria of infringement
recognition
revenue, criteria
it is now
ofrecorded
infringement
it is has
nowbeen
recorded

163,051
126,856
Previous years
it was recorded when
Previous
years it was recorded when received.
received.

60,000
60,000
Movement in doubtful debts Movement in doubtful
debts

231,643
176,828
461,518
869,989

2013
$

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
New provisions recognised
New provisions recognised
Amounts
written
off
as
uncollectible
Amounts
written off as uncollectible
231,643
334,100
Balance at the
end of the year Balance at the end of the year
176,828
23,992

461,518
288,545
All debtors have
been reviewed by
All management
debtors have at
been
period
reviewed
end and
by management
a provision foratdoubtful
period end
debts
andhas
a provision for doubtful debts has
869,989
646,637
been raised to reflect collectability
been
of infringement
raised to reflect
debtors
collectability
of $72,398
of infringement
(2013 $39,086).
debtors of $72,398 (2013 $39,086).

10,841,317

10,091,566

There are no ex gratia transactions
There
to disclose.
are no ex gratia transactions to disclose.

NOTE 6 Other Financial Assets
NOTE 6 Other Financial Assets
Current

218,724
748,388
266,155
1,233,267

Audit Fees
Audit Fees
Audit of Financial Statements -Victorian Auditor-General's Audit
Officeof Financial Statements -Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Internal Auditor
Internal Auditor
Other costs including
Other costs including
Maintenance
Maintenance
Energy
Energy
Cost of Goods Sold - Gas operations
Cost of Goods Sold - Gas operations
Cost of Goods Sold - Horticultural operations
Cost of Goods Sold - Horticultural operations
Marketing
Marketing
Consultants and Contractors
Consultants and Contractors
Communications
Communications
Accommodation - Staff
Accommodation - Staff
Support Payments (Alpine Resorts Co-ordinating Council)Support Payments (Alpine Resorts Co-ordinating Council)
Insurance
Insurance
Interest
Interest
Legal
Legal
Licenses, monitoring and testing
Licenses, monitoring and testing
Training related costs
Training related costs
Equipment and safety related costs
Equipment and safety related costs
Consumables
Consumables
Bad and doubtful debts
Bad and doubtful debts
Other
Other
Total expenses from transactions

2014
$

Total expenses from transactions

3,463,773
312,970
3,776,743
25,300
17,272
42,572
647,338
537,242
765,133
22,433
247,562
533,330
58,959
104,989
234,032
308,920
110,127
90,774
134,819
155,074
138,609
92,112
34,504
576,218
4,792,175
9,844,757

215,219
Non-Current
752,431
272,230
1,239,880

NOTE 7 Inventories

Current
3,309,896
274,600
3,584,496

Current

Term Deposits

218,724
215,219
Non-Current
Term Deposits

748,388
752,431
Total Other 272,230
Financial Assets
266,155
1,233,267
1,239,880

Term Deposits

19

3,000,000
3,000,000

Term Deposits

19

300,000

Total Other Financial Assets

19

3,300,000

Current
Supplies and
consumables:
3,463,773
3,309,896
Fuel
312,970
274,600
Inventory
3,776,743
3,584,496

25,300
24,685
Inventories held9,290
for sale:
17,272
Gas
42,572
33,975
Plants

Supplies and consumables:
Fuel
Inventory

Inventories held for sale:
Gas
Plants

632,649
647,338
632,649
Total inventories
Total inventories
570,600
537,242
570,600
744,824
765,133
744,824
NOTE 8 Property, Plant & Equipment
NOTE 8 Property, Plant & Equipment
14,877
22,433
14,877
183,435
183,435
Land
Land 247,562
At Fair Value576,990
At Fair Value
576,990
533,330
67,786
58,959
67,786
97,303
104,989
97,303
Land held for resale
Land held
for resale 210,247
210,247
234,032
Right to lease and develop land Right
parceltoatlease
Fair Value
and develop land parcel at Fair Value
290,610
308,920
290,610
114,820
110,127
114,820
Buildings
Buildings
142,428
90,774
At Fair Value142,428
At Fair Value
119,590
134,819
119,590
Less accumulated
depreciation Less accumulated depreciation
152,400
155,074
152,400
137,761
138,609
137,761
Village and Community Infrastructure
Village and
Community102,438
Infrastructure
102,438
92,112
At
Fair
Value
At Fair Value
39,503
34,504
39,503
Less
accumulated
depreciation Less accumulated depreciation
483,591
576,218
483,591
4,681,853
4,792,175
4,681,853

-

300,000

19

19 800,000

3,300,000

29,911
15,008
44,919

49,995
15,008
65,003

65,884
24,187
90,071

66,407
28,524
94,931

65,884
24,187
90,071

155,074

139,850

155,074

41,815,000
41,815,000

41,815,000
41,815,000

41,815,000
41,815,000

42,208
42,208

42,208
42,208

42,208
42,208

41
41

6,643,913
(440,126)
6,203,787

6,801,437
(658,851)
6,142,586

6

4,134,383
(288,468)
3,845,915

4,037,941
(188,276)
3,849,665

4,134,383
(288,468)
3,845,915

4

10,298,947
(534,308)
9,764,639

10,261,584
(362,337)
9,899,247

10,298,947
(534,308)
9,764,639

10

At Fair Value
At Fair Value
Less accumulated depreciation Less accumulated depreciation

5,781,862
(665,681)
5,116,181

5,771,738
(482,327)
5,289,411

5,781,862
(665,681)
5,116,181

5

At Fair Value
At Fair Value
Less accumulated depreciation Less accumulated depreciation

6,882,284
(718,133)
6,164,151

6,796,700
(477,992)
6,318,708

6,882,284
(718,133)
6,164,151

6

At Fair Value
At Fair Value
Less accumulated depreciation Less accumulated depreciation

1,153,740
(148,925)
1,004,815

1,153,741
(98,004)
1,055,737

1,153,740
(148,925)
1,004,815

1

3,733,265
(2,594,396)
1,138,869
2,448,676
77,483,040

3,071,533
(2,378,630)
692,903
212,222
75,378,888

3,733,265
(2,594,396)
1,138,869
2,448,676
77,483,040

3
(2

Roads and carparks
9,844,757
9,540,204
At Fair Value
At Fair Value
Less accumulated depreciation Less accumulated depreciation

Water

Water

Sewerage

Sewerage

Gas

49,995
15,008
65,003

6,801,437
(658,851)
6,142,586

Roads and carparks

Gas

3,000,000
3,000,000

NOTE 7 Inventories

24,685
9,290
33,975

9,540,204

800,000
19 800,000

6

3

9

5

6

1

Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles
Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles
At Fair Value
At Fair Value
Less accumulated depreciation Less accumulated depreciation
Capital Works in Progress at cost
Capital Works in Progress at cost
Total
Total

63
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Note 8.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below.

Note 8.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at

2014

Land
Land held for sale
2014 Buildings
Land
Village and Community
Land held for sale
Infrastructure
Buildings
Roads and carparks
Village and Community
Water
Infrastructure
Sewage
Roads
and carparks
Gas
Water
Plant
,
Sewage Equipment & Motor
Vehicles
Gas
Capital
Works in &Progress
Plant
, Equipment
Motor
Vehicles
Capital Works in Progress

2013

Additions
$

Disposals
$

Transfers
$

Depreciation

Carrying

$

of year

Reconciliations
of the carrying amounts of each class of asset at the beginning and end
of the current
financial
year are set out below.
start of year
Expense
amount
at end

$

Carrying amount
at
41,815,000
Additions
start of year 42,208
$
$ 6,203,787
41,815,000
3,849,665
42,208
6,203,787

9,899,247
3,849,665
5,289,411
6,318,708
9,899,247
1,055,737
5,289,411

6,318,708
692,903
1,055,737
212,222
75,378,888

Land

start of year
$ 41,815,000

Additions
$

Additions
$

3,676,359
6,251,609

-

9,957,524
3,676,359

-

9,957,524
6,557,704
5,483,928
997,253
6,557,704
997,253
776,852

-

5,483,928

75,596,652
80,424

75,596,652

-

-

-

-

(6,035)

-

-

-

-

1,022,393

1,022,393
1,022,393
1,022,393

-

(171,971)

9,764,639

(240,141)9,764,639
6,164,151
37,36385,584(171,971)
(50,922)5,116,181
1,004,815
10,124 - (183,354)
85,584
719,965(240,141)
(266,155)6,164,151
1,140,677
(50,922)
1,004,815

All the Board’s specialised buildings use the depreciated replacement cost method, adjusting for the associated
depreciations. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant, unobservable inputs in nature, specialised
buildings are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.

(1,106,999)
2,448,676
- (266,155)
(1,233,267)1,140,677
77,483,040

(6,035)
(6,035)

Disposals
$
-

-

37,363

719,965
(1,106,999)
-

(1,233,267)

An independent valuation of the Boards specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-General
Victoria. The effective date of the valuation is 31 October 2011.

2,448,676
Carrying
77,483,040

Depreciation
amount at end
Expense
Carryingof year
Depreciation$
Transfers
amount at end$
Expense
$
- of year 41,815,000
$
$
42,208
42,208
- 167,397
- (215,219)
41,815,000
6,203,787
Transfers
$

Specialised land and specialised buildings
The market approach is used for specialised land, although is adjusted for the community service obligation (CSO) to
reflect the specialised nature of the land being valued.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset
to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use
consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible,
legally permissible, and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered significant unobservable inputs in
nature, specialised land are classified as Level 3 fair value measurements.

96,44210,124(102,000)
(183,354)3,844,107
5,116,181

- (6,035)
-

Disposals
$

-

Depreciation
- Carrying41,815,000
amount
at end 42,208
- Expense
of year 6,142,586
157,523 $
(218,724)
41,815,000
3,844,107
- 96,442
- (102,000) 42,208
157,523
(218,724)
6,142,586

Transfers
$

-

-

3,343,453
3,343,453

41,815,000
6,251,609

776,852
80,424

-

3,343,453
3,343,453
-

212,222
692,903
75,378,888

Carrying amount at
start of year
Carrying amount
at
$

2013 Land held for sale
Land
Buildings
Land held for sale
Village and Community
Buildings
Infrastructure
Village and Community
Roads and carparks
Infrastructure
Water
Roads and carparks
Sewerage
Water
Gas
Sewerage
Plant , Equipment & Motor
Gas
Vehicles
Plant
, Equipment & Motor
Capital Works in Progress
Vehicles
Capital Works in Progress

-

Disposals
$
-

Note 8.2 Property, Plant and Equipment cont.

Village and community infrastructure, roads and car parks, water, sewerage and gas
All village & community infrastructure, roads & car parks, water, sewage & gas assets are valued using the depreciated
replacement cost method. This cost represents the replacement cost of the building/component after applying depreciation
rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs relate to costs to replace the current service capacity of the asset.
Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the depreciated replacement cost calculation.

1

42,208
42,208
263,529(215,219)
(90,224)6,203,787
3,849,665
167,397

1

(0.12)

113,477 (90,224)
(171,753)3,849,665
9,899,247
263,529

(0.12)

(0.39)

113,477
(171,753)
9,899,247
- (202,001)
(238,996)5,289,411
6,318,708
7,485.00
107,941.21
(49,457)
1,055,737
(238,996)
6,318,708
107,941.21
(49,457)
1,055,737
(277)
188,557
(272,230)
692,903

(0.39)

Where it has not been possible to examine hidden works such as structural frames and floors, the use of reasonable
materials and methods of construction have been assumed bearing in mind the age and nature of the buildings, roads and
carparks, water, sewerage and gas infrastructure assets.

0

An independent valuation of the Boards infrastructure, roads and car parks was performed by Cosgraves & Eastoe Pty Ltd
on behalf of the Valuer-General Victoria. The valuation was performed based on the depreciated replacement cost of the
assets. The effective date of the valuation is 31 October 2011.

-

(277) -

- (277)
(277)

7,485.00

(202,001)

188,557
(890,594)(272,230)

5,289,411

692,903212,222

-

0

(1,239,880)
75,378,888
(890,594) 212,222
(1,239,880)
75,378,888

0
-1

0
-1

Note 8.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 8.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 October 2014

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 October 2014

Carrying

Carrying
amount
amount as at
as at
$

Land at fair value

Land at fair value
Specialised land
Specialised land
TotalofofLand
Landatatfair
fairvalue
value
Total
Buildingsatatfair
fairvalue
value
Buildings
Specialisedbuildings
buildings
Specialised
TotalofofBuildings
Buildingsatat
fair
value
Total
fair
value
Village&& Community
Community
Infrastructure
at fair
value
Village
Infrastructure
at fair
value
Village&&Community
Community
Infrastructure
at fair
value
Village
Infrastructure
at fair
value
TotalofofVillage
Village&&Community
Community
Infrastructure
at fair
value
Total
Infrastructure
at fair
value
Roads&&carparks
carparksatatfair
fair
value
Roads
value
Roads
fair
value
Roads&&carparks
carparksatat
fair
value
Total
at at
fairfair
value
TotalofofRoads
Roads&&Carparks
Carparks
value
Water
WaterAssets
Assetsatatfair
fairvalue
value
Water
and
treatment
plants
Water- -Weirs
Weirs& &reservoirs,
reservoirs,
and
treatment
plants
Water
works
Water- -Pipes
Pipesand
anddrainage
drainage
works
Water
and
switchboards
Water- -Pump
Pumpstations
stations
and
switchboards
Water
Water- -Tanks
Tanks
Total of Water Assets at fair value
Total of Water Assets at fair value
Sewerage Assets at fair value
Sewerage Assets at fair value
Sewerage - STP Infrastructure
Sewerage - STP Infrastructure
Sewerage - Pipes
Sewerage - Pipes
Sewerage - Tanks
Sewerage- -Pump
Tanks
Sewerage
wells
Sewerage
- Pump
wells at fair value
Total
of Sewerage
Assets
Total
of Sewerage
Assets at fair value
Gas
Assets
at fair value
Gas
GasAssets
- Pipesat fair value
Gas- -Infrastructure
Pipes
Gas
Gas- -Tanks
Infrastructure
Gas
Gasof- Gas
Tanks
Total
Assets at fair value
Plant,
& Vehicles
fair value
Total Equipment
of Gas Assets
at fairatvalue
Vehicles
Plant,
Equipment & Vehicles at fair value
Plant
& equipment
Vehicles
Total
of &
Plant,
Equipment & Vehicles at fair value
Plant
equipment
Notes:
Total of Plant, Equipment & Vehicles at fair value
(i)
Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see note 1 (b)
Notes:
Assets
under construction
arewith
excluded
from
the hierarchy,
table abovesee
as note
they are
measured at cost.
(i) Classified
in accordance
the fair
value
1 (b)

$

Fair value measurement at end of

Fair value measurement
at endusing:
of
reporting period
reporting period using:

Level 1 (i)

Level 1 (i)
$
$

41,857,208
41,857,208
41,857,208
41,857,208

Level 2(i)
Level 3(i)
Level 3(i)
$
$

Level 2(i)
$

$

-

-

-

41,857,208
41,857,208
41,857,208
41,857,208

6,142,586
6,142,586
6,142,586
6,142,586

-

-

-

-6,142,5866,142,586
-6,142,5866,142,586

3,845,915
3,845,915
3,845,915
3,845,915

-

-

-

-3,845,9153,845,915
-3,845,9153,845,915

9,764,639
9,764,639
9,764,639
9,764,639

-

-

-

-9,764,6399,764,639
-9,764,6399,764,639

1,943,625
1,943,625
1,435,631
1,435,631
961,700
961,700
775,225
775,225
5,116,181

-

-

-

-1,943,6251,943,625
-1,435,6311,435,631
- 961,700 961,700
- 775,225 775,225
5,116,181
5,116,181

2,776,461
2,776,461
2,493,450
2,493,450
524,440
524,440
369,800
369,800
6,164,151

-

461,700
461,700
316,516
316,516
226,600
226,600
1,004,816

-

342,219
796,650
342,219
1,138,869
796,650

-

5,116,181

6,164,151

1,004,816

1,138,869

-

-

Vehicles
Vehicles are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. The Board acquires new vehicles and at times
disposes of them before the end of their economic life. The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is
managed by experienced fleet managers in the Board who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect the
utilisation of the vehicles.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is held at fair value. When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other
than as part of a going concern, fair value is determined using the depreciated replacement cost method.
There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 31 October 2014.
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.

2,776,461

2,776,461
2,493,450
2,493,450
524,440
- 369,800 524,440
-6,164,151 369,800
6,164,151
461,700

- 316,516 461,700
- 226,600 316,516
-1,004,816 226,600
1,004,816
342,219

- 796,650 342,219
-1,138,869 796,650
1,138,869

Assets under construction are excluded from the table above as they are measured at cost.

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

There have been no transfers between levels during the period.
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-

Significant unobservable
Range
inputs
(weighted average)
Significant unobservable

Sensitivity of fair value measurement to changes
in significant unobservable
inputs
Range
Sensitivity of fair value measurement to c
Significant unobservable A Significant
Rangein the
Sensitivity ofinputs
fair value me
increase
or decrease
CSO
Valuation technique
inputs
(weighted
average)
in significant
unobservable
Community
Service
Obligation
adjustment
would
result
in
a
significantly
lower
Valuation technique
inputs
(weighted average)
significant
A Significant in
increase
orunobservabl
decrease i
Specialised land
Market approach
50-95%
(CSO) adjustment
(higher) fair value.
A Significant increase
Community Service Obligation
adjustment
A significant increase or decrease in direct
cost per would result in a signific
2
Community
Service
Obligation
adjustment
would
resu
square meter
adjustment would result (higher)
in a
Specialised land
Market approach
(CSO) adjustment $600-$3,600/m
50-95%
fair value.
Specialised buildings
Specialised land
Depreciated replacement
cost
Direct cost per square meter
($2,100)
significantly higher or lower fair
value.
Market
approach
(CSO) adjustment
50-95%
(higher) fair
value. in
A significant increase
or decrease
A significant increase or decrease
in the estimated
2
significant would
increase
meterAadjustment
reso
Useful life of specialised
15-60 years
useful $600-$3,600/m
life of the asset would result in asquare
significantly
2
$600-$3,600/m
squareormeter
Specialised buildings
buildings
(55meter
years)
higher or lower
valuation.
Depreciated replacement cost
Direct cost per square
($2,100)
significantly higher
loweradjustme
fair valu
Specialised buildings
Depreciated replacement cost
Direct cost per square meter
($2,100)
significantly
higher or in
l
A significant increase or decrease
in cost
per meter
A significant
increase
or decrease
Village and Community
$45 - $4,000 per meter
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
A significant
increase
o
Useful
life
of
specialised
15-60
years
useful
life
of
the
asset
would
result
Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($2,025)
value.
Useful life of specialised A significant
15-60 years
useful
life of the asset
buildings
(55increase
years)or decrease
higher
or lower
valuation.
in the
estimated
(55
years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
Useful life of village & community buildings
3 - 80 years
useful life of the asset would
result
in aAsignificantly
significant increase
decrease
infrastructure
(31 years)
higher or lower valuation.
A significant
increase
Village and Community
$45 - $4,000 per meter
would result in
a significantly
highero
A significant increase
costmeter
per meter
Village and Community
$45or-decrease
$4,000inper
would result in a signif
Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
$500-$650 per meter
would result($2,025)
in a significantly higher orvalue.
lower fair
Depreciated
replacement
Cost per ($575)
unit
($2,025)A significant increase
value. or decrease in
Roads and carInfrastructure
parks
Depreciated replacement
cost
Cost per unit cost
value.
A significant
increase
A significant
or decrease in the
estimated
Useful life of village & community
3 - increase
80 years
useful
life of the
asset would
result o
to 80
useful life of the asset would
in a significantly
Useful10life
of years
village & community
3 -result
80 years
useful
life of the asset
(31 years)
higher or lower
valuation.
Useful life of roadsinfrastructure
& car parks
(35 years)
higher or lower
valuation.
infrastructure
(31 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A significant
increase
decrease
A significant increase or decrease in cost
per meter
A significant
increase
Water -Weirs, reservoirs and
$800 - $2,000 per meter
would
result in a significantly
lower fair
$500-$650
per meterhigher orwould
result in
a significantly
highero
treatment plant
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
meter
would result in a signif
Roads
and car parks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($575)$500-$650 pervalue.
A significant increase or decrease
in the estimated
Roads and car parks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($575)
value. or decrease in
significant increase
20 to 80 years
useful life of the asset would result in aAsignificantly
A significant
increase
Useful life of water
(36 years)
higher or
valuation.
10lower
to 80
years
useful life of the
asset would
result o
to 80inyears
useful
life of the asset
A significant
decrease
cost
per meter
Useful life of roads & car parks
(35increase
years)or10
higher
or lower
valuation.
Water - Pipes and drainage
$800 -life
$2,000
per meter
result in a significantly
or lower fair
Useful
of roads
& carwould
parks
(35higher
years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A significant increase
decrease
works
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
A significant
increase
Water -Weirs, reservoirs and
- $2,000
per
would
result in
a significantly
highero
A$800
significant
increase
or meter
decrease in the
estimated
Water -Weirs, reservoirs
and replacement cost
$800
- $2,000
meter
would result in a signif
10 to 60 years
useful life of($1,400)
the asset
would
result inper
avalue.
significantly
treatment plant
Depreciated
Cost per unit
Useful life of water
years)
higher or lower valuation. ($1,400)
treatment plant
Depreciated replacement
cost
Cost per(45unit
value. or decrease in
A significant increase
A significant increase or decrease in cost per meter
A significant
increase
20 toin 80
years higher oruseful
life of the
asset would
result o
Water- Pump stations and
$800 - $2,000 per meter
would result
a significantly
lower fair
useful
life of the asset
switchboards
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
value.
Useful life of water ($1,400)
(36 years) 20 to 80 years
higher or lower
valuation.
Useful life of water
(36 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A significant increase or decrease
in the estimated
A significant increase
decrease
3 to 50 years
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
A significant
increase
Water - Pipes and drainage
$800
$2,000
per
meter
would
result
in
a
significantly
highero
Useful life of water
(28 years)
higher or lower valuation.
Water - Pipes andDepreciated
drainage replacement cost
$800 - $2,000 per
meter
would result in a signif
works
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
A significant
increase or decrease in cost
per unit
works
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost
per- $800,000
unit
value. or decrease in
$70,000
per unit would result in a significantly($1,400)
higher orAlower
fair
significant
increase
Water - tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($260,000)
value.
A significant
increase
10
to
60
years
useful
life
of
the
asset would
result o
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
10 to 60 years
useful
life of the asset
Useful life of water 40 to 42 years
or lower
valuation.
useful life (45
of theyears)
asset would result in ahigher
significantly
Useful life
water
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
Useful life of water
(40 of
years)
higher or lower valuation. (45 years)
A significant increase
decrease
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
A significant
increase
Water- Pump stations and
$800
$2,000
per
meter
would
result
in
a
significantly
highero
Sewerage - STP
$800 - $2,000 per meter
would result in a significantly
higher or
lower
fair
Water- Pump stations
and replacement cost
$800 - $2,000
per
meter
would result in a signif
switchboards
Depreciated
Cost
per
unit
($1,400)
value.
infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
switchboards
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value. or decrease in
A significant increase or decrease
in the
A estimated
significant increase
A significant
increase
20 to 80 years
useful life
would result in auseful
significantly
3 of
tothe
50asset
years
life of the
asset would
result o
Useful life of sewerage
(35 years)
higher or lower valuation.3 to 50 years
useful
life of the asset
Useful life of water
(28
years)
higher
or
lower
valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
Useful
life of water
(28 years) significant
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
increase
decrease
would result in a significantly higher orAlower
fair
$800 - $2,000 per meter
A significant
increase
Sewerage - Pipes
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
value.
($1,400)
$70,000 - $800,000 per unit would result in
a significantly
highero
A significant increase
or decrease
in the estimated
$70,000
- $800,000
per unit would result in a signif
Water - tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($260,000)
value.
useful life of the asset would
result in a significantly
20 tounit
50 years
Water - tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per
($260,000)
value. or decrease in
A significant increase
Useful life of sewerage
(46 years)
higher or lower valuation.
A significant
increase
A significant
increase
or
decrease
in cost
per unit
40 to 42 years
useful
life of the
asset would
result o
40 tohigher
42 years
useful
life of the asset
$53,000 - $450,000 per unit would result
in years)
a significantly
orhigher
lower fair
Useful life of water
(40
or lower
valuation.
Sewerage - Tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($435,000)
value.
Useful life
of water
(40 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A estimated
significant increase
decrease
A significant increase or decrease in the
A significant
increase
Sewerage - STP
$800life
- $2,000
perwould
meter
result in
a significantly
highero
25 to 50 years
useful
of the asset
result in awould
significantly
Sewerage - STP Depreciated replacement cost
$800 - $2,000 per
meter
would result in a signif
Useful life of sewerage
(38 years)
higher or lower
valuation.
infrastructure
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
A significant increase or decrease
in cost per unit
infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value. or decrease in
A significant increase
$55,000 - $120,000 per unit would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
A significant
increase
20
to
80
years
useful
life
of
the
asset would
result o
Sewerage - Pump wells
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($83,500)
value.
to 80inyears
useful
life of the asset
A significant
decrease
the
estimated
Useful life of sewerage
(35increase
years)or20
higher
or lower
valuation.
Useful25life
of years
sewerage useful life of the asset would
(35
years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
to 50
result
in aAsignificantly
significant increase
decrease
Useful life of sewerage
(33 years)
higher or lower valuation.
A significant
increase
$800
$2,000
per
meter
would
result
in
a
significantly
highero
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
$800 - $2,000 per
meter
would result in a signif
Sewerage - Pipes
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit $800 - $2,000 per meter
would result($1,400)
in a significantly higher orvalue.
lower fair
Depreciated
replacement
Cost per($1,400)
unit
($1,400)A significant increase
value. or decrease in
Gas - Pipes Sewerage - Pipes
Depreciated replacement
cost
Cost per unit cost
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
A significant
increase
20
to
50
years
useful
life
of
the
asset would
result o
40 to 50 years
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
20 to 50 years
useful
life of the asset
(46 years)
higher or lower
valuation.
Useful life of gas Useful life of sewerage
(41 years)
higher or lower
valuation.
Useful life of sewerage A significant increase or decrease
(46 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
in cost
per unit
A significant
increase
decrease
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
A significant
increase
$53,000
- $450,000 per unit would result in
a significantly
highero
Gas - Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
$1,000 - $2,000 per meter
value.
$53,000 - $450,000
per unit would result in a signif
Sewerage - Tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($435,000)
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
Sewerage - Tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per
unit
($435,000) significant increase
value. or decrease in
15 to 50 years
useful life of the asset would result in aAsignificantly
A significant
increase
Useful life of gas
(31 years)
higher or
valuation.
25lower
to 50
years
useful life of the
asset would
result o
A significant increase or25
decrease
cost per unit
to 50inyears
useful
life of the asset
Useful life of sewerage
(38
years)
higher
or
lower
valuation.
$15,000 - $200,000 per unit would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
Useful
life of sewerage
(38 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A significant increase
decrease
Gas - Tanks
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($200,000)
value.
A significant
increase
A significant
increase or per
decrease
estimated
$55,000
- $120,000
unitin the
would
result in
a significantly
highero
25 to 50 years
useful life of the$55,000
asset would
result in a significantly
- $120,000
per unit would result in a signif
Sewerage - Pump wells
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($83,500)
value.
Useful life of gascost
years)
higher or lower valuation. ($83,500)
Sewerage - Pump wells
Depreciated replacement
Cost per(44unit
value. or decrease in
A significant
increase
A significant increase or decrease in cost
per unit
A significant
increase
would result
a significantly
lower fair
25 toin 50
years higher oruseful
life of the
asset would
result o
useful
life of the asset
Vehicles
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
$4,000-$161,000 per unit
value.
Useful life of sewerage
(33 years) 25 to 50 years
higher or lower
valuation.
in the estimated
Useful life of sewerage A significant increase or decrease
(33 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
significant increase
decrease
5-15 years
useful life of the asset would result in aAsignificantly
A significant
increase
$800or- lower
$2,000
per meter
would result in
a significantly
highero
Useful life of plant & equipment
(7 years)
higher
valuation.
$800
- $2,000in per
meter
would result in a signif
A significant
increase
or decrease
cost
per unit
Gas - Pipes
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
($1,400)
value.
Gas - Pipes
would result in a significantly($1,400)
higher or lower fair
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
value. or decrease in
A significant increase
Plant and equipment
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
$1,000-$162,000 per unit
value.
A significant
increase
40 toincrease
50 years
useful
life of the
asset would
result o
A significant
or decrease in the
estimated
40 to
50 in
years
useful
life of the asset
5-25 years
useful life (41
of theyears)
asset would
result
ahigher
significantly
Useful life of gas
or lower
valuation.
Useful life
of gas
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
Useful life of plant & equipment
(7 years)
higher or lower valuation. (41 years)
A significant increase
decrease
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Gas - Tanks

Depreciated replacement cost

5-25 years
(7 years)
Useful life of plant & equipment

$1,000-$162,000 per unit
Depreciated replacement cost

Plant and equipment

Cost per unit

5-15 years
(7 years)
Useful life of plant & equipment

$4,000-$161,000 per unit
Depreciated replacement cost

Vehicles

Cost per unit

25 to 50 years
(44 years)

A significant
increase
would result in
a significantly
highero
would result in a signif
$1,000 - $2,000 per meter
value.
$1,000 - $2,000 per
meter
value. or decrease in
A significant
increase
A significant
increase
to 50 years
asset would
result o
Mount Hotham Resort Management Annual 15
Report
2013 useful
/ 2014life of the
68
useful
life of the asset
Useful life of gas
(31 years) 15 to 50 years
higher or lower
valuation.
Useful life of gas
(31 years)
higher or or
lower
valuatiin
A significant increase
decrease
A significant
increase
$15,000 - $200,000 per unit would result in
a significantly
highero
$15,000 - $200,000
per unit would result in a signif
Cost per unit
($200,000)
value.

Gas - Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
Gas - Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Cost per unit
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Useful life of gas

$15,000 - $200,000 per unit
($200,000)
Depreciated replacement cost

Gas - Tanks

Cost per unit

15 to 50 years
(31 years)
Useful life of gas

$1,000 - $2,000 per meter
Cost per unit
Depreciated replacement cost

Gas - Infrastructure

40 to 50 years
(41 years)
Useful life of gas

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Depreciated replacement cost

Gas - Pipes

Cost per unit

25 to 50 years
(33 years)
Useful life of sewerage

$55,000 - $120,000 per unit
($83,500)
Depreciated replacement cost

Sewerage - Pump wells

Cost per unit

25 to 50 years
(38 years)
Useful life of sewerage

$53,000 - $450,000 per unit
($435,000)
Depreciated replacement cost

Sewerage - Tanks

Cost per unit

20 to 50 years
(46 years)
Useful life of sewerage

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Cost per unit
Depreciated replacement cost

Sewerage - Pipes

20 to 80 years
(35 years)
Useful life of sewerage

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Depreciated replacement cost
Sewerage - STP
infrastructure

Cost per unit

40 to 42 years
(40 years)
Useful life of water

$70,000 - $800,000 per unit
($260,000)
Depreciated replacement cost
Water - tanks

Cost per unit

3 to 50 years
(28 years)
Useful life of water

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Depreciated replacement cost
Water- Pump stations and
switchboards

Cost per unit

10 to 60 years
(45 years)
Useful life of water

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Cost per unit
Depreciated replacement cost
Water - Pipes and drainage
works

20 to 80 years
(36 years)
Useful life of water

$800 - $2,000 per meter
($1,400)
Cost per unit

Useful life of roads & car parks

10 to 80 years
(35 years)

useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per meter
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per meter
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per meter
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
value.
A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation.
Water -Weirs, reservoirs and
treatment plant
Depreciated replacement cost

Specialised land
2014

Specialised land
41,857,208
Specialised buildings
6,203,787
157,523
Specialised
buildings
Depreciated
replacement cost
Village and Community
Infrastructure
3,849,665
96,442
Roads and car parks
9,899,247
37,363
Water - Weirs, reservoirs and treatment plant
1,995,750
Water -Pipes and drainage
1,496,093
2,973
Water - Pump stations and switchboards
989,418
7,150
Water - TanksVillage and Community
808,150
Sewerage - STP infrastructure
2,902,907
Infrastructure
Depreciated replacement cost
Sewerage -Pipes
2,482,040
85,584
Sewerage - Tanks
547,960
Sewerage - Pump wells
385,800
Gas - Pipes
488,800
Gas - Infrastructure
329,737
Gas - Tanks
237,200
Roads and car parks
Depreciated
replacement cost
Vehicles
134,185
271,006
Plant and equipment
558,717
442,925

Opening balance
Market$approach

Purchases
(sales)
$

Significant unobservable

Range

Transfers
inputsin Gains or losses
(weighted average)
(out) of
Impairment
recognised in net
Level
3
Depreciation
loss
result Obligation
Community
Service
$
$
$
$
(CSO)
adjustment
50-95%

Valuation technique

Description ofof
significant
unobservable
inputs to inputs
Level 3 valuations
Description
significant
unobservable
to Level 3 valuations
Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations

Valuation technique

A significant increase-or decrease in direct
cost
per
41,857,208
41,857,208
2
square meter adjustment
would result in
(218,724) $600-$3,600/m
6,142,586
- a
6,142,586
Direct -cost per square meter
($2,100) significantly higher or-lower fair value. (102,000)
3,844,107
3,844,107
(171,971)
9,764,639
- estimated
9,764,639
A significant increase-or decrease in the
(52,125)
1,943,625
1,943,625
Useful -life of specialised 15-60 yearsuseful life of the asset- would result in a- significantly
(63,436)
1,435,631
1,435,631
buildings
(55 years)higher or lower valuation.
(34,868)
961,700
961,700
A significant increase-or decrease in cost
per meter
(32,925)
775,225
775,225
$45 - $4,000 per meter
would result in a significantly higher or lower fair
(126,446)
2,776,461
2,776,461
Cost per unit
($2,025)
value.
(74,174)
2,493,450
2,493,450
A significant increase-or decrease in the
estimated
(23,520)
524,440
524,440
Useful -life of village & community
3 - 80 yearsuseful life of the asset- would result in a- significantly
(16,000)
369,800
369,800
infrastructure
(31
years)
higher
or
lower
valuation.
(27,100)
461,700
461,700
A significant increase-or decrease in cost
(13,222)
316,515
- per meter
316,515
$500-$650 per meter
would result in a significantly
higher or -lower fair 226,600
(10,600)
226,600
Cost per
($575) value.
- unit
(62,971)
342,220
342,220
A significant increase-or decrease in the
(203,184)
798,458
- estimated
798,458

Gains or losses
Unrealised
recognised in
Sensitivity
of fair
value measurement to changes
gains/(losses)
other
economic
on nonin significant
unobservable
inputs
flows
- other
financial
A Significant
increase or decrease in the CSO
comprehensive
assets
Subtotal
adjustmentincome
would result in aSubtotal
significantly Closing
lower balance
$ (higher) fair value.
$
$
$
$

Description
of significant
unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations
Reconciliation
of Level 3 fair
value

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 31 October 2014.

Note 8.2 Property,
Plantmeasured
and Equipment
cont.the current use is considered the highest and best use.
For all assets
at fair value,

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is held at fair value. When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, fair value is
determined using the depreciated replacement cost method.

Vehicles
Vehicles are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. The Board acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before the end of their economic life.
The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by experienced fleet managers in the Board who set relevant depreciation rates during use to reflect
the utilisation of the vehicles.

An independent valuation of the Boards infrastructure, roads and car parks was performed by Cosgraves & Eastoe Pty Ltd on behalf of the Valuer-General Victoria.
The valuation was performed based on the depreciated replacement cost of the assets. The effective date of the valuation is 31 October 2011.

Where it has not been possible to examine hidden works such as structural frames and floors, the use of reasonable materials and methods of construction have
been assumed bearing in mind the age and nature of the buildings, roads and carparks, water, sewerage and gas infrastructure assets.

replacement cost of the building/component after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs relate to costs to replace the current service capacity
of the asset. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the depreciated replacement cost calculation.

NoteNote
8.2 8.2
Property,
and
Equipment
Property, Plant
Plant and
Equipment
cont. cont.
Note 8.2 Property, Plant and Equipment cont.

2014
$

NOTE 9 Payables
Current

creditors
ed expenses
payables

de and other creditors are non-interest bearing.
arrying amount of creditors approximates fair value.

Trade creditors
Accrued expenses
Other payables

19

632,344
239,939
185,634
1,057,917

2013
$

2014
$

144,924
433,541
293,930
872,394

19

All trade and other creditors are non-interest bearing.
The carrying amount of creditors approximates fair value.

Current
Non-Current

interest loan from TCV
fixed interest loan from TCV

Fixed interest loan from TCV

84,669

Fixed interest loan from TCV
Total fixed interest loan from TCV

19

72,015

1,544,882

1,629,628

1,629,551

1,701,643

NOTE 11 Provisions

ent
oyee Benefits (i) (note 11(a))
onditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
onditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
sions related to employee benefits on-costs
onditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
onditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
current provisions

84,669

Total current provisions

265,500
376,897

298,284
219,847

70,177
73,935

93,270
35,756

786,509

647,157

current

Non-current

oyee Benefits (i)
sions related to employee benefits on-costs

Employee Benefits (i)
Provisions related to employee benefits on-costs

75,789
11,972

77,537
12,610

non-current provisions

Total non-current provisions

87,761

90,147

Provisions

Total Provisions

874,270

737,304

2014
$

2014
2014
2014
$
$$

2013
$

293,930

72,015

50,000
50,000

278,327
278,327

4,535,474
432,640
4,968,114

-

5
55

5
55

4,53
4,53
4,53
43
43
43
4,96
4,96
4,96

NOTE
Assets
and
NOTE 14 Contingent Assets and Liabilities
NOTE
14
Contingent
and
Liabilities
NOTE 14
14 Contingent
Contingent
Assets1,629,628
and Liabilities
Liabilities
1,544,882Assets

19
NOTE 15

Current
Employee Benefits (i) (note 11(a))
Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)
Provisions related to employee benefits on-costs
Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii)
Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii)

185,634

Walking trails and geo-technical worksWalking
Walking
trails
and
geo-technical
works
Walking trails
trails and
and geo-technical
geo-technical works
works
1,057,917
872,394
Not
Not later than one year
Not
later
than
one
year
Not later
later than
than one
one year
year
than
one
year
but
not
later
than
Later than one year but not later than five Later
years
Later
five
years
Later than
than one
one year
year but
but not
not later
later than
than five
five years
years
Swindlers
Valley
Pipe
Swindlers Valley Pipe Replacement Project
Swindlers
Valley
Pipe
Replacement
Project
Swindlers
Valley
Pipe Replacement
Replacement Project
Project
Not
later than
one year
Not later than one year
Not
Not later
later than
than one
one year
year
Later
than
one
year
but
not
later than five years
Later than one year but not later than five Later
yearsthan
Later
than one
one year
year but
but not
not later
later than
than five
five years
years

NOTE 10 TCV Borrowings
interest loan from TCV

2013
$

NOTE
NOTE
13
Capital
Commitments
NOTE 13
13 Capital
Capital Commitments
Commitments
Board
signed
agreements
for
replacement
of
The Board has
signed agreements
for the The
construction
and
replacement
of Swindlers
Valley Pipeand
replacement
project,
The
Board
has
signed
agreements
for
the
construction
and
replacement
of
Swindlers
Valley
Pipe
replacement
project,
The
Board has
has
signed
agreements
for the
the construction
construction
and
replacement
of Swindlers
Swindlers Valley
Valley Pipe
Pipe replacement
replacement project,
project,
632,344
144,924
and
forward
commitments
walking trails and geo-technical work. Thewalking
forwardtrails
commitments
on thesework.
worksThe
totals
$5,018,114.
walking
trails
and
geo-technical
work.
The
forward
commitments
on
these
works
totals
$5,018,114.
walking
trails
and geo-technical
geo-technical
work.
The
forward
commitments on
on these
these works
works totals
totals $5,018,114.
$5,018,114.
239,939
433,541

NOTE 13 Capital Commitments

There
no
There are no unquantifiable contingent liabilities.
(2013-Nil).
There
are
no
unquantifiable
contingent
liabilities.
(2013-Nil).
There are
are
no unquantifiable
unquantifiable contingent
contingent liabilities.
liabilities. (2013-Nil).
(2013-Nil).
1,629,551
1,701,643
There are no contingent assets (2013 Nil).There
There
are
no
contingent
assets
(2013
Nil).
There are
are no
no contingent
contingent assets
assets (2013
(2013 Nil).
Nil).

NOTE 15 Future Site Rent Lease Revenue
Future Site Rent Lease Revenue
NOTE
NOTE 15
15 Future
Future Site
Site Rent
Rent Lease
Lease Revenue
Revenue
Land
recorded
in
of
Board
at
valuation.
The
Board
brought
Crown Land is recorded in the accounts ofCrown
the Board
Valuer-General's
valuation.
Board
hasValuer-General's
brought to account
the rental
in relation
Crown
Land
is
recorded
in
the
accounts
of
the
Board
at
the
Valuer-General's
valuation.
The
Board
has
brought
to
account
the
rental
revenue
in
relation
to
Crown
Landatis
isthe
recorded
in the
the accounts
accounts
of the
theThe
Board
at the
the
Valuer-General's
valuation.
Therevenue
Board has
has
broughttoto
to account
account the
the rental
rental revenue
revenue in
in relation
relation to
to
and
does
not
for
depreciation
since
class
of
defined
The
acting
the leased sites and does not account for the
depreciation
since
the
class
assets is
as land.
Thethe
Board,
as ais
Committee
Management
under
the
leased
sites
and
does
not
account
for
depreciation
since
the
class
of
assets
is
defined
as
land.
The
Board,
acting
as
aa Committee
Committee
of
Management
under
the leased
leased sites
sites
and
does
notofaccount
account
fordefined
depreciation
since
the
classacting
of assets
assets
is
defined as
asofland.
land.
The Board,
Board,
acting as
as a
Committee of
of Management
Management under
under
(Management)
Section
38
of
the
Alpine
Resorts
Act
1997,
manages
87
Crown
leases
with
site
holders.
The
leases
cover
periods
up
to
75
years.
Section 38 of the Alpine Resorts (Management)
Act
1997,
manages
87
Crown
leases
with
site
holders.
The
leases
cover
periods
up
to
75
years.
Section
(Management) Act
Section 38
38 of
of the
the Alpine
Alpine Resorts
Resorts (Management)
Act 1997,
1997, manages
manages 87
87 Crown
Crown leases
leases with
with site
site holders.
holders. The
The leases
leases cover
cover periods
periods up
up to
to 75
75 years.
years.

265,500

298,284

Non-cancellable
Non-cancellable
operating lease
receivables
376,897
219,847
Non-cancellable
operating
lease
receivables
Non-cancellable operating
operating lease
lease receivables
receivables
Not
Not longer than 1 year
Not
longer
than
11 year
year
Not longer
longer than
than 1
year
Longer
than
1
year
and
not
longer
Longer than 1 70,177
year and not longer
than 5 years
93,270
Longer
than
55 years
years
Longer than
than 11 year
year and
and not
not longer
longer than
than 5
years
Longer
35,756
Longer than 5 73,935
years
Longer
than
55 years
years
Longer than
than 5
years
NOTE 16 Superannuation

786,509

NOTE
NOTE
16
Superannuation
NOTE 16
16 Superannuation
Superannuation

1,306,434
5,560,612
16,559,831
23,426,877

647,157

1,306,093
5,424,987
16,155,933
22,887,013

1,30
1,30
1,30
5,56
5,56
5,56
16,55
16,55
16,55
23,4
23,4
23,4

Employees
Hotham
Board
are
receive
superannuation
benefits
and
Hotham
Resort
Employees of Mt Hotham Resort Management
Board of
are
entitled
to Resort
receive
superannuation
benefits
and Mtto
Hotham
Management
contributes
both defined
Employees
of
Mt
Hotham
Resort
Management
Board
are
entitled
to
receive
superannuation
benefits
and
Mt
Hotham
Resort
Management
contributes
to
both
defined
Employees
of Mt
Mt
Hotham
Resort Management
Management
Board
are entitled
entitled
to
receiveResort
superannuation
benefits
and Mt
Mtto
Hotham
Resort Management
Management contributes
contributes to
to both
both defined
defined
and
defined
contribution
The
defined
plan(s)
provides
benefits
based
on
benefit and defined
contribution77,537
plans. Thebenefit
defined
benefit
plan(s)
providesplans.
benefits
onbenefit
years of
service
and final
average
salary.
75,789
benefit
and
defined
contribution
plans.
The
defined
benefit
plan(s)
provides
benefits
based
on
years
of
service
and
final
average
salary.
benefit
and
defined
contribution
plans.
Thebased
defined
benefit
plan(s)
provides
benefits
based
on years
years of
of service
service and
and final
final average
average salary.
salary.

11,972

12,610

There
were
no unfunded
liabilities
in regard
to the
Board's membership
of defined
benefit superannuation
schemes.
The Mt Hotham Resort Management Board
There were no unfunded liabilities in regard
to the
Board's
membership
of defined
benefit
superannuation
schemes.
The
Mt Hotham
Resort Management
Board
There
were
no
liabilities
in
to
Board's
of
benefit
schemes.
The
There
were
no unfunded
unfunded
liabilities
in regard
regard
to the
the
Board's membership
membership
of defined
defined
benefit superannuation
superannuation
schemes.
The Mt
Mt Hotham
Hotham Resort
Resort Management
Management Board
Board
has no responsibility
forrespect
any unfunded
superannuation
liability
in respect
to the below
defined
benefit scheme. The Board does not recognise
has no responsibility
liability in
to the below
defined benefit
scheme.
The to
Board
does not
recognise
has
for
superannuation
liability
in
defined
benefit
has no
no responsibility
responsibility
for any
any unfunded
unfunded
superannuation
liability
in respect
respect
to the
the below
below
defined
benefit scheme.
scheme. The
The Board
Board does
does not
not recognise
recognise
87,761for any unfunded
90,147 superannuation
any
defined
benefit
liability
in
respect
of
the
plan(s)
because
the
entity
has
no
legal
or
constructive
obligation
to
pay
future
benefits
relating
to
any defined benefit liability in respect of the
plan(s)
because
entityin
no legal
or plan(s)
constructive
obligation
to pay
benefits
relating toobligation
any
defined
benefit
liability
respect
of
the
has
no
or
any
defined
benefitthe
liability
inhas
respect
of the
the
plan(s) because
because
the entity
entity
hasfuture
no legal
legal
or constructive
constructive
obligation to
to pay
pay future
future benefits
benefits relating
relating to
to
employees;
only
superannuation
contributions
as
Department
of
its employees; its only obligation is to payits
superannuation
as is
they
fall
The Department
of Treasury
and fall
Finance
discloses
the State's
its
employees;
its
only
obligation
is
to
pay
superannuation
contributions
as
they
fall
due.
The
Department
of
Treasury
and
Finance
discloses
the
State's
its
employees; its
itscontributions
only obligation
obligation
is to
to pay
paydue.
superannuation
contributions
as they
they
fall due.
due. The
The
Department
of Treasury
Treasury and
and Finance
Finance discloses
discloses the
the State's
State's
874,270
737,304
defined
benefit
liabilities
in
its
disclosure
for
administered
items.
defined benefit liabilities in its disclosure for
administered
items.
defined
defined benefit
benefit liabilities
liabilities in
in its
its disclosure
disclosure for
for administered
administered items.
items.
Contribution
Contribution details are shown in the following
table: details
Contribution
details
are
shown
in
the
following
table:
Contribution
details are
are shown
shown in
in the
the following
following table:
table:

Employee Benefits and related on-costs

ent Employee Benefits

11(a) Employee Benefits and related on-costs

Type of Scheme

Current Employee Benefits

al Leave entitlements
off in Lieu entitlements
nditional Long Service Leave Entitlements

Annual Leave entitlements
Time off in Lieu entitlements
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements

218,188
20,406
403,777

203,539
18,700
295,893

75,789

77,537

Total Employee Benefits

718,160

Current on-costs
Non-current on-costs

on-costs
employee benefits and related on-costs

current employee benefits
ditional Long Service Leave entitlements

Non-current employee benefits
Conditional Long Service Leave entitlements

State Superannuation fund
New/Revised218,188
Scheme

20,406

State Superannuation
403,777 fund
(SERBS)

203,539
18,700
295,893

Rate
%

9.4
--- 10.2
11,675
9.4
10.2
9.4
10.2

18,101

1
11

State
(Definedfund
Benefits)
State
Superannuation
fund
State Superannuation
Superannuation
fund
(SERBS)
(SERBS)
(SERBS)

(Defined
(Defined
Benefits)
(Defined Benefits)
Benefits)

10

10
12,112
10
10

11,928

1
11

AUSTSUPER
AUSTSUPER
AUSTSUPER(Accumulated Benefits)
VICSUPER
VICSUPER
VICSUPER (Accumulated Benefits)
OTHER
(Accumulated Benefits)
OTHER
FUNDS
OTHER FUNDS
FUNDS

(Accumulated
(Accumulated
Benefits)
(Accumulated Benefits)
Benefits)
(Accumulated
(Accumulated
Benefits)
(Accumulated Benefits)
Benefits)
(Accumulated
Benefits)
(Accumulated
(Accumulated Benefits)
Benefits)

9.25 - 9.5
9.25 - 9.5
9.25 - 9.5

9.25
--- 9.5
33,454
9.25
9.5
9.25
9.5
9.25
161,391
9.25
9.5
9.25 --- 9.5
9.5
9.25
9.5
100,170
9.25
9.25 -- 9.5
9.5

25,477
140,903
95,284

3
33
16
16
16
10
10
10

318,802

291,693

31
31
31

144,112
11,972

129,026
12,610

144,112
11,972

129,026
12,610

Total on-costs

156,084

141,636

At reporting date
there were
outstanding
contributions
ofabove
$27,540
(2013 $19,150) payable to the above funds.
At reporting date there were outstanding contributions
of $27,540
(2013
$19,150) contributions
payable to the
funds.
At
there
outstanding
of
(2013
At reporting
reporting date
date
there were
were
outstanding
contributions
of $27,540
$27,540
(2013 $19,150)
$19,150) payable
payable to
to the
the above
above funds.
funds.
No
loans
have
No loans have
been made to 141,636
the Board from
156,084
No
loans
have
been
made
to
the
Board
from
these
funds.
No these
loans funds.
have been
been made
made to
to the
the Board
Board from
from these
these funds.
funds.

Total employee benefits and related on-costs

874,244

737,304

As
July
2014
guarantee
As of 1 July 2014 the superannuation guarantee
from
9.25% to 9.5%.
As
of
11rate
July
2014
the
superannuation
guarantee
rate
increased
from
9.25%
to
9.5%.
As of
of 1
Julyincreased
2014 the
the superannuation
superannuation
guarantee rate
rate increased
increased from
from 9.25%
9.25% to
to 9.5%.
9.5%.

Net Results for the reporting period

1,032,892

551,362

eciation
Write down of Assets

Depreciation
Sale / Write down of Assets

1,233,267
(36,332)

1,239,880
-

1,233,267
(36,332)

1,239,880
-

ge in operating assets and liabilities :
ease/(increase) in receivables
ease/(increase) in inventories
ease/(increase) in prepayments
ase/(decrease) in payables
ase/(decrease) in accrued expenditure
ase/(decrease) in employee entitlements
ash Inflow from operating activities

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
Decrease/(increase) in receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenditure
Increase/(decrease) in employee entitlements
Net Cash Inflow from operating activities

(143,712)
(15,224)
(9,815)
496,344
(301,898)
136,939
2,392,461
1

229,456
(42,778)
(47,480)
(53,847)
(177,044)
41,827
1,741,375
(0)

(143,712)
(15,224)
(9,815)
496,344
(301,898)
136,939
2,392,461
1

229,456
(42,778)
(47,480)
(53,847)
(177,044)
41,827
1,741,375
(0)

ovisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave
d long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs.
e amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.
he amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.

737,304

1,032,892

551,362

(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave
and long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs.
(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.
(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.

sh flows from operating activities
NOTE 12 Reconciliation of net result to net cash flows from operating activities

esults for the reporting period
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2014
2014
2014
$
$$

9.4 - 10.2

595,669

874,244

2013
$

(Defined
(Defined
Benefits)
(Defined Benefits)
Benefits)

595,669

ent on-costs
current on-costs

2014Rate
Rate
Rate
$ %
%
%

State
(Definedfund
Benefits)
State
Superannuation
fund
State Superannuation
Superannuation
fund
New/Revised
New/Revised
Scheme
New/Revised Scheme
Scheme

AUSTSUPER 75,789
VICSUPER
OTHER FUNDS
718,160

Employee Benefits

77,537

Type
Type
of
Scheme
Type of
of Scheme
Scheme
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le Persons

The names of persons who were Responsible Persons during the financial year were:
Responsible Minister
Ryan Smith, MP Minister for Environment and Climate Change from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014
Board
Deborah Spring, Board Member. Chairman of the Board from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Ronald Mason, Board Member. Deputy Chairman of the Board from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Nicole Feeney, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
NOTE 17 Responsible Persons
Helen Moran, Board Member fromResponsible
1 Nov 2013Persons
to 31 Oct 2014.
Responsible Persons
Timothy Piper, Board Member from
1 names
Nov 2013
to 31who
Octwere
2014.
The
of persons
Responsible Persons during the financial year were:
The names of persons who were Responsible Persons during the financial year were:
Peter Hagenauer, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Minister
David Anstee,
Board Member fromResponsible
4 Aug 2014
to 31 Oct 2014.
Responsible
Minister
Ryan Smith, MP Minister for Environment and Climate Change from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014
Stephen
Clement,
Board
Member
from
28 Oct
2014
to 131Nov
Oct
2014.
Ryan
Smith, MP
Minister for
Environment
and
Climate
Change
from
2013
to 31 Oct 2014

NOTE 18 Remuneration of executives and payment to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)
NOTE 18 Remuneration of executives and payment to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)
(a) Remuneration of executives
(a) Remuneration of executives
The number of executive officers, other than responsible persons, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the
The in
number
of executive
officers,
otherincome
than responsible
and their total
remuneration
during
the reporting
period
are
shown
in the
first two columns
the table
below in their
relevant
bands. Thepersons,
base remuneration
of executive
officers
is shown
in the third
and
fourth
columns.
first two
tablepayments,
below in their
income
bands. The
base remuneration
of executivepayments
officers isand
shown
in the third
and fourth columns.
Base remuneration
is columns
exclusiveinofthe
bonus
long relevant
service leave
payments,
allowances,
vehicles, redundancy
retirement
benefits.
Base remuneration
is exclusive
of bonus
long service
leave payments,
allowances,
vehicles,
The total annualised
equivalent provides
a measure
of payments,
full time equivalent
executive
officers over
the reporting
period.redundancy payments and retirement benefits.
The total annualised equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period.

Board
Board
Accountable Officer
Deborah Spring, Board Member. Chairman of the Board from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Deborah Spring, Board Member. Chairman of the Board from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Ronaldand
Mason,
Board Member.
Deputy
Chairman
the Board
Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
James Atteridge, Chief Executive Officer
Accountable
Officer
from
1 Nov of
2013
to 31 from
Oct 12014.
Ronald Mason, Board Member. Deputy Chairman of the Board from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Nicole Feeney, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Nicole Feeney, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Helen Moran, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Remuneration
ofMember
Responsible
Persons
Helen Moran, Board
from 1 Nov
2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Timothy Piper, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Timothy Piper, Board
Member
Nov receivable
2013 to 31 Oct
Remuneration
received,
orfrom
due1and
by2014.
Responsible Persons in connection with the management of the Board for the financial period ended
Peter Hagenauer, Board Member from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
Peter
Hagenauer,
Board
from(2013
1 Nov 2013
to 31 Oct 2014.
31
October
2014
wasMember
$323,849
- $324,804)
David
Anstee, Board Member from 4 Aug 2014 to 31 Oct 2014.
David Anstee, Board Member from 4 Aug 2014 to 31 Oct 2014.
Stephen Clement, Board Member from 28 Oct 2014 to 31 Oct 2014.
Stephen Clement, Board Member from 28 Oct 2014 to 31 Oct 2014.

The increase between 2013 and 2014 is due to a full year appointment of the CFO and an additional executive whose position was created this financial
The increase
2013 and 2014 is due to a full year appointment of the CFO and an additional executive whose position was created this financial
year for Manager
of IT andbetween
Visitor Services.
year for Manager of IT and Visitor Services.
Total Remuneration
Base Remuneration
2014 Total Remuneration
2013
2014 Base Remuneration
2013
2014
2013No.
2014 No.
No.
No.
No. No. 1
No. - - 1
1
1
2
- 1
- 2
1
1 1 1
2
2
2 1
- 1
- 2
1 4
4
2
4 2
2 4
4 2
4

Remuneration bands
Remuneration bands
$100,000 - $109,999
$100,000 - $109,999
$110,000 - $119,999
$110,000
$120,000 - $129,999 - $119,999
$120,000 - $129,999
$130,000 - $139,999
$130,000 - $139,999
$140,000 - $149,999
$140,000 - $149,999
$150,000 - $159,999
- $159,999
Total number$150,000
of executives
Totalemployment
number of executives
Total annualised
equivalents (AEE) 1
Total annualised employment equivalents (AEE) 1
Total Amount
$
544,007 $ 4 284,834 $ 2 512,504
Amount
$ period.
544,007 $
284,834 $
1 Annualised Total
employee
equivalent is based on working 38 hours per week over the reporting
1 Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 hours per week over the reporting period.

The number of Responsible Persons whose remuneration from the Board was within the specified bands are as follows:

Accountable Officer
Accountable Officer
James Atteridge, Chief Executive Officer and Accountable Officer from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.
James Atteridge, Chief Executive Officer and Accountable Officer from 1 Nov 2013 to 31 Oct 2014.

Total Remuneration
2014
2013
No.
No.
$ 4
248,804
7
7
512,504 $
1
1
1
(b) Payments to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)
9
(b) Payments to other personnel (i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)
Total Remuneration8
2014 $
2013
$
323,849
324,804
Payments have been made to one contractor with significant management responsibilities, which are disclosed in the $10,000 expense

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
Remuneration of Responsible Persons
Remuneration received, or due and receivable by Responsible Persons in connection with the management of the Board for the financial period ended
Remuneration Bands
Remuneration received, or due and receivable by Responsible Persons in connection with the management of the Board for the financial period ended
31 October 2014 was $323,849 (2013 - $324,804)
- was$9,999
31$October 0
2014
$323,849 (2013 - $324,804)

$ 10,000 - $19,999
The number of Responsible Persons whose remuneration from the Board was within the specified bands are as follows:
The
number of- Responsible
$270,000
$279,999 Persons whose remuneration from the Board was within the specified bands are as follows:
Total Responsible persons
Total Remuneration
Total Remuneration
2014
Remuneration Bands
Remuneration Bands
$
0$9,999
$ The relevant
0$9,999
Minister's remuneration is reported separately in the financial statements of the Department of Premier & Cabinet.
$ 10,000 - $19,999
$ 10,000 - $19,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$270,000 - $279,999
Retirement Benefits of Responsible
Persons
Total
Responsible persons
Total Responsible persons
There were no retirement benefits paid
byRemuneration
the Board in connection with the retirement of Responsible Persons
Total
Total Remuneration

$

of the Board during the financial year.

No.
7
1
1
9
323,849

$

2013
No.
7
1
8
324,804

$

The relevant Minister's remuneration is reported separately in the financial statements of the Department of Premier & Cabinet.
The relevant Minister's remuneration is reported separately in the financial statements of the Department of Premier & Cabinet.

Loans

Retirement Benefits of Responsible Persons
Retirement
Benefits
of Responsible
At 31 October
2014
there were Persons
no loans
existence
that benefits
have been
guaranteed
or secured
the Board
Therein
were
no retirement
paid made,
by the Board
in connection
with the by
retirement
of Responsible Persons
There were no retirement benefits paid by the Board in connection with the retirement of Responsible Persons
of the
Board
during
the financial
year.
to
a
Responsible
Person
of
the
Board
or
a
related
party
of
a
Responsible
Person.(2013
nil)
of the Board during the financial year.
Loans
Loans
Other transactions:
At 31 October 2014 there were no loans in existence that have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Board
AtHelen
31 October
2014
were no
in existence
that have
been made, guaranteed
or secured
by the of
Board
Moran
is there
the Head
of loans
Ski fields
with Merlin
Entertainments,
the parent
company
MHSC Pty Ltd, which has dealings with the Mount Hotham Alpine
to a Responsible Person of the Board or a related party of a Responsible Person.(2013 - nil)
toResort
a Responsible
Person ofBoard.
the Board
or a related
party
a Responsible
Person.(2013
- nil) Mt Hotham Pty Ltd, Hotham Heights Developments Limited, Mount Hotham Management
Management
Helen
is also
an of
office
holder with
White Crystal

and Reservations Pty Ltd, Higgi Drive
Mount
Hotham and is the Chairman of Alpine Resorts Tourism. All transactions are conducted on an arms length commercial
Other
transactions:
Other transactions:
Helen Moran is the Head of Ski fields with Merlin Entertainments, the parent company of MHSC Pty Ltd, which has dealings with the Mount Hotham Alpine
basis between the two organisations.
Helen Moran is the Head of Ski fields with Merlin Entertainments, the parent company of MHSC Pty Ltd, which has dealings with the Mount Hotham Alpine
Resort Management Board. Helen is also an office holder with White Crystal Mt Hotham Pty Ltd, Hotham Heights Developments Limited, Mount Hotham Management
Resort Management Board. Helen is also an office holder with White Crystal Mt Hotham Pty Ltd, Hotham Heights Developments Limited, Mount Hotham Management
and Reservations Pty Ltd, Higgi Drive Mount Hotham and is the Chairman of Alpine Resorts Tourism. All transactions are conducted on an arms length commercial
Property
Interests:
and
Reservations
Pty Ltd, Higgi Drive Mount Hotham and is the Chairman of Alpine Resorts Tourism. All transactions are conducted on an arms length commercial
basis between the two organisations.
basis between the two organisations.
Nicole Feeney has property interestsProperty
at Chalet
Hotham and is a member of Anton Huette (Hotham Heights) Inc.
Interests:

Property Interests:

Nicole
FeeneyClub
has property
at Chalet Hotham
andof
is the
a member
of Anton Huette (Hotham Heights) Inc.
Ronald
Mason
is a member
Alpine
andinterests
a committee
member
Nicole
Feeney
has property
interestsofatAsgaard
Chalet Hotham
and is a Inc.
member
ofisAnton
Huette (Hotham
Heights)
Inc.club.
Ronald Mason is a member of Asgaard Alpine Club Inc. and is a committee member of the club.
Ronald
is a member
of AsgaardofAlpine
Club Inc.
and Club
is a committee
of the club.member of the club.
PeterMason
Hagenauer
is a member
Asgaard
Alpine
Inc. andmember
is a committee
Peter Hagenauer is a member of Asgaard Alpine Club Inc. and is a committee member of the club.
Peter Hagenauer is a member of Asgaard Alpine Club Inc. and is a committee member of the club.

Deborah Spring, Timothy Piper, Helen Moran, and Stephen Clement held no interest in property at Mt Hotham.

No.
7
1
1
9
323,849

$

No.
7
1
8
324,804

NOTE 19 Financial Instruments
NOTE 19 Financial Instruments
(A) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(A) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board’s principal financial instruments comprise of:
Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board’s principal financial instruments comprise of:
• cash assets;
• cash assets;
• term deposits;
• receivables;• term deposits;
• receivables;
• payables; and
• borrowings. • payables; and
• borrowings.
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
of the
significant
accounting
and methods
adopted,
including
criteriaasset
for recognition,
theliability
basis of measurement
and the basisDetails
on which
income
and expenses
are policies
recognised,
with respect
to each
class ofthe
financial
and financial
and theinbasis
which
income and
expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset and financial liability
1 to
the financial
statements.
above are disclosed
Noteon
above are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage the RMB’s financial risks in the government policy parameters.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage the RMB’s financial risks in the government policy parameters.
The RMB’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The RMB manages these financial risks in accordance
Therisk
RMB’s
main financial
risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The RMB manages these financial risks in accordance
with its financial
management
policy.
with its financial risk management policy.
The RMB uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed.
The RMB uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed.

James Atteridge (CEO) has interests in property at Razorback Apartments and Arlberg Hotel, Mt Hotham.

Razorback Apartments
Razorback #1
Zirky's Apartments Pty Ltd
Total
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84,574
3,491
308,105
3,367,170

12,985
248,831

2013 / 2014

929
461,329

Outstanding
debtors at
31/10/2014
$
1,836
230,293
2,107
12,209
44
4,290
209,621
929
461,329

Total expense (exclusive of GST)
Total expense
2014
2013 (exclusive of GST)
2014 No
2013
No
No 1
No
1
1
$
120,625 $ 1
122,627
$
120,625 $
122,627

Expense band
Expense band
$120,000 - $129,999
$120,000
- $129,999
Total expenses
(exclusive
of GST)
Total expenses (exclusive of GST)

James Atteridge (CEO) has interests in property at Razorback Apartments and Arlberg Hotel, Mt Hotham.
James Atteridge (CEO) has interests in property at Razorback Apartments and Arlberg Hotel, Mt Hotham.

The
following
additional
transactions
have been
entered
into with related party entities:
The
following
additional
transactions
have
been
entered
intoparty
withentities:
related
party
entities:
The
following
additional
transactions
have been
entered
into
with related
Outstanding
Outstanding
debtors at
debtors at
Revenue
31/10/2014Expenditure
Revenue
Expenditure
31/10/2014
Revenue
Expenditure $
$
$
$
$
Alpine Resort Coordinating
199,621
$
$ 199,621
$
Alpine Resort Coordinating Council
- Council
Centre
967
Alpine Resort
Coordinating
Council Australian Alpine Reservation
199,621
Australian
Alpine Reservation
Centre
967
Anton
Huette
(Hotham
Heights)
Inc.
46,696
Anton
Huette (Hotham
Heights) Inc. Centre
46,696
1,836
Australian
Alpine Reservation
-967
Arlberg
Apartments
(Hotham
Management
Pty
Ltd)
837,440
Arlberg
(Hotham Heights)
Management
Ltd)
837,440
230,293
AntonApartments
Huette (Hotham
Inc.Pty
46,696
1,836
Asgaard
Alpine
Club
Inc.
42,270
Asgaard Alpine Club Inc.
42,270
2,107
Arlberg Apartments (Hotham Management
Pty Ltd)
837,440
230,293
Chalet Hotham
Body105,036
Corporate
105,036
Chalet Hotham Body Corporate
12,209
Asgaard
Alpine
Club
Inc.
42,270
2,107
Chalet
Hotham
#
22
741
Chalet Hotham # 22
741
44
Higgi Drive Owners Corporation
9,0504,290
Chalet
Body Corporate
105,036
12,209
Higgi
DriveHotham
Owners Corporation
9,050
Hotham Heights Developments
440,253 ChaletHeights
Hotham
# 22
741
44
Hotham
Developments
Ltd
440,253 Ltd
Moritz Mt Hotham Pty113,484
Ltd
113,484 25,276
Moritz
Hotham
Pty Ltd Corporation
25,276
HiggiMtDrive
Owners
9,050
4,290
MHSC Pty Ltd
1,376,030
9,982
MHSC Pty Ltd
1,376,030
9,982
209,621
Hotham Heights Developments Ltd Razorback Apartments
440,253
84,574 Razorback Apartments
84,574
Razorback #1
3,491 12,985
Moritz Mt
113,484
25,276
Razorback
#1Hotham Pty Ltd
3,491
12,985
Zirky's Apartments Pty
Ltd
MHSC
Pty Ltd Pty Ltd
1,376,030
9,982 308,105 929
209,621
Zirky's
Apartments
308,105
Total
3,367,170
248,831
Total
3,367,170
248,831
461,329

2
248,804

Payments
been made
to one contractor
with
significantdirectly
management
responsibilities,
which
are disclosed
in and
the $10,000 expense
band. This contractor
is have
responsible
for planning,
directing or
controlling,
or indirectly,
of the Boards
Property
Planning
This contractor is responsible for planning, directing or controlling, directly or indirectly, of the Boards Property Planning and
Crown leasingband.
department.
Crown leasing department.

Deborah Spring, Timothy Piper, Helen Moran, and Stephen Clement held no interest in property at Mt Hotham.
Deborah Spring, Timothy Piper, Helen Moran, and Stephen Clement held no interest in property at Mt Hotham.

All transactions are conducted on anAllarms
length are
commercial
basis
between
Board and
organisations
listed
transactions
conducted on
an arms
lengththe
commercial
basisthe
between
the Board and
the below.
organisations listed below.
All transactions are conducted on an arms length commercial basis between the Board and the organisations listed below.
During the year, the Board received/paid
amounts:
Duringthe
the following
year, the Board
received/paid the following amounts:
During the year, the Board received/paid the following amounts:

2013
No.
2
2

2014
2014
Contractual financial assets
Contractual financial assets
Cash and deposits
(i)
ReceivablesCash and deposits
(i)
Receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables
Term Deposits
Term financial
Deposits assets
Total contractual
Total contractual financial assets
Contractual financial liabilities
(i)
Contractual financial liabilities
Accounts Payable
(i)
Accounts- TCV
Payable
Fixed Rate Borrowings
Fixed financial
Rate Borrowings
- TCV
Total contractual
liabilities
Total contractual financial liabilities

Categorisation of financial instruments
Categorisation of financial instruments
Contractual
financial Contractual
Contractual
assets - loans financial
financial Contractual
Total
assets
- loansat
financial
Total
and
liabilities
and
receivables amortised
cost liabilities at
receivables amortised cost
$
$
$
$
$
$
6,356,883
6,356,883
6,356,883
718,648 6,356,883 718,648
718,648 -44,699
718,648
44,699
44,699 44,699
3,300,000
3,300,000
3,300,000
10,420,230 3,300,000 10,420,230
10,420,230
10,420,230
-

1,015,741
1,629,551
2,645,292
-

1,015,741
1,015,741
1,629,551
1,629,551
2,645,292
2,645,292

1,015,741
1,629,551
2,645,292

2013
2013
Contractual financial assets
Contractual financial assets
Cash and deposits
2,865,499
2,865,499
(i)
2,865,499
ReceivablesCash and deposits
637,259 2,865,499 637,259
(i)
Receivables
637,259 -43,004
637,259
Other receivables
43,004
Other receivables
43,004
43,004
Term Deposits
800,000
800,000
Term financial
Deposits assets
800,000 800,000
Total contractual
4,345,762
4,345,762
Total contractual financial assets
4,345,762
4,345,762
Contractual financial liabilities
(i)
Contractual financial liabilities
Accounts Payable
850,241
850,241
(i)
Accounts- TCV
Payable
850,241
850,241
Fixed Rate Borrowings
1,701,643
1,701,643
Fixed financial
Rate Borrowings
- TCV
1,701,643
Total contractual
liabilities
2,551,883
2,551,883 1,701,643
Total contractual financial liabilities
2,551,883
2,551,883
Note:
Note: disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Infringements, Victorian government and GST input tax credit recoverable, and taxes payable)
(i) The total amount
(i) The total amount disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Infringements, Victorian government and GST input tax credit recoverable, and taxes payable)
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4,345,762

1,680,263

800,000

800,000

850,241
1,701,643
2,551,883

850,241
850,241

12,041
12,041

59,974
59,974

-

-

Financial Liabilities
(i)

Accounts Payable
Variable Rate Borrowings - TCV

6.58%

484,407
484,407

1,145,221
1,145,221

Note:
(i) The total amount disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Infringements, Victorian government and GST input tax credit recoverable, and taxes payable)
NOTE 19
NOTE
19 Financial
Financial Instruments
Instruments cont.
(continued).

NOTE 19 Financial Instruments cont.
(B) Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The credit risk on financial assets of the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board which have been recognised on
the balance sheet is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts.

The Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board’s exposure to interest rate risk
and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial
liabilities is set out below:
Weighted Average
Interest Rate

2014
Financial Assets
Cash
(i)
Receivables
Other financial assets

Interest Rate Exposure
Carrying amount Fixed Interest
Variable
Interest
$
$
$

2.16%
3.24%

6,356,883
763,347
3,300,000
10,420,230

3,300,000
3,300,000

1,015,741
1,629,551
2,645,292

1,629,551
1,629,551

The Board’s maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date in respect to financial assets is limited to the carrying
amount in the balance sheet.

Non-Interest
Bearing
$

6,354,512
6,354,512

(D) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

2,371
763,347
765,718

The fair values and net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
(i)The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and
(ii)The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The Board considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial report to
be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation
that they will be paid in full.

Financial Liabilities
(i)

Accounts Payable
Fixed Rate Borrowings - TCV

6.58%

2013

$

Financial Assets
Cash
(i)
Receivables
Other financial assets

1.90%
3.78%

$

2,865,499
680,263
800,000
4,345,762

800,000
800,000

850,241
1,701,643
2,551,883

1,701,643
1,701,643

-

$

1,015,741
1,015,741

(E) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board is unable to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board operates under the Government fair payments policy of
settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, make payments within 30 days from the date of
resolution. It also continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure
adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets.

$

2,863,128
-

2,371
680,263

2,863,128

682,634

Financial Liabilities
(i)

Accounts Payable
Variable Rate Borrowings - TCV

6.58%

Weighted Average
Interest Rate

2014
Financial Assets
Cash
(i)
Receivables
Other financial assets

-

850,241
850,241

More than
3 months - 1
$

Nominal Amount

Maturity Dates
Less than 1

1-3 months

$

$

$

2.16%
3.24%

(F) Interest Rate Risk Exposure to interest rate risk is insignificant and might arise primarily through the Mount Hotham
Alpine Resort Management Board’s interest bearing liabilities. Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed
rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For financial liabilities, the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management
Board mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.

1-5 years

> 5 years

$

$

6,356,883
763,347
3,300,000
10,420,230

763,347
500,000
1,263,347

500,000
500,000

2,000,000
2,000,000

300,000
300,000

1,015,741
1,629,551
2,645,292

1,015,741
1,015,741

20,652
20,652

64,017
64,017

517,064
517,064

-

Financial Liabilities
(i)

Accounts Payable
Fixed Rate Borrowings - TCV

6.58%

1,027,818
1,027,818

2013
Financial Assets
Cash
(i)
Receivables
Other financial assets

1.90%
3.78%

2,865,499
680,263
800,000
4,345,762

1,000,000
680,263
1,680,263

800,000
800,000

800,000
800,000

850,241
1,701,643
2,551,883

850,241
850,241

12,041
12,041

59,974
59,974

(C) Credit Risk Exposures

-

(G) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
The following table details the sensitivity to movements in interest rates based on a parallel shift of -1% and +1% from
market rates at year end.

Financial Assets
2014
Cash exposed to
variable interest
rates and short term
deposits
2013
Cash exposed to
variable interest
rates and short term

Carrying Amount
$

-1.0%
Surplus

-1.0%
Equity

1.0%
Surplus

1.0%
Equity

6,354,512

(63,545)

(63,545)

63,545

63,545

2,863,128

(28,631)

(28,631)

28,631

28,631

-

-

Financial Liabilities
(i)

Accounts Payable
Variable Rate Borrowings - TCV

6.58%

484,407
484,407

1,145,221
1,145,221

Note:
(i) The total amount disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Infringements, Victorian government and GST input tax credit recoverable, and taxes payable)
NOTE 19 Financial Instruments (continued).

(C) Credit Risk Exposures
The credit risk on financial assets of the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board which have been recognised on
the balance sheet is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts.
The Board’s maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date in respect to financial assets is limited to the carrying
amount in the balance sheet.
(D) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The fair values and net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
(i)The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and
(ii)The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The Board considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial report to
be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation
that they will be paid in full.

(E) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board is unable to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board operates under the Government fair payments policy of
settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, make payments within 30 days from the date of
resolution. It also continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure
adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets.
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(F) Interest Rate Risk Exposure to interest rate risk is insignificant and might arise primarily through the Mount Hotham
Alpine Resort Management Board’s interest bearing liabilities. Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed
rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. For financial liabilities, the Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management
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Annual Report
2013 / 2014
Board mainly undertake financial liabilities with relatively even maturity profiles.

(G) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
The following table details the sensitivity to movements in interest rates based on a parallel shift of -1% and +1% from
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NOTE 20 Subsequent Events
	The Victorian State election was held 29 November 2014. Consequently a new
Minister for Environment, Climate Change and Water, the Honourable Lisa Mary
Neville MP, was appointed by the Governor of the State of Victoria on 4 December
2014.
	The Governor in Council also made an order on the same date, under section
10 of the Public Administration Act 2004, to change the name of the portfolio
department that Mount Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board fall under,
from the Department of Environment and Primary Industries to the Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning.
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presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 31 October 2014 and financial position of the Mount
Hotham Alpine Resort Management Board at 31 October 2014.
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FRD 30

Standard requirements for the design and print of the annual report

Acronyms

FRD - Financial Reporting Direction
SD – Standing Direction
IFC – Inside Front Cover

Entire Document

MRO – Model Report of Operations
PC – Premier’s Circular
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